
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
April 18, 2018 7:00 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Agendas are subject to amendment through 

5:00pm on the day prior to City Council Meetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION – To Be Determined. 
PLEDGE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council regular meeting March 21, 2018.  
 

AGENDA REVIEW 

PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Presentations: 

1. Presentation of Congressional Record to Vice Mayor Billie Dean on behalf of Congresswoman.  Val Butler Demings. 
2. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report from Moore Stephens Lovelace CPA's and Advisors.  Eduardo Castaneda 

 
Public Comment Period:  
The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Ratify the certificate of the official runoff election results. 
2. Authorize the disposal of surplus equipment/property. 

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Award a bid for fuel to Petroleum Traders Corporation. Kevin Burgess 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 
1. Ordinance No. 2639 – Second Reading - Change of Zoning – Oak Pointe  David Moon 

Project:  Jason C. Revelle & Thompson Hills Estates, LLC   
Located east of Ocoee-Apopka Road, north of McCormick Road.   

 
2. Development Agreement – Oak Pointe – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 

Project: Thompson Hills Estates, LLC   
Located east of Ocoee-Apopka Road, north of McCormick Road 

 
3. Ordinance No. 2640 – Second Reading – Annexation Jean Sanchez 

Project:  Janine R. & Richard D. Edmondson - Located at 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road.   

 
4. Ordinance No. 2641 – Second Reading – Annexation Jean Sanchez 

Project:  Lynn R. Fontaine - Located at 4353 McDonald Gley Road 

 
5. Ordinance No. 2642 – Second Reading – Annexation Jean Sanchez 

Project:  SunTrust Bank - Located at 920 East Semoran Boulevard   

 
6. Ordinance No. 2643 – Second Reading - Annexation – Right-of-Way  Pamela Richmond 

Project:  A – Orange County - King Street Right-of-Way 
Project:  B – Orange County – Peterson Road (east of SR 429) 
Project:  C – Orange County – Peterson Road (west of SR 429)  
 

1



  
 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

April 21, 2018 9:00am – 12:00pm  12
th

 Annual Apopka Health & Fitness Fair – Fran Carlton Center 

April 21, 2018 10:30am – 11:30am  PD Cookies & Milk - Library 

April 23, 2018 10:00am – Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

April 24, 2018 12:00pm –  Inauguration – Mayor & City Council Seats #1 & #2 

May 2, 2018 1:30pm –  City Council Meeting 

May 3, 2018 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

May 8, 2018 5:30pm –  Planning Commission Meeting 

May 14, 2018 6:30pm –  CONA Meeting – UCF Apopka Business Incubator  

May 15, 2018 6:00pm –  Code Enforcement Hearing 

May 16, 2018 7:00pm –  City Council Meeting 

May 28, 2018 - Memorial Day - City Offices Closed  

May 28, 2018 10:00am – Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on March 21, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Kyle Becker  

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

PRESS PRESENT:  John Perry - The Apopka Chief 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

INVOCATION: - Mayor Kilsheimer introduced Reverend Jeri Bankson of Victory Church who 

gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said on this day in 1965, the Reverend 

Martin Luther King, Jr. and nearly 3,200 Civil Rights demonstrators began their march from 

Selma to Montgomery, Alabama. Beaten and turned back twice before, Reverend King and the 

marchers were escorted by a Federalized Alabama National Guardsman and the FBI. Upon 

arrival in Montgomery, Reverend King addressed a crowd of 25,000 and live television cameras 

advocating for equal voting rights for African-Americans. He asked everyone to reflect on the 

bravery and sacrifice of Reverend King and those who gave their lives in the fight for equal 

voting rights as he led in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

  

AGENDA REVIEW: Glenn Irby, City Administrator, advised that item one under Public 

Hearings/Ordinances/Resolutions, Ordinance 2605 was the second reading. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Public Comment: 

Ray Shackelford asked for clarification of the status of the grant for Alonzo Williams Park. He 

said there have been a lot of rumors floating around and he would like to have clarification. 

 

Mr. Irby advised this went out to bid and the City received three bids. He said the City had a grant 

for $750,000. The bids came back with the lowest being over $400,000 more than the $750,000 

grant. He stated staff was trying to determine why. He stated we still have the grant, but the 

project needs to be under construction by the end of the year, or we stand the chance of losing the 

grant. He said the City was trying to value engineer it to get the price lower and if that fails there 

are a couple of options. One option is to let the grant go, and a second option would be to go into 

the budget session and try to come up with the additional funds, or a third option of taking the 

additional funds from reserves.  

 

CONSENT 

1. Ratify the certificate of the official election results. 

2. KaBOOM! Grant acceptance of the letter of intent and funding.  

3



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 2 

 

3. Authorize a Traffic Enforcement Agreement with Clear Lake Landings Homeowner's 

Association. 

4. Approve an Inmate Work Squad Contract with the Department of Corrections. 

5. Approve funding for Martin's Pond Aeration Fountains.  

6. Approve a School Capacity Enhancement Agreement concerning Lake Marshall Subdivision, 

Phases 1 & 2. 
  

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to approve 

six items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker and Bankson voting aye. 

 

BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Final Development Plan/Plat – Lake Gem Commerce Park – Project: Property 

Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael Cooper - Located at 511 & 611 Marshall Lake 

Road 

 

Jean Sanchez, Planner, said this is a request to approve the Lake Gem Commerce Park Final 

Development Plan and Plat. She reviewed the location of the project and surrounding land-

uses. This is a PUD and follows site design requirements of the I-1 restricted industrial 

zoning district and allows up to 50 feet in building height. The plan includes 12 lots of 

industrial park with no individual lot less than 32,000 square feet. The DRC and Planning 

Commission recommend approval.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Dean to approve 

the Lake Gem Commerce Park Final Development Plan/Plat as presented. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, 

Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION  

1. Ordinance No. 2605 – Second Reading – Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment – 

Project: Amendment to the Future Land Use Element, Policy 20.10 and Table 20.10. 

The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2605 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

POLICY 20.10 AND TABLE 20.10; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Moon advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Commissioner Bankson inquired if the developers were requesting the change or was this on 

the foresight of the city’s part. 

 

Mr. Moon advised that during the preparation of the Form-Based Code there were a number 

of property owners or developers whose consultants brought attention to staff of some 

4



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 3 

 

inconsistencies within the Form-Based Code. This was addressed at that point and brought 

up again during the proposed Publix development at the corner of Plymouth Sorrento and 

Kelly Park Roads that the project would not be feasible with the proposed FAR requiring 

construction of the parking garage. Staff understood the hardship and supported the change 

in the Floor Area Ratio to 0.15.  He stated we have a horizon date on that with a number of 

residential units that would develop over time in the area.  

 

Commissioner Becker said with the threshold of the horizon of residential units, and if the 

commercial moves in at a pace that does not require that threshold to be met, what is the 

process to revise back to the 3.0 minimum.  

 

Mr. Moon advised it would be considered a large scale amendment to the Comprehensive 

Plan, go back to the state agencies and coordinated with Orange County. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2605. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

2. Ordinance No.  2635 – First Reading - Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Small Scale 

– Project: Kenney Harry Charles McAllister, Located on the Northwest corner of 

North Hermit Smith Road, U.S. 441 intersection. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE 2635 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” RURAL 

TO “CITY” COMMERCIAL FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF HERMIT SMITH ROAD AND 

NORTH OF ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, COMPRISING 0.04 ACRES, 

MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY KENNEY HARRY CHARLES 

MCALLISTER; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 

FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

Phil Martinez, Planner, reviewed the project advising the applicant is proposing a small scale 

future land use change from “County” Rural to “City” Commercial for 0.04 acres at 3591 

West Orange Blossom Trail. He reviewed the surrounding land-uses and advised the intent 

for this PUD was for a RaceTrac Service Station. The Planning Commissioner found the 

project to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of 

the surrounding areas and recommended approval.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

5



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 4 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Becker to approve 

Ordinance No. 2635 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, 

Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

3. Ordinance No.  2636 – First Reading - Change of Zoning – Project: Kenney Harry 

Charles McAllister - Located on the Northwest corner of North Hermit Smith Road, 

U.S. 441 intersection. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE 2636 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 
THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 AGRICULTURE TO “CITY” 
PLANNED UNIT DEVEOLOPMENT FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF HERMIT SMITH ROAD AND 
NORTH OF ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, COMPRISING 0.04 ACRES 
MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY KENNEY HARRY CHARLES 
MCALLISTER; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by 

the clerk.  

 

Mr. Martinez said this was in conjunction with the previously heard agenda item. This 

request is to change the zoning from “County” A-1 to “City” PUD for 3591 West Orange 

Blossom Trail. He reinstated the conditions for approval of this PUD are for open space and 

landscape buffer for what is intended to be a RaceTrac Service Station. On March 13, 2018 

the Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Dean to approve 

Ordinance No. 2636 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, 

Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2637 – First Reading - Change of PUD Master Plan/Preliminary 

Development Plan - Project: City of Apopka, James D. & Deborah M. Lyda, & Citizens 

Bank of Florida - Located on Johns Road, west of S.R. 451. The City Clerk read the title 

as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM PUD(PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT), MIXED-

EC (MIXED EMPLOYMENT CENTER), AND I-1 (RESTRICTED 

INDUSTRIAL) TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT/RESIDENTIAL 
6



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 5 

 

(PUD) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED 

SOUTH OF MARSHALL LAKE AND WEST OF SR 451, COMPRISING 

154.18 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, JAMES D & DEBORAH M. LYDA, AND CITIZENS BANK OF 

FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY,CONFLICTS,AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by 

the clerk.  

 

Mr. Moon said this is a request to rezone property from PUD Mixed EC and I-1 to PUD and 

a Master Plan. This case appeared before City Council on March 7, 2018, at which time the 

applicant requested to continue this hearing to March 21, 2018, so they would have an 

opportunity to meet with affected property owners on the north and west side of Marshall 

Lake. This meeting occurred on March 14, 2018, at the Community Center. The applicant 

and future owner met with residents and listened to their concerns. Luke Classon with 

Appian Engineering will likely present an amendment to address some of the residents’ 

concerns. He reviewed the location on a map and pointed out 15 acres that will be assigned 

to conservation and open space with no development. Lake Doe is to the north and 

Breckenridge to the west, then to the east is the state toll roadway and to the south is 

commercially zoned property. The applicant is requesting a Preliminary Development Plan 

that will include 301 single family homes.  He pointed out a 50 foot wide landscape buffer 

within the plats recorded by Breckenridge that is already established. He advised the Master 

Plan proposes a gated residential community with private roads and infrastructure. The 

development profile is a mix of lots that are 55 foot, 60 foot, and 75 foot wide lots with the 

larger lots located along the lake. There is an inclusion of parks and open space, including 

preservation of wetlands at the northeast and northwest corners. A dock is proposed as an 

access point that will be addressed in Mr. Classon’s presentation. There is a community 

center with a pool house located on the east side of the property. He advised there is not a 

wall proposed adjacent to S.R. 451, but stated there was a 20 foot buffer. The lot sizes range 

from 7,425 square feet up to 10,825 square feet.  He reviewed the setbacks stating this was 

typical for residential communities. The minimum living area is 1,600 square feet for the 

smaller lots and for the 75 foot wide lots a minimum of 1,800 square feet for the minimum 

living area. He advised the Planning Commission and DRC recommended approval with 

deviations. The recommendation is to accept at first reading and hold over for a second 

reading and adoption. 

 

In response to Commissioner Becker inquiring about the driveways, Mr. Moon advised there 

were established guidelines of garage setback of 30 feet to allow for two cars to stack park in 

the driveway.  

 

Luke Classon, Appian Engineering, said since the last meeting they have worked out details 

and concerns through a community meeting. He advised the property west of S.R. 451 and 

south of Marshall Lake Road has a 50 foot buffer. He said they were not proposing the 

removal of any trees and all trees will remain. He reviewed a future land-use map and 

pointed out the three parcels that make up this project and reviewed the proposed zoning. He 

7



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 6 

 

said the previous PUD was in 2006 and has expired requiring this to be rezoned. They are 

proposing full access off of Johns Road and the bridge will be built to City standards. He 

spoke of preservation of the wetlands. Mr. Classon reviewed the access points advising this 

is a gated community.  The third access point is an emergency access only through 

Breckenridge and this development. He reported the community meeting was attended by 25 

members of the adjacent neighborhoods with questions about density, environmental/wetland 

impacts, and lake access. They are proposing 301 homes on the entire development and 

reserved right of 5 dwelling units per acre on property to the south, less than the allowable 

density of 414 lots.  He advised they had an environmental study conducted that listed 

endangered species.  

 

Mark Ausley, Bio-Tech Consulting, reviewed the environmental study and permitting on the 

Marshall Lake project.  He advised this was approved by the St. Johns River Water 

Management District and the Army Corps of Engineers. He stated as part of this plan, an area 

of wetlands will be converted into compensated storage to help the flood plain concerns and 

used as mitigation to restore the impact area recreating what was historically there. They 

noted bald eagles utilizing the lake, but no nests are on their property or vicinity and as such 

there is no regulatory action required. There were no sand skinks located on the property. He 

stated the potential presence of Florida panther came up during the community meeting and 

said this area was clearly outside of the area where Florida panthers are provided protection.  

He reviewed the verified sightings of a panther in Central Florida since 2000.  He pointed out 

on a graphic the consultation area where coordination with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife would 

be required for land development as it pertains to Florida panthers and Central Florida was 

not included in this area of active managed population. He said there were gopher tortoises 

observed and they will be relocated prior to site development and construction.  

 

Mr. Classon said to reiterate, a question from the community meeting was inquiring what the 

environmental benefits were with this development. He stated they would be cleaning up the 

property that was zoned agriculture.  He spoke of conservation preservation and stated the 

only wetlands they are impacting was the previously impacted wetland area of the northwest 

corner of the site where some unauthorized fill had been placed there. This area will be taken 

more to the natural state. They area also preserving roughly 12 acres more of conservation 

area between the south side of Phase 2 and the northeast and northwest areas of the site. He 

said the most important point to those who attended the community meeting was the 

lakefront lots and lake access. He showed the 17 lake front lots on an aerial map stating the 

existing dock will be rebuilt and the existing boat ramp will be extended down to the lake.  

The developer is proposing a compromise that the interior homes only be allowed non-

motorized vessels and language will be added to the HOA documents. He advised the lake 

front lots will have a wall designed on the topography of the site to prevent run-off into the 

lake.  

 

Commissioner Becker asked about property ownership of the lake inquiring where the 

ownership stops, the ground or is it above in terms of the water. 

 

City Attorney Shepard said in some situations the property line extends out beneath the 

water. He said people still have the right to navigate on top of the water as long as it is not a 

private lake or manmade barrow pit.  The deeds need to be reviewed of each individual lot 

8



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 7 

 

owner to determine this.  

 

In response to Commissioner Becker inquiring how the enforcement of the boat ramp would 

be handled, Mr. Classon said they will provide this within the HOA documents as well as the 

PUD ordinance to limit to only the 17 lake front lot owners.  

 

City Attorney Shepard added that if this is a condition of the PUD ordinance, which is a 

condition of zoning and subject to Code Enforcement. 

 

City Council recessed at 8:32 p.m. and reconvened at 8:40 p.m. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Michael Rowe said he had a meeting at his home with other HOA’s and they discussed 

mediations at all the past meetings and came up with a list they felt to be most important. 

These included lake access, size of lots in Phase 1 and size of lots, tree line, and the wall on 

the lake side.  He stated after discussions with Mr. Classon today, the lake access and the 

wall are the main issues they would like to focus on.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer inquired what they desired regarding lake access to which Mr. Rowe said 

access to the dock was fine, but they didn’t want access with boats to the lake except for 

people who live on the lake. He said within his neighborhood people who live on the lake are 

the only ones that have access to the lake. 

 

Scott Hill said he has had communications with several commissioners regarding his 

concerns, the biggest concern being lake access.  He spoke of safety hazards and asked for 

regulations of non-motorized vessels. He said this is a small lake and stated he has seen how 

the water level changes on this lake. He also expressed concerns regarding environmental 

issues and the wildlife in the area. He requested a swale be utilized rather than a wall.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer reiterated the wall was being required by St. Johns River Water 

Management District.  

 

Nina Rowe said if other residents are allowed to access the lake, it will become a party lake. 

She stated she had no problem with the lakefront properties having access.  

 

Theresa Grubbs said she has lived on this lake for 29 years and expressed concerns regarding 

noise levels. She stated if 300 homes are allowed access on this small lake she had great 

concerns regarding noise, trash, and injuries that could occur. She asked the Council to 

please listen to their concerns and only allow access to the lakefront homes.  

 

George Weavy suggested a berm rather than a wall along the lake. She requested an 

independent opinion before all minds are made up regarding this matter.  

 

Patricia Blackwell said she has lived there for 30 years and has seen this lake go up and 

down. She stated every time something is built the lake goes down. She said there should not 

be any kind of motorized vessels allowed on the lake due to the size of the lake. She said a 

9



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 8 

 

more natural way should be used to retain the water rather than building a wall. 

 

Carrie Wierioch spoke of the water levels of the lake being up and down and said the 

retention ponds have dried the lake. She said the hurricane brought the lake back up. She 

expressed concerns of losing her well and septic due to where they are located.  

 

Curtis Poe said he had submitted a letter from his brother who is an environmental 

professional and suggests a way this could be reconfigured so not to require a wall. He said 

motorized vessels will create noise and pollution.  

 

Judy Pepper said she has lived there for 10 years and enjoys living in this areas. She 

expressed concerns about runoff and how the water will be treated, stating it is a healthy lake 

now. She said that boat traffic was a disaster waiting to happen.  

 

Sandra Martinez said she lives in Breckenridge and supports those being affected by this 

development. She asked for a provision regarding the emergency access never be opened to a 

public access. 

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Classon explained the reason for the wall requirement, stating that this process actually 

would help to hydrate the lake. He said that direct runoff was no longer allowed. He stated 

they were in agreement with the emergency access provision. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the lake access and only allowing the 17 lakefront homes access 

and how to regulate this. 

 

Mr. Classon said they would provide a gate limiting access only to the 17 lakefront homes. 

He explained they needed the boat ramp to be able to service the wall.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer asked the developer if they were willing to agree to no lake access by the 

internal homeowners. 

 

Matt Young said they believe their proposal is a reasonable agreement and do not believe it 

to be a safety issue. He stated if the Council desires to restrict the future residents this access, 

then they can abide by that restriction, but would rather not having this restriction.  

 

Mr. Classon said they will have an enhanced dock for access by all residents without the 

ability to launch. 

 

In response to the emergency access, City Attorney Shepard said this was being provided for 

City emergency access and if it was abandoned, the property would go back to the owners.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson to 

approve Ordinance No. 2637 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading, 

subject to the condition of the use of watercraft be permitted only by the owners and 

occupants of direct lake front lots and any boat launch area located within the common 

10



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on March 21, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 9 

 

area shall be restricted by a separate locking gate that only lake front owners shall have 

access. Further the retaining wall shall be acceptable as permitted per the site plan, and 

the emergency access easement to be granted by Breckinridge HOA will be limited only 

to the use of the city for emergency access and shall revert back to the property owners 

on either side of the access point should it ever cease to be used for emergency access. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS – No reports. 

 

MAYOR’S REPORT – Mayor Kilsheimer reported he has had several conversations with 

Mayor-Elect Nelson and will do his best to keep him up to date and pledge cooperation for a 

smooth transition. 

 

Commissioner Velazquez reminded everyone there is a Run-off Election on April 10, 2018, for 

City Council Seat 2.  

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 9:45 p.m. 

 

 

 

        __________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

11



12



COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

Prepared by: 
Department of Finance 

Photo featured on the cover was taken by Robert Sargent, Public Information Officer. 

13



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA  
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT  

TABLE OF CONTENTS  
Year Ended September 30, 2017 

Page 
Number 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION  

TRANSMITTAL LETTER OF THE CITY OF APOPKA .............................................................................  i - vi 

LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS ................................................................................................................  vii 

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART .......................................................................................................................  viii 

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL REPORTING ......................  ix 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT .......................................................................................................  1-3 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ..................................................................................  4-17 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 
Statement of Net Position ..................................................................................................................  18 
Statement of Activities ......................................................................................................................  19 

Fund Financial Statements: 
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds ...............................................................................................  20 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position .......  21 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds .......  22 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities ..............................................................  23 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – 

Budget and Actual – General Fund ............................................................................................  24 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – 

Budget and Actual – Community Redevelopment (CRA) .........................................................  25 
Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds .................................................................................  26-27 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Proprietary Funds ......................  28 
Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds ..................................................................................  29-30 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position – Pension Trust Fund...............................................................  31 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position – Pension Trust Fund ............................................  32 

Notes to the Financial Statements ............................................................................................................   33-64 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 
Schedule of Contributions - General Employees’, Police Officers’ and Firefighters’ Pension Plans ......  65 
Schedule of Changes in the Net Position Liability and Related Ratios -  

General Employees’, Police Officers’ and Firefighters’ Pension Plans - Last 10 Fiscal Years ........  66 
Schedule of Investment Returns - General Employees’, Police Officers’ and Firefighters’  

Pension Plans - Last 10 Fiscal Years .................................................................................................  67 
Schedule of Funding Progress - Other Postemployment Benefits Plan ....................................................  68 
Schedule of Employer Contributions - Other Postemployment Benefits Plan .........................................  68 
 

  

14



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA  
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT  

TABLE OF CONTENTS – Continued  
Year Ended September 30, 2017 

Page 
Number 

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES: 
Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds ..................................................................  69 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds ........................................................................................................  70 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Special Revenue Funds: 

Streets Improvement ..................................................................................................................  71 
Law Enforcement Trust ..............................................................................................................  72 
Transportation Impact Fees ........................................................................................................  73 
Recreation Impact Fees ..............................................................................................................  74 
Stormwater .................................................................................................................................  75 
Grants .........................................................................................................................................  76 
Special Assessment ....................................................................................................................  77 
Police Discretionary ...................................................................................................................  78 
Fire Impact Fees .........................................................................................................................  79 
Police Impact Fees .....................................................................................................................  80 

STATISTICAL SECTION 
Schedule 1 Net Position by Component, Last Ten Fiscal Years ..............................................................  81 
Schedule 2 Changes in Net Position, Last Ten Fiscal Years ....................................................................  82-83 
Schedule 3 Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Fiscal Years ................................................  84 
Schedule 4 Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Fiscal Years .............................  85 
Schedule 5 Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property, Last Ten Fiscal Years ....................  86 
Schedule 6 Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates, Last Ten Fiscal Years .....................................  87 
Schedule 7 Principal Property Taxpayers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago ........................................  88 
Schedule 8 Property Tax Levies and Collections, Last Ten Fiscal Years ................................................  89 
Schedule 9 Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type, Last Ten Fiscal Years .................................................  90 
Schedule 10 Pledged-Revenue Coverage, Last Ten Fiscal Years ............................................................  91 
Schedule 11 Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt .......................................................  92 
Schedule 12 Demographic and Economic Statistics, Last Ten Calendar Years .......................................  93 
Schedule 13 Principal Employers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago ....................................................  94 
Schedule 14 Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program, 

Last Ten Fiscal Years ........................................................................................................................  95 
Schedule 15 Operating Indicators by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years .....................................  96 
Schedule 16 Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years .................................  97 

COMPLIANCE SECTION 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and  

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards......................................................  98-99 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major State Project  
and on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with  
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General ..................................................................................  100-101 

 

Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance ..........................................................................  102 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs ............................................................................................  103 
 

Schedule of Findings and Recommendations ...........................................................................................  104 
 

Independent Accountant’s Report ............................................................................................................  105 
 

Independent Auditor’s Management Letter ..............................................................................................  106-107 
 

Schedule of Observations and Recommendations ....................................................................................  108-109 
 

Management’s Response to Findings and Observations ..........................................................................  110-111 

15



 

 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 

16



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

17



i

18



ii

19



iii 

20



iv

21



v

22



vi

23



vii

Mayor Joseph E. Kilsheimer
Vice-Mayor Billie L. Dean
Commissioner Diane Velazquez
Commissioner Doug Bankson
Commissioner Kyle Becker

Chief Administrative Officer Glenn A. Irby
City Attorney Clifford B. Sheppard
City Clerk Linda F. Goff
Finance Director Pamela N. Barclay
Police Chief Michael McKinley
Fire Chief Charles (Chuck) Carnesale
Community Development Director James K. Hitt
Human Resources Director Sharon P. Thornton
Information Technology Director Robert E. Hippler
Public Services Director R. Jay Davoll
Recreation Director Mariah McCullough

CITY OF APOPKA

ELECTED OFFICIALS

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS

PRINCIPAL CITY OFFICIALS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED 2017

24



viii

Utility Construction Grounds
Sanitation Cemetery

Wastewater Maintenance

Stormwater Facilities Maint
Restoration

Water Treatment
Water Maintenance

Wastewater Treatment

Utilities Public Works

Administration Streets
Design Engineering Fleet

Complexes

Utility Billing
EMS Support Services

Athletics
Budget

Field Services
Building Programs

Crossing Guards

City Clerk

Human 
Resources Finance Fire Police Community 

Development Recreation Information 
Technology

Public 
Services

 CITY OF APOPKA 
 ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

Citizens

City Council

Mayor

Payroll
Purchasing

Risk Management Suppression

City AdministratorCity Attorney

Accounting Planning/Zoning

Dispatch

25



ix

26



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

27



 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 

28



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

29



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
The Honorable Mayor and 

Members of the City Commission 
City of Apopka, Florida 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Apopka, Florida 
(the “City”) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accord-
ance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2017, and the respective 
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary 
comparisons for the General Fund and the Community Redevelopment Fund for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 

1

30



 
The Honorable Mayor and 

Members of the City Commission 
City of Apopka, Florida 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Continued) 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and the other required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate opera-
tional, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supple-
mentary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements.  The introductory section, the other supplementary informa-
tion section, and the statistical section, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial state-
ments and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the other supplementary information is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 

2

31



 
The Honorable Mayor and 

Members of the City Commission 
City of Apopka, Florida 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Concluded) 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 13, 2018, on 
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose 
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 
 
 
MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE, P.A. 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
Orlando, Florida 
April 13, 2018 
 
 

3

32



Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
  
 

As management of the City of Apopka, Florida (the “City”), we offer the readers of these basic financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017.  This 
discussion and analysis is designed to: (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an 
overview of the City’s financial activity, (c) identify changes in the City’s financial position, (d) identify any material 
deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and (e) to identify individual fund issues and/or concerns. 
 
As with other sections of this financial report, the information contained within the Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis (“MD&A”) should be considered only a part of a greater whole.  The reader of this financial statement should 
take time to read and evaluate all sections of this report, including our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i 
through vi, the City’s basic financial statements which begin on page 18, and the Required Supplementary Information 
(“RSI”), which can be found on pages 65 to 68. 
 

 

 
Financial Highlights 

HIGHLIGHTS 

• The City’s net position increased (decreased) during the year as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year 2017    

Governmental Business-Type  Fiscal Year Increase % 
Activities Activities Total 2016 (Decrease) Change 

$81,394,691 $127,666,427 $209,061,118 $200,817,681 $8,243,437 4.10% 
 

• The City’s revenues, excluding transfers, increased (decreased) during the year as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year 2017    

Governmental Business-Type  Fiscal Year  Increase % 
Activities Activities Total 2016 (Decrease) Change 

$45,889,279 $29,674,593  $75,563,872 $66,394,988  $9,168,884  13.8% 
 

• The City’s expenses, excluding transfers, increased (decreased) during the year as follows:    
 

Fiscal Year 2017    

Governmental Business-Type  Fiscal Year  Increase % 
Activities Activities Total 2016 (Decrease) Change 

$50,514,782  $16,805,653  $67,320,435  $74,303,767  ($6,983,332) -9.4% 

 

City Highlights 
 
A description of accomplishments for the current year and projects planned for the coming fiscal year can be found in the 
letter of transmittal.  (See pages i through vi). 
 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 
 
The primary focus of local government’s financial statements historically has been to summarize fund type information. 
The focus, as a result of GASB Statement No. 34, is on both the City as a whole (government-wide) and the major 
individual funds. Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow the user to have a greater understanding, 
allow a broader comparison of relevant data, enhance the readability of the financial statements and enhance the 
accountability of the City’s management.

  

4

33



Management’s Discussion and Analysis – (Continued)  
Understanding and Overview of the Basic Financial Statements 

The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three parts: 1) the government-wide financial statements, 2) the 
fund financial statements, and 3) the notes to the financial statements.  The remainder of the financial statements is 
comprised of the following parts: 1) the RSI consisting of Pension Trust Fund Schedules, Combining and Individual Fund 
Statements and Schedules, 3) the Statistical Section consisting of selected financial and demographic information, 
generally presented on a multi-year basis, and 4) the Single Audit and Other Reports Section consisting of supplemental 
reports pertaining to federal and state Single Audit requirements. 

The MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements and RSI.  The MD&A represents 
management’s examination and analysis of the City’s financial condition and financial performance as a whole.  Summary 
financial statement data, key financial and operational indicators used in the strategic plan, budget and other management 
tools were used for this analysis. 

The basic financial statements now include two types of statements.  The first type of statement consists of government- 
wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements provide both short- and long-term financial information 
about the City’s overall financial status.  The government-wide financial statements are presented by its governmental 
activities and its business-type activities.  The government-wide financial statements report information about the City 
using full accrual accounting methods and economic resources focus, as utilized by similar business activities in the 
private sector.  Information concerning all of the City’s assets and liabilities, both financial and capital, and debt are 
presented whereas the reader can signify the short- and long- term portions.  Likewise, all revenues and expenses 
received during the year, regardless of when cash is received or paid, are reported.  The remaining statements are fund 
financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City government, reporting the City’s operations in more detail than 
the government-wide financial statements.  The governmental fund statements tell how the general government accounts 
for all current financial resources in servicing the community, what was financed in the short term, as well as what remains 
for future spending.  Proprietary fund statements offer short- and long-term financial information about the activities the 
government operates like a business, such as the Utility System which includes Water, Wastewater and Reuse, the 
Sanitation operations, and Airport Fuel.  Fiduciary fund statements are used to account for assets held by the government 
in a trustee capacity.  Currently, there are three pension trust funds, which consist of the General Employees’, Police 
Officers’, and Firefighters’ Retirement Trust Funds, and an Other Post-Employment Benefit Trust (OPEB).  

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to be corporate-like in that all governmental and business-type 
activities are consolidated into columns which add to a total for the Primary Government.  The government-wide financial 
statements consist of a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities.  Both statements represent an overview of 
the City as a whole, separating its operations between Governmental and Business-type Activities.  All information is 
presented utilizing the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.  This method better 
matches revenues and expenses to the period in which the revenue is earned and the expense is attributed.  Fiduciary 
funds, such as pension trust funds, are excluded from these Government-wide Financial Statements because they represent 
money and funds legally set aside for use by the employee groups they benefit.  Their assets and income do not flow 
through these statements, nor are the liabilities for which taxpayers may ultimately be responsible included. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities at the end of its fiscal year, with 
the difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a 
useful indicator of whether the City’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.  Net position increases when revenues 
exceed expenses.  Increases to assets without a corresponding increase to liabilities results in increased net position, which 
indicates an improved financial condition.  The focus of the Statement of Net Position (the “Unrestricted Net Position”) is 
designed to be similar to a bottom line for the City in its Governmental and Business-Type Activities.  This statement, for 
the first time, combines and consolidates governmental funds’ current financial resources (short-term spendable resources) 
with capital assets and long-term obligations. 

The Government-wide Statement of Net Position can be found on page 18 of this report. 

The Statement of Activities presents the results of the City’s operations over the course of the fiscal year and information as 
to how the City’s net position is reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the 
timing of the related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only 
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (ex., delinquent taxes).  The Statement of Activities is focused on both the gross 
and net cost of various activities (governmental and business-type) which are provided by the government’s general tax 
and other revenues.  This is intended to summarize and simplify the user’s analysis of cost of various governmental 
services and the local taxing effort necessary to sustain each of those activities. 

5

34



Management’s Discussion and Analysis – (Continued)  
The Government-wide Statement of Activities can be found on page 19 of this report. 

The Governmental Activities reflects the City’s basic services, including general government, public safety, transportation, 
environmental, and recreation.  Property Taxes, Franchise Fees, Utility Taxes, Licenses and Permits, Intergovernmental 
Revenues and Fines & Forfeitures finance the majority of these services. 

The Business-type Activities reflect private sector type operations (Water, Wastewater, Reclaimed Water, Sanitation and 
Airport Fuel operations), where the fee for service typically covers all or most of the cost of operations, including 
depreciation. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the Fund Financial Statements presentation more familiar. 
The focus is now on Major Funds, rather than fund types.  Funds are established for various purposes and the Fund 
Financial Statements allow the demonstration of sources and uses of funds and/or budgeting compliance associated 
therewith. 

The Governmental Funds presentation is presented on a current financial resources basis.  This is the manner in which the 
financial plan (the budget) is typically developed.  The City adopts an annual appropriations budget for each of its 
governmental funds in accordance with State Statutes and the City Charter. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to 
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in 
the government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the 
government’s near-term financing decisions. 

The City maintains ten individual governmental funds.  The General Fund is considered a major fund and is presented 
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balances.  The Community Redevelopment Agency Fund is also presented separately in the governmental 
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances.  Data 
from the other eight governmental funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each 
of the non-major governmental funds is provided elsewhere in this report. 

The Governmental Fund Financial Statements can be found on pages 20 to 23 of this report. 

Infrastructure Assets 

Historically, a government’s largest group of assets (infrastructure - roads, sidewalks and bridges, etc.) have not been 
reported nor depreciated in government financial statements.  Governmental capital assets, particularly infrastructure 
assets, have only been accounted for using the current financial resources method and have not been expensed annually 
through depreciation or accounted for otherwise. 

The governmental-wide Statement of Net Position requires that these assets be valued and reported within the 
Governmental column.  Additionally, the government must elect to either (a) depreciate these assets over their estimated 
useful lives, or (b) develop a system of asset management designed to maintain the service delivery potential to near 
perpetuity.  If the government develops the asset management system (the modified approach) which periodically (at least 
every third year), by category, measures and demonstrates its maintenance of locally established levels of service 
standards, the government may record its cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation.  The City has elected to depreciate 
these assets over their estimated useful lives. 

Proprietary Funds 

The City maintains three proprietary funds, all of which are enterprise funds.  Enterprise funds are used to account for 
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises – where the intent is that the 
costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis should be financed or recovered through 
user charges.  Currently, the City enterprise funds account for its water, wastewater, reclaimed water, sanitation operations 
and airport fuel.  The water, wastewater and reclaimed water enterprise fund is collectively referred to as the Utility Systems 
Fund, while the Sanitation Fund and the Airport Fuel Fund are the other enterprise funds. 

The City adopts an annual appropriations budget for each of its Enterprise Funds in accordance with State Statutes and the 
City Charter. 

The Enterprise Fund Financial Statements can be found on pages 24 to 30 of this report. 
  

6

35



Management’s Discussion and Analysis – (Continued)  
Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government and are separately 
reported in the statements of fiduciary net position and changes in fiduciary net position.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected 
in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s 
own programs.  Rather, the City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended 
purposes. 

The Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements can be found on pages 31 to 32 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the Government-wide and Fund financial statements. The notes present information about the City’s significant 
accounting policies, account balances and activities, material risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies and 
subsequent events, if any. 

The Notes to the Financial Statements can be found on pages 33 to 64 of this report. 

Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain RSI concerning the 
City’s budgetary compliance and the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. 

RSI can be found on pages 65 to 68 of this report. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are presented immediately 
following the RSI. 

Combining and Individual Fund Statements can be found on pages 69 to 80 of this report. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole 

Net Position - As noted previously, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position.  This year, the City’s assets exceeded liabilities by $209,061,118 at September 30, 2017. 

Approximately 100.0% of the City’s net position reflect its investment in capital assets (land, equipment, buildings, improve-
ments other than buildings, machinery and equipment and infrastructure), less any related debt still outstanding used to 
acquire those assets.  The City uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; so, consequently, these assets 
are not available for future spending.  Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it 
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be liquidated to pay for these liabilities. 

Net position of the City’s governmental activities increased by $1,217,443 and totaled $81,394,691 at the end of the fiscal 
year.  Of this amount, the majority is either restricted as to the purposes it can be used for or is invested in capital assets 
(land, buildings and equipment).  Consequently, unrestricted net position, the part of net position that can be used to finance 
day-to-day operations without constraint established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements, 
totaled ($10,749,809) at the end of 2017.  This negative balance is a result of the impact of reporting the City’s pension and 
OPEB expense and related liability.  See Notes 7 and 8 of the Financial Statements for further details. 

Net position of the City’s business-type activities increased by $7,025,994 and totaled $127,666,427 at the end of the fiscal 
year.  Of this amount, approximately 96.2% is either restricted as to the purposes it can be used for or is invested in capital 
assets (land, buildings and equipment).  Consequently, unrestricted net position, the part of net position that can be used 
to finance day-to-day operations without constraint established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal 
requirements, totaled $4,846,807 at the end of 2017. 

 

 
  

7

36



Management’s Discussion and Analysis – (Continued)  
The following table reflects a summary of Net Position compared to prior year: 

 
 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
As of September 30 

 
 

 Governmental Business-type 
Total 

 activities activities 

 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

Current and other assets $33,178,881  $30,174,318  $25,025,392  $27,847,405  $58,204,273  $58,021,723  

Capital assets 103,429,865  97,956,587  138,724,774  120,412,813  242,154,639  218,369,400  

        Total assets 136,608,746  128,130,905  163,750,166  148,260,218  300,358,912  276,391,123  
       

Total Deferred Outflows of 
Resources 4,951,121  5,533,452  461,895  949,945  5,413,016  6,483,397  

       

Current and other liabilities 9,865,015  7,933,321  7,322,930  3,169,009  17,187,945  11,102,330  

Long-term Liabilities Outstanding 45,639,517  45,069,763  28,824,845  25,221,353  74,464,362  70,291,116  

        Total liabilities 55,504,532  53,003,084  36,147,775  28,390,362  91,652,307  81,393,446  

 
      

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,660,644  484,025  397,859  179,368  5,058,503  663,393  

 
      

Net position:       

Net Investment in Capital Assets 89,746,404  87,116,986  122,538,179  103,140,729  212,284,583  190,257,715  

Restricted 2,398,096  2,482,323  281,441  481,441  2,679,537  2,963,764  

Unrestricted (10,749,809) (9,422,061) 4,846,807  17,018,263  (5,903,002) 7,596,202  

        Total net position $81,394,691  $80,177,248  $127,666,427  $120,640,433  $209,061,118  $200,817,681  

 
For more detailed information see the Statement of Net Position on page 18. 
 
Changes in Net Position - While the Statement of Net Position shows a snapshot of the City’s financial position at the 
end of the fiscal year, the Statement of Changes in Net Position provides answers as to the nature and source of those 
changes.  At September 30, 2017, the City’s combined net position totaled $209,061,118, which is an increase of 
$8,243,437 over last year’s reported $200,817,681.  During this same period, the City’s total revenues increased by 
$9,168,884 to a total of $75,563,872. 
 
  

8

37



Management’s Discussion and Analysis – (Continued)  
The following schedule compares the revenues and expenses for the current and previous fiscal year: 

 
 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
As of September 30 

 
 

 
 
 

  

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Revenues:

Program revenues:

   Charges for services $10,026,575 $9,327,191 $21,606,680 $19,723,021 $31,633,255 $29,050,212 

Operating grants and contributions 1,444,573 1,510,310 764,302 1,020,976        2,208,875        2,531,286 

Capital grants and contributions 3,526,959 2,026,202 5,678,396 5,395,043        9,205,355        7,421,245 

General revenues:                       -                         -   

   Property taxes 9,880,495 7,874,031                       -                         -          9,880,495        7,874,031 

   Fuel taxes 1,623,250 1,448,906                       -                         -          1,623,250        1,448,906 

Communication services taxes                                                                                       1,488,595 1,419,756                       -                         -          1,488,595        1,419,756 

½ Cent sales tax                                                                                       7,372,446 6,472,492                       -                         -          7,372,446        6,472,492 

State shared revenues 2,321,583 2,154,294                       -                         -          2,321,583        2,154,294 

Franchise fees and utility taxes                                                                                        6,795,550 6,100,757 63,538 47,338        6,859,088        6,148,095 

   Sale of capital assets                     -                      -                         -                         -                         -                         -   

Unrestricted investment earnings                                                                                                   155,322 129,577 113,538 112,761            268,860            242,338 

   Miscellaneous revenues 1,253,931 246,351 1,448,139 1,385,982        2,702,070        1,632,333 

           Total revenues 45,889,279 38,709,867 29,674,593 27,685,121 75,563,872 66,394,988

Expenses:

   General government 10,450,176 10,551,924                       -                         -        10,450,176      10,551,924 

   Public safety 29,189,880 33,942,557                       -                         -        29,189,880      33,942,557 

   Physical Environment 335,011 152,252                       -                         -              335,011            152,252 

   Transportation 6,129,087 5,661,534                       -                         -          6,129,087        5,661,534 

   Economic Environment 283,246 241,467                       -                         -              283,246            241,467 

   Culture and recreation 3,899,524 3,973,536                       -                         -          3,899,524        3,973,536 

   Interest on long-term debt 227,858 260,543                       -                         -              227,858            260,543 

   Utility system                     -                      -   13,309,805 15,312,542      13,309,805      15,312,542 

   Sanitation                     -                      -   3,165,186 3,884,273 3,165,186 3,884,273

   Airport Fuel                     -                      -   330,662 323,139 330,662            323,139 

          Total expenses 50,514,782 54,783,813 16,805,653 19,519,954 67,320,435 74,303,767
Increase (decrease) in net position 
before transfers

(4,625,503) (16,073,946) 12,868,940 8,165,167 8,243,437 (7,908,779)

Transfers 5,842,946 5,984,663 (5,842,946) (5,984,663)                       -                         -   

Increase (decrease) in net position 1,217,443 (10,089,283) 7,025,994 2,180,504 8,243,437 (7,908,779)

Net position– beginning 80,177,248 90,266,531 120,640,433 118,459,929 200,817,681 208,726,460

Net position – September 30 $81,394,691 $80,177,248 $127,666,427 $120,640,433 $209,061,118 $200,817,681 

Governmental                
activities

Business-type                 
activities

Total

9

38



Management’s Discussion and Analysis – (Continued)  
The following is a summary of source of revenue for the City: 
 
 

Citywide Source of Revenue 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
Governmental Activities - Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $1,217,443. 
 
  

FY 17 FY 16
Revenues Revenues

Charges for Services 31,633,255$ 41.9% 29,050,212$ 43.8%
Operating Grants and Contributions 2,208,875     2.9% 2,531,286     3.8%
Capital Grants and Contributions 9,205,355     12.2% 7,421,245     11.2%
Property Taxes 9,880,495     13.1% 7,874,031     11.9%
Sales and Use Taxes 6,639,790     8.8% 6,023,518     9.1%
Franchise Fees 3,331,143     4.4% 2,993,239     4.5%
Intergovernmental Revenues 9,694,029     12.8% 8,626,786     13.0%
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets -                0.0% -                0.0%
Investment Earnings 268,860        0.4% 242,338        0.4%
Misc Revenues 2,702,070     3.5% 1,632,333     2.5%
Total Revenues 75,563,872$ 100.0% 66,394,988$ 100.0%

% Of Total % Of Total

Charges for Services
42%

Operating Grants and 
Contributions

3%

Capital Grants and 
Contributions

12%

Property Taxes
13% Sales and Use Taxes

9%
Franchise Fees

4%

Intergovernmental 
Revenues

13%

Gain on Sale of Capital 
Assets

0%

Investment Earnings
0%

Misc Revenues
4%

Citywide Source of Revenue

10

39



Management’s Discussion and Analysis – (Continued)  
The following is a summary of the City’s Revenues by Source – Governmental Activities: 

 
 

Revenues by Source – Governmental Activities 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  

FY 17 FY 16
Revenues Revenues

Charges for Services 10,026,575$ 19.4% 9,327,191$   20.9%
Operating Grants and Contributions 1,444,573     2.8% 1,510,310     3.4%
Capital Grants and Contributions 3,526,959     6.8% 2,026,202     4.5%
Property Taxes 9,880,495     19.1% 7,874,031     17.6%
Sales and Use Taxes 6,639,790     12.8% 6,023,518     13.5%
Franchise Fees 3,267,605     6.3% 2,945,901     6.6%
Intergovernmental Revenues 9,694,029     18.7% 8,626,786     19.3%
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets -                0.0% -               0.0%
Investment Earnings 155,322        0.3% 129,577        0.3%
Misc Revenues 1,253,931     2.4% 246,351        0.6%
Transfers 5,842,946     11.3% 5,984,663     13.4%
Total Revenues 51,732,225$ 100.0% 44,694,530$ 100.0%

% Of 
Total

% Of 
Total

Charges for Services
19%

Operating Grants and 
Contributions

3%

Capital Grants and 
Contributions

7%

Property Taxes
19%

Sales and Use Taxes
13%

Franchise Fees
6% Intergovernmental 

Revenues
19%

Gain on Sale of Capital 
Assets

0%

Investment Earnings
0%

Misc Revenues
3%

Transfers
11%

Governmental Activities Source of Revenue

11

40



Management’s Discussion and Analysis – (Continued)  
The following is a summary of the City’s Program Expenses and Revenues - Governmental Activities: 
 

Program Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities 
 

 
 
 

Program Revenues and Program Expenses - Governmental Activities 
 

 
 
A comparison of the City’s functional program revenues and costs of providing governmental-type services to its citizens 
is useful in identifying the capabilities of producing revenues sufficient to operate its programs. 
 
Operating expenses of the governmental-type activities decreased in 2017 to $50,514,782 as compared to $54,783,813 in 
2016.  The City has remained constant in its efforts to maintain and control costs. 
 
An individual comparison of the City’s functional program revenues and costs of providing program services to its citizens 
is useful in identifying the programs, and the extent to which each is dependent on taxes and other non-exchange 
revenues to subsidize their program operations. 

FY 17 % of FY 17 % of
Revenues Total Expenses Total

General Government 5,167,241$   34.5% 10,450,176$ 20.7%
Public Safety 2,506,292     16.7% 29,189,880   57.8%
Physical Environment 420,852        2.8% 335,011        0.7%
Transportation 2,907,430     19.4% 6,129,087     12.1%
Economic Environment 3,008,658     20.1% 283,246        0.6%
Parks and Recreation 987,634        6.5% 3,899,524     7.7%
Interest on Long-Term Debt -                0.0% 227,858        0.5%
Totals 14,998,107$ 100.0% 50,514,782$ 100.0%

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

General
Government

Public Safety Physical
Environment

Transportation Economic
Environment

Parks and
Recreation

Interest on
Long-Term

Debt

Revenues Expenses

12

41



Management’s Discussion and Analysis – (Continued) 
 

The following is a summary of the City’s Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities: 
 
 

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities 

 
 

 
 

 
 
The primary sources of revenues for business-type activities are through charges for services and capital grants and 
contributions and are useful in identifying how revenues are generated to operate its programs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

FY 17 FY 16
Revenues Revenues

Charges for Services 21,606,680$ 72.8% 19,723,021$ 71.2%
Operating Grants and Contributions 764,302        2.6% 1,020,976     3.7%
Capital Grants and Contributions 5,678,396     19.1% 5,395,043     19.5%
Franchise Fees 63,538          0.2% 47,338          0.2%
Investment Earnings 113,538        0.4% 112,761        0.4%
Misc Revenues 1,448,139     4.9% 1,385,982     5.0%
Total Revenues 29,674,593$ 100.0% 27,685,121$ 100.0%

% Of 
Total

% Of 
Total

Charges for Services
71%

Operating Grants and 
Contributions

4%

Capital Grants and 
Contributions

20%

Franchise Fees
0%

Investment Earnings
0%

Misc Revenues
5%

Business-type Activities Source of Revenue

13

42



Management’s Discussion and Analysis – (Continued) 
 

The following is a summary of the City’s Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities: 
 
 

Program Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
A comparison of the City’s functional program revenues and costs of providing business-type services to its customers is 
useful in identifying the capabilities of producing revenues sufficient to operate its programs. 
 
Expenses of the business-type activities, including transfers, decreased in 2017 to $22,648,599 as compared to 
$25,504,617 in 2016. 
 
Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds - The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements.  
In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for 
spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
  

FY 17 % of FY 17 % of
Revenues Total Expenses Total

Utility System 23,289,989$ 83.0% 13,309,805$ 79.2%
Sanitation 4,422,879     15.8% 3,165,186     18.8%
Airport 336,510        1.2% 330,662        2.0%
Totals 28,049,378$ 100.0% 16,805,653$ 100.0%

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

Utility System Sanitation Airport

Revenues Expenses

14

43



Management’s Discussion and Analysis – (Continued) 
 

As the City completed the current fiscal year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $26,386,933, 
which was $1,754,838 more than the $24,632,095 reported last year.  Of the total fund balance, $2,398,096 or 9.0% is 
restricted for specific purposes by bond ordinance, action of law, accounting standard requirements or other factors 
outside management of the City.  In addition, the City Council has at various times committed certain funds for specific 
purposes. Committed monies differ from restricted monies in that management can easily change the use for the funds 
whereas for restricted monies, an outside influence requires the restriction and those amounts cannot be easily changed 
without violating a bond provision, aspect of law or accounting standard.  At the end of Fiscal Year 2017, 50.0% or 
$13,248,804 of the fund balance was committed. 
 
Approximately 37.0% or $9,784,896 of the combined fund balance constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available 
for spending at the government’s discretion.  Another 3.0% or $855,809 of this amount is assigned to indicate that it is not 
available for new spending unless management designates it as unassigned. 
 

 
 

 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. As of September 30, 2017, the unassigned fund balance in the 
General Fund totaled $9,913,103.  As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned 
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents approximately 20.7% of 
total General Fund expenditures of $47,941,437.  Total net position in the General Fund increased by $1,837,080 during the 
current fiscal year. 
 
An operating reserve equal to two months’ operating expenses in the General Fund should be maintained. At September 30, 
2017, the operating reserve calculates to $7,990,240 and the unassigned fund balance exceeds this reserve amount by 
$1,922,863. 
 
Proprietary Funds - The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Unrestricted net position in all Proprietary Funds at the end of the current fiscal year as shown on the Proprietary Fund 
statements amounted to $4,846,807 compared to $17,018,263 in the prior year, which is a decrease of $12,171,456 over the 
prior year. 

Restricted
10%

Committed
50%

Assigned
3%

Unassigned
37%

Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 

15

44



Management’s Discussion and Analysis – (Continued) 
 

An operating reserve equal to three months’ operating expenses in the Proprietary Funds should be maintained.  At 
September 30, 2017, the operating reserve calculates to $4,017,997 and the unrestricted net position available equals 
$4,846,807 resulting in a surplus of $828,810 above the reserve requirements. 
 
Budgetary Highlights 
 
The budget is revised throughout the year to recognize projects carried over from the previous year, grant awards received 
during the year and to adjust budgets to reflect actual circumstances.  Normally, budget adjustments are typically minor in 
nature.  Overall budgetary control is achieved through continuous review by the Department Directors and the Finance 
Director. 
 
The Mayor of Apopka is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any 
revisions that alter the total revenues, reserves, or expenditures of any fund must be approved by a majority vote on the City 
Council.  During the fiscal year, various budget adjustments were performed and the budgeted amounts shown on the 
financial statements are as originally adopted and further adjusted.   
 
Variances in General Fund Revenues compared to Final Budget 
 
General Fund revenues in the current year were $2,880,588 more than budgeted, with all categories coming in over budget. 
 
Variances in General Fund Expenditures compared to Final Budget 
 
General Fund expenditures in the current year were $2,635,853 less than budgeted.  This is primarily due to the combined 
efforts of the City departments to control expenditures in light of minimal increases in property taxes and state-supported 
revenues.  A portion of this excess will be used to cover carryover purchase orders and capital expenditures. 
 
Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets - At September 30, 2017, the City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities totaled $242,154,639.  This investment in capital assets, net of depreciation, for all activities is reflected at 
September 30, 2017 as follows: 
 

Capital Assets 
 

 
 
 
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the financial statements.  
 
Long Term Debt - At year-end, the City had $30,820,648 in notes and bonds outstanding.  The City has one note secured 
by Recreation Impact Fees and no notes secured by ad-valorem taxes.  All of the remaining notes are secured by non-
ad-valorem tax revenues.  More detailed information about the City’s long-term debt is presented in Note 6 to the financial 
statements. 
  

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

Land 27,784,782$       7,924,275$       35,709,057$    
Buildings 13,471,860         21,530,530       35,002,390      
Improvements 101,447,796       133,777,981     235,225,777    
Machinery and Equipment 24,739,667         10,746,084       35,485,751      
Automotive Equipment 14,098,812         7,607,849         21,706,661      
Construction in Progress 3,666,963           23,559,235       27,226,198      
Intangibles 469,838              -                   469,838           
Total Capital Assets 185,679,718       205,145,954     390,825,672    
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (82,249,853)        (66,421,180)     (148,671,033)   
Total Capital Assets - Net 103,429,865$     138,724,774$   242,154,639$  

16

45



Management’s Discussion and Analysis – (Continued) 
 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES 
 

Many factors are considered each year by the City Council in its efforts to establish an operating budget, to evaluate its 
personnel needs, and to develop uniform user fees that are fair, reasonable, and adequately recover costs.  Some of the 
major factors considered in this process are the local economy, labor force, unemployment rates, and inflation rates. 
 

• The more recent estimates available for unemployment data in Apopka, Orange County, and the state of 
Florida are compiled by the Orange County Economic Development Department. Their estimated 
unemployment rates are as follows: 

  Orange State of 
Apopka County Florida 

September 2017 3.9% 3.5% 4.4 
September 2016 4.0% 4.3% 4.7% 

Percentage Change -0.1% -0.8%             - 0.3% 
 

• For 2017, the U.S. Census Bureau estimated the City’s population at 50,000. 
 
• Inflationary trends for Orange County compare favorably to those trends experienced at the state and 

national levels. 
 
• The economy is showing continued signs of improvement, as revenues appear to be stabilizing and 

increasing in some areas, and are expected to improve over the long run. 
 
• During its 2007 legislative session, the Florida Legislature approved a tax reform package that required all 

cities and counties to cut property taxes.  A cap on future property tax revenues was imposed based on the 
rate of personal income growth and new construction.  Local governments may override the cap.  The 
method for the override will vary based on the magnitude of the local government’s action (escalating from 
a supermajority vote of the local governing body, to a unanimous vote of the local governing body.) 

 
• On January 29, 2008, the Florida electorate approved an amendment to the Florida Constitution relative to 

property taxation.  This amendment (referred to as Amendment 1) was placed on the ballot by the Florida 
Legislature at a special session held in October 2007.  With respect to homestead property, Amendment 1 
increases the current $25,000 homestead exemption by another $25,000 (for property values between 
$50,000 and $75,000), except for school district taxes.  Amendment 1 also allows property owners to transfer 
(make portable) up to $500,000 of their Save Our Homes benefits to their next homestead when they move.  
Save Our Homes became effective in 1995 and limits (caps) the annual increase in assessed value for 
homestead property to three percent (3%) or the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index, whichever 
is less. 

 
• With respect to non-homestead property, Amendment 1 limits (caps) the annual increase in assessed value 

for non-homestead property (businesses, industrial property, rental property, second homes, etc.) to ten 
percent (10%), except for school district taxes.  The Amendment also provides a $25,000 exemption for 
tangible personal property. 

 
• Amendment 1 became effective with the budget year beginning on October 1, 2008, with the exception of 

the ten percent (10%) assessment cap on non-homestead property which became effective on January 1, 
2010 (budget year beginning on October 1, 2010.) 

 

 
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a general overview of 
the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives.  Questions concerning any of 
the information provided in this report, or requests for additional information, should be addressed to the Finance 
Director, City of Apopka, Florida, 120 E Main Street, Apopka, FL 32703. 

17

46



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

47



 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

48



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

49



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30, 2017

 Governmental 
Activities 

 Business-Type 
Activities  Total 

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 29,165,383$          18,567,164$         47,732,547$            
Cash with Fiscal Agent -                            1,052,475             1,052,475                
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,736,575              1,322,965             3,059,540                
Investments 80,585                   -                           80,585                     
Accounts Receivable (Net) 1,063,056              3,383,751             4,446,807                
Due from Other Governments 1,023,954              224,311                1,248,265                
Inventories 99,328                   474,726                574,054                   
Deposits 10,000                   -                           10,000                     

31,451,745            31,483,509           62,935,254              
71,978,120            107,241,265         179,219,385            

Total Assets 136,608,746          163,750,166         300,358,912            

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
-                            171,427                171,427                   

4,951,121              290,468                5,241,589                
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,951,121              461,895                5,413,016                

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 2,836,507              4,722,379             7,558,886                
Due to Other Governments 1,585,102              -                           1,585,102                
Accrued Liabilities 689,489                 116,261                805,750                   
Accrued Interest Payable 81,832                   -                           81,832                     
Customer Utility Deposits -                            1,041,524             1,041,524                
Unearned Revenue 615,480                 152,421                767,901                   
Deposits 34,175                   -                           34,175                     
Long-term Liabilities:

Due Within One Year
Bonds Payable 165,000                 800,000                965,000                   
Notes Payable 2,413,298              247,000                2,660,298                
Capital Lease 423,601                 -                           423,601                   
Compensated Absences 1,020,531              243,345                1,263,876                

Due in More Than One Year
Bonds Payable 179,761                 15,062,022           15,241,783              
Notes Payable 7,735,592              7,843,273             15,578,865              
Capital Lease 2,766,209              -                           2,766,209                
Compensated Absences 942,029                 224,626                1,166,655                
Net Pension Liability 19,326,666            1,790,184             21,116,850              
Other Postemployment Benefits 14,689,260            3,904,740             18,594,000              
Total Liabilities 55,504,532            36,147,775           91,652,307              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
4,660,644              397,859                5,058,503                

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,660,644              397,859                5,058,503                

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 89,746,404            122,538,179         212,284,583            
Restricted For:

Capital Improvements -                            281,441                281,441                   
Street Improvements 1,400,041              -                           1,400,041                
Law Enforcement 336,534                 -                           336,534                   
Public Safety 42,755                   -                           42,755                     
Culture and Recreation 2,717                     -                           2,717                       
Capital Projects 616,049                 -                           616,049                   

Unrestricted (Deficit) (10,749,809)           4,846,807             (5,903,002)               
Total Net Position 81,394,691$          127,666,427$       209,061,118$           

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Capital Assets, not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net of Depreciation

Deferred Outflows for Pensions

Deferred Inflows for Pensions

Deferred Outflows for Refunding

18

50



 Expenses 
 Charges for 

Services 
 Operating Grants 
and Contributions 

 Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

 Governmental 
Activities 

 Business-Type 
Activities  Total 

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

General Government 10,450,176$        5,035,980$            131,261$              -$                              (5,282,935)$         -$                         (5,282,935)$        
Public Safety 29,189,880          1,309,862              1,196,430             -                                (26,683,588)         -                           (26,683,588)        
Physical Environment 335,011               -                            -                           420,852                     85,841                 -                           85,841                
Transportation 6,129,087            -                            32,059                  2,875,371                  (3,221,657)           -                           (3,221,657)          
Economic Environment 283,246               3,003,569              -                           5,089                         2,725,412             -                           2,725,412           
Culture and Recreation 3,899,524            677,164                 84,823                  225,647                     (2,911,890)           -                           (2,911,890)          
Interest on Long-Term Debt 227,858               -                            -                           -                                (227,858)              -                           (227,858)             

Total Governmental Activities 50,514,782          10,026,575            1,444,573             3,526,959                  (35,516,675)         -                           (35,516,675)        

Business-Type Activities:
Utility System 13,309,805          16,847,291            764,302                5,678,396                  -                           9,980,184            9,980,184           
Sanitation 3,165,186            4,422,879              -                           -                                -                           1,257,693            1,257,693           
Airport Fuel 330,662               336,510                 -                           -                                -                           5,848                   5,848                  

Total Business-Type Activities 16,805,653          21,606,680            764,302                5,678,396                  -                           11,243,725          11,243,725         

Total Primary Government 67,320,435$        31,633,255$          2,208,875$           9,205,355$                (35,516,675)         11,243,725          (24,272,950)        

General Revenues:
   Property Tax 9,880,495             -                           9,880,495           
   Gas Tax 1,623,250             -                           1,623,250           
   Utility Tax 3,527,945             -                           3,527,945           
   Communication Services Tax 1,488,595             -                           1,488,595           
   1/2 Cent Sales Tax 7,372,446             -                           7,372,446           
   State Shared Revenues 2,321,583             -                           2,321,583           
   Franchise Fees 3,267,605             63,538                 3,331,143           
   Investment Earnings 155,322               113,538               268,860              
   Miscellaneous 1,253,931             1,448,139            2,702,070           
Transfers 5,842,946             (5,842,946)           -                         
Total General Revenues/Transfers 36,734,118           (4,217,731)           32,516,387         
Change in Net Position 1,217,443             7,025,994            8,243,437           
Net Position - Beginning 80,177,248           120,640,433        200,817,681       
Net Position - Ending 81,394,691$         127,666,427$       209,061,118$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS

Program Revenues

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

19

51



 General 

 Community 
Redevelopment 

(CRA) 

 Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds 

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
ASSETS   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 16,448,145$       2,091,524$         10,625,714$       29,165,383$       
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents -                         -                         1,736,575           1,736,575           
Investments 80,585                -                         -                         80,585                
Accounts Receivable 1,026,556           -                         36,500                1,063,056           
Due from Other Governments 749,590              -                         274,364              1,023,954           
Inventories 99,328                -                         -                         99,328                
Other Assets - Deposit 10,000                -                         -                         10,000                

Total Assets 18,414,204$       2,091,524$         12,673,153$       33,178,881$       

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND
 BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 2,362,304$         -$                       474,203$            2,836,507$         
Due to Other Governments 1,585,102           -                         -                         1,585,102           
Accrued Liabilities 642,242              -                         47,247                689,489              
Deposits 30,385                -                         3,790                  34,175                
Unearned Revenues 615,480              -                         -                         615,480              

Total Liabilities 5,235,513           -                         525,240              5,760,753           

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable Revenues 898,000              -                         133,195              1,031,195           

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 898,000              -                         133,195              1,031,195           

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:

Inventory 99,328                -                         -                         99,328                
Restricted:

Street Improvements -                         -                         1,400,041           1,400,041           
Law Enforcement -                         -                         336,534              336,534              
Pension Beneficiaries -                         -                         -                         -                         
Fire 42,755                -                         -                         42,755                
Culture and Recreation 2,717                  -                         -                         2,717                  
Capital Projects 616,049              -                         -                         616,049              

Committed:
Transportation Improvements -                         -                         7,099,522           7,099,522           
Recreation Improvements -                         -                         590,838              590,838              
Stormwater Improvements -                         -                         2,172,797           2,172,797           
Community Redevelopment -                         2,091,524           -                         2,091,524           
Law Enforcement -                         -                         303,217              303,217              
Impact Fees -                         -                         239,976              239,976              
Storage Retention 229,963              -                         -                         229,963              
Tree Bank 520,967              -                         -                         520,967              

Assigned:
Culture and Recreation 555,809              -                         -                         555,809              
Insurance 300,000              -                         -                         300,000              

Unassigned 9,913,103           -                         (128,207)             9,784,896           

Total Fund Balances 12,280,691         2,091,524           12,014,718         26,386,933         

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances 18,414,204$       2,091,524$         12,673,153$       33,178,881$       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. 

September 30, 2017
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

20

52



RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30, 2017

Total fund balances of governmental funds 26,386,933$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 103,429,865       

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are
applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in
governmental funds.

Deferred outflows of resources for pensions 4,951,121$          
Deferred inflows of resources for pensions (4,660,644)          290,477              

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 
accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities.  Interest on long-term 
debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized 
as an expenditure when due.  All liabilities--both current and 
long-term--are reported in the statement of net position.  Long-term 
liabilities at year-end consist of:

Bonds payable (335,000)             
Notes payable (10,148,890)        
Capital lease (3,189,810)          
Accrued interest payable (81,832)               
Other postemployment benefits (14,689,260)        
Net pension liability (19,326,666)        
Compensated absences (1,962,560)          (49,734,018)        

Note premiums are reported in the governmental funds when first
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
government-wide statements. (9,761)                 

Deferred inflows from federal and state grants recognized as revenue
of the current period. 1,031,195           

Total net position of governmental activities 81,394,691$       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

21

53



 General 

 Community 
Redevelopment 

(CRA) 

 Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds 

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

REVENUES
Taxes 15,567,049$           309,301$          1,623,250$         17,499,600$       
Licenses, Fees and Permits 6,855,004               -                        -                          6,855,004           
Special Assessments -                              -                        65,094                65,094                
Impact Fees -                              -                        3,331,797           3,331,797           
Intergovernmental Revenues 10,134,502             -                        372,498              10,507,000         
Charges for Services 2,326,003               -                        1,108,858           3,434,861           
Fines and Forfeitures 2,261,681               -                        25,709                2,287,390           
Investment Earnings 89,060                    10,397              55,865                155,322              
Miscellaneous Revenues 1,737,424               -                        13,655                1,751,079           

Total Revenues 38,970,723             319,698            6,596,726           45,887,147         

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government 8,377,008               -                        14,312                8,391,320           
Public Safety 32,203,539             -                        360,343              32,563,882         
Physical Environment 139,200                  -                        215,647              354,847              
Transportation 946,284                  -                        6,317,889           7,264,173           
Economic Environment -                              283,246            -                          283,246              
Culture and Recreation 3,502,929               -                        210,369              3,713,298           

Debt Service:
Principal Payments 2,520,917               -                        -                          2,520,917           
Interest and Fiscal Charges 251,560                  -                        -                          251,560              
Total Expenditures 47,941,437             283,246            7,118,560           55,343,243         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (8,970,714)              36,452              (521,834)             (9,456,096)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 6,102,742               -                        821,590              6,924,332           
Transfers (Out) (785,965)                 -                        (295,421)             (1,081,386)         
Capital Lease Proceeds 2,967,988               -                        -                          2,967,988           
Note Proceeds 2,400,000               -                        -                          2,400,000           

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 10,684,765             -                        526,169              11,210,934         

Net Change in Fund Balances 1,714,051               36,452              4,335                  1,754,838           

Fund Balances - Beginning 10,566,640             2,055,072         12,010,383         24,632,095         

Fund Balances - Ending 12,280,691$           2,091,524$       12,014,718$       26,386,933$       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

22

54



Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 1,754,838$           

Governmental funds report capital purchases as expenditures.  However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Expenditures for capital assets 10,794,071$      
Contributions of capital assets -                         
Less current year depreciation (5,320,793)         

5,473,278             
The issuance of notes and similar long-term debt provides current financial

resources to governmental funds and thus contribute to the change in fund balance. 
In the statement of net position, however, issuing debt increases long-term liabilities
and does not affect the statement of activities.  Similarly, repayment of principal is
an expenditure in the governmental funds, but reduces the liability in the statement
of net position.  The amounts of the items that make up these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items are:

Issuance of debt:
Issuance of notes payable (2,400,000)         
Issuance of capital lease (2,967,988)         

Principal repayments:
Notes payable 2,520,917          (2,847,071)            

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in governmental funds, expenditures
are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with expendable available
financial resources. In the statement of activities, however, which is presented on the
accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are reported regardless of when financial
resources are available. In addition, interest on long-term debt is not recognized under
the modified accrual basis of accounting until due, rather than as it accrues. These
adjustments are as follows:

Compensated absences (260,988)            
Other postemployment benefits (126,123)            
Accrued interest on long-term debt 20,490               (366,621)               

Governmental funds report City pension contributions as expenditures. In the statement of
activities, the cost of pension benefits earned, net of contributions, is reported as pension
expense.

Difference between pension contributions and net pension expense (2,802,325)            

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items. 3,212                    

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when both the measurable and available criteria have been met.
Under full accrual accounting, the revenues would be recognized when
earned. 2,132                    

Change in net position of governmental activities 1,217,443$           

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

23

55



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Original 
Budget

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
Taxes 14,747,525$    14,747,525$     15,567,049$         819,524$                   
Licenses, Fees and Permits 5,817,000        5,817,000         6,855,004             1,038,004                  
Intergovernmental Revenues 10,011,750      10,011,750       10,134,502           122,752                     
Charges for Services 2,412,360        2,412,360         2,326,003             (86,357)                      
Fines and Forfeitures 2,149,500        2,149,500         2,261,681             112,181                     
Investment Earnings 57,500             57,500              89,060                  31,560                       
Miscellaneous Revenues 837,000           894,500            1,737,424             842,924                     

Total Revenues 36,032,635      36,090,135       38,970,723           2,880,588                  

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government 6,363,001        6,548,896         8,377,008             (1,828,112)                 
Public Safety 31,566,627      32,858,027       32,203,539           654,488                     
Physical Environment 2,277,522        2,397,879         139,200                2,258,679                  
Transportation 2,846,677        3,067,345         946,284                2,121,061                  
Culture and Recreation 2,701,591        2,761,086         3,502,929             (741,843)                    

Debt Service:
Principal Payments 2,703,026        2,703,026         2,520,917             182,109                     
Interest and Fiscal Charges 241,031           241,031            251,560                (10,529)                      

Total Expenditures 48,699,475      50,577,290       47,941,437           2,635,853                  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
   Over (Under) Expenditures (12,666,840)     (14,487,155)      (8,970,714)            5,516,441                  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 6,357,867        6,357,867         6,102,742             (255,125)                    
Transfers (Out) (596,102)          (596,102)           (785,965)               (189,863)                    
Other Financing Sources 5,110,245        5,110,245         5,367,988             257,743                     

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 10,872,010      10,872,010       10,684,765           (187,245)                    

Net Change in Fund Balances (1,794,830)       (3,615,145)        1,714,051             5,329,196                  

Fund Balances - Beginning 10,630,726      10,630,726       10,566,640           (64,086)                      

Fund Balance - Ending 8,835,896$      7,015,581$       12,280,691$         5,265,110$                

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

Variance with Final 
Budget Positive 

(Negative)

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

24

56



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT (CRA)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Original 
Budget

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
Taxes 90,000$            90,000$            309,301$              219,301$                   
Intergovernmental Revenues 140,000            140,000            -                            (140,000)                    
Investment Earnings 5,000                5,000                10,397                  5,397                         

Total Revenues 235,000            235,000            319,698                84,698                       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Economic Environment 2,285,439         2,285,439         283,246                2,002,193                  
Total Expenditures 2,285,439         2,285,439         283,246                2,002,193                  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
   Over (Under) Expenditures (2,050,439)       (2,050,439)        36,452                  2,086,891                  

Net Change in Fund Balances (2,050,439)       (2,050,439)        36,452                  2,086,891                  

Fund Balances - Beginning 2,055,072         2,055,072         2,055,072             -                                 

Fund Balance - Ending 4,633$              4,633$              2,091,524$           2,086,891$                

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Variance with Final 
Budget Positive 

(Negative)

25

57



Nonmajor

 Utility System  Sanitation  Airport Fuel  Totals 

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,595,570$    915,170$         56,424$           18,567,164$    
Cash with Fiscal Agent 1,052,475        -                       -                       1,052,475        
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Customer Utility Deposits 1,041,524        -                       -                       1,041,524        
Capital Improvements 281,441           -                       -                       281,441           

Accounts Receivable, Net 2,740,905        642,846           -                       3,383,751        
Inventories 446,798           -                       27,928             474,726           
Due from Other Governments 224,311           -                       -                       224,311           
Total Current Assets 23,383,024      1,558,016        84,352             25,025,392      

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:

Land 7,924,275        -                       -                       7,924,275        
Buildings 21,505,680      -                       -                       21,505,680      
Infrastructure 133,802,832    -                       -                       133,802,832    
Equipment and Machinery 9,538,631        1,207,453        -                       10,746,084      
Vehicles 2,871,306        4,736,543        -                       7,607,849        
Construction in Progress 23,559,234      -                       -                       23,559,234      

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (62,286,617)     (4,134,563)       -                       (66,421,180)     
Total Capital Assets (Net) 136,915,341    1,809,433        -                       138,724,774    

Total Noncurrent Assets 136,915,341    1,809,433        -                       138,724,774    

Total Assets 160,298,365    3,367,449        84,352             163,750,166    

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Amount on Refunding 171,427           -                       -                       171,427           
Deferred Outflows for Pensions 235,141           55,327             -                       290,468           

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 406,568           55,327             -                       461,895           

Continued

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
September 30, 2017

 Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds 

Major

26

58



Nonmajor
 Utility System  Sanitation  Airport Fuel  Totals 

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 4,580,316$      141,255$         808$                4,722,379$      
Accrued Liabilities 94,970             21,291             -                       116,261           
Compensated Absences 212,422           30,923             -                       243,345           
Customer Utility Deposits 1,041,524        -                       -                       1,041,524        
Current Portion of Bonds Payable 800,000           -                       -                       800,000           
Current Portion of Notes Payable -                       247,000           -                       247,000           
Unearned Revenue 152,421           -                       -                       152,421           
Total Current Liabilities 6,881,653        440,469           808                  7,322,930        

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences 196,082           28,544             -                       224,626           
Bonds Payable 15,062,022      -                       -                       15,062,022      
Notes Payable 7,594,273        249,000           -                       7,843,273        
Other Postemployment Benefits Liability 3,160,980        743,760           -                       3,904,740        
Net Pension Liability 1,449,197        340,987           -                       1,790,184        
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 27,462,554      1,362,291        -                       28,824,845      

Total Liabilities 34,344,207      1,802,760        808                  36,147,775      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows for Pensions 322,076           75,783             -                       397,859           

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 322,076           75,783             -                       397,859           

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 121,224,746    1,313,433        -                       122,538,179    
Restricted:

Capital Improvements 281,441           -                       -                       281,441           
Renewal, Replacements, and Improvements -                       -                       -                       -                       

Unrestricted (Deficit) 4,532,463        230,800           83,544             4,846,807        

Total Net Position 126,038,650$  1,544,233$      83,544$           127,666,427$  

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Major

 Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds 

September 30, 2017
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued)
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

27

59



Nonmajor

 Utility System  Sanitation  Airport Fuel  Totals 

Operating Revenues:
Water Sales 8,762,951$      -$                     -$                     8,762,951$      
Sewer Charges 6,648,905        -                       -                       6,648,905        
Reclaimed Water Sales 1,435,435        -                       -                       1,435,435        
Sanitation Fees -                       4,422,879        -                       4,422,879        
Fuel Sales -                       -                       336,510           336,510           
Miscellaneous Revenues 1,300,935        109,166           38,038             1,448,139        

Total Operating Revenues 18,148,226      4,532,045        374,548           23,054,819      

Operating Expenses:
Utility Administration 620,661           -                       -                       620,661           
Water Plant Operations 899,361           -                       -                       899,361           
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations 2,257,829        -                       -                       2,257,829        
Utility Construction Operations 565,963           -                       -                       565,963           
Water Maintenance 1,343,696        -                       -                       1,343,696        
Utility Billing 692,329           -                       -                       692,329           
Wastewater Maintenance 1,154,349        -                       -                       1,154,349        
Operating Charges -                       2,728,378        -                       2,728,378        
Fueling Operations -                       -                       330,662           330,662           
Utility Restoration 232,903           -                       -                       232,903           
Design Engineering 655,412           -                       -                       655,412           
Depreciation 4,160,251        430,195           -                       4,590,446        

Total Operating Expenses 12,582,754      3,158,573        330,662           16,071,989      
5,565,472        1,373,472        43,886             6,982,830        

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income 109,293           3,798               447                  113,538           
Interest Expense (727,051)          (6,613)              -                       (733,664)          
Franchise Fees -                       63,538             -                       63,538             

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (617,758)          60,723             447                  (556,588)          

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers 4,947,714        1,434,195        44,333             6,426,242        

Transfers In -                       -                       -                       -                       
Transfers (Out) (5,303,150)       (539,796)          -                       (5,842,946)       
Capital Contributions - Impact Fees 5,678,396        -                       -                       5,678,396        
Capital Contributions - Grant 764,302           -                       -                       764,302           

Change in Net Position 6,087,262        894,399           44,333             7,025,994        

Total Net Position (Deficit) - Beginning 119,951,388    649,834           39,211             120,640,433    

Total Net Position - Ending 126,038,650$  1,544,233$      83,544$           127,666,427$  

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

Operating Income (Loss)

 Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds 

September 30, 2017
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Major

28

60



Nonmajor

 Utility System  Sanitation  Airport Fuel  Totals 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers and Users 17,800,196$    4,378,672$      374,548$         22,553,416$    
Payments to Suppliers 717,813           (1,469,509)       (325,304)          (1,077,000)       
Payments to Employees (6,860,860)       (1,716,111)       -                       (8,576,971)       

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 11,657,149      1,193,052        49,244             12,899,445      

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers to Other Funds (5,303,150)       (539,796)          -                       (5,842,946)       
Franchise Fees -                       63,538             -                       63,538             

Net Cash (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities (5,303,150)       (476,258)          -                       (5,779,408)       

Cash Flows from Capital and Related 
Financing Activities
Acquisition/Construction of Capital Assets (22,567,244)     (101,160)          -                       (22,668,404)     
Proceeds from Note Issued 7,594,273        -                       -                       7,594,273        
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (725,000)          (244,000)          -                       (969,000)          
Interest Paid on Capital Debt (727,051)          (6,613)              -                       (733,664)          
Capital Contributions - Impact Fees 5,678,396        -                       -                       5,678,396        
Capital Contributions - Grant 764,302           -                       -                       764,302           

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities (9,982,324)       (351,773)          -                       (10,334,097)     

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Income Received 109,293           3,798               447                  113,538           

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (3,519,032)       368,819           49,691             (3,100,522)       

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 23,490,042      546,351           6,733               24,043,126      

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 19,971,010$    915,170$         56,424$           20,942,604$    

Cash and Cash Equivalents Classified As:
Unrestricted Assets 18,648,045$    915,170$         56,424$           19,619,639$    
Restricted Assets 1,322,965        -                       -                       1,322,965        

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 19,971,010$    915,170$         56,424$           20,942,604$    

Continued

Major

 Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

29

61



Nonmajor

 Utility System  Sanitation  Airport Fuel  Totals 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
 (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss) 5,565,472$      1,373,472$      43,886$           6,982,830$      

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

    Depreciation 4,160,251        430,195           -                       4,590,446        
         (Increase) Decrease In -
              Accounts receivable (497,827)          (153,373)          -                       (651,200)          
              Deferred outflows of resources for pensions 387,674           100,376           -                       488,050           
              Inventories 17,649             -                       4,550               22,199             
         Increase (Decrease) In -
              Accounts payable 3,858,861        (9,601)              808                  3,850,068        
              Due to other funds -                       -                       -                       -                       
              Accrued liabilities 85,068             21,291             -                       106,359           
              Unearned revenue 17,413             -                       -                       17,413             
              Compensated absences 36,179             (7,916)              -                       28,263             
              OPEB (399,762)          (108,791)          -                       (508,553)          
              Net pension liability (1,884,794)       (492,511)          -                       (2,377,305)       
              Deferred inflows of resources for pensions 178,581           39,910             -                       218,491           
              Customer utility deposits 132,384           -                       -                       132,384           

              Total Adjustments 6,091,677        (180,420)          5,358               5,916,615        

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 11,657,149$    1,193,052$      49,244$           12,899,445$    

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Major

 Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended September 30, 2017

30

62



ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,060,315$        
Investments:

U.S. Corporate Stocks 67,158,775          
International Corporate Stocks 16,628,898          
U.S. Government Bonds & Treasury Bills 42,256,961          

Total Investments 126,044,634        
Contribution Receivable 1,312,715            

Total Assets 137,417,664        

Net Position Restricted for Pensions 137,417,664$      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FUND
September 30, 2017

31

63



ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Employer 4,882,863$             
State 662,485                  
Members 1,840,481               

Total Contributions 7,385,829               

Investment Income:
Interest, Dividends and Other Income 1,873,193               
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 9,540,335               
Gain (Loss) on Sales of Investments 4,042,341               

Net Investment Income 15,455,869             
Total Additions 22,841,698             

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits Paid to Participants 6,137,014               
Termination Payments 145,713                  
Administrative Expense 114,905                  

Total Deductions 6,397,632               

Net Increase in Net Position 16,444,066             

Net Position Restricted for Pensions
 Beginning of Year 120,973,598           

 End of Year 137,417,664$         

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the financial statements. 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

32

64



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

65



 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

66



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The City of Apopka (the “City”) is a political subdivision of the State of Florida located in Orange County.  The legislative 
branch of the City is a four (4) member, Citywide elected Council and a Citywide elected Mayor.  The Mayor and the City 
Council are governed by the City Charter and by state and local laws and regulations.  The Mayor and City Council are 
responsible for the establishment and adoption of policy.  The execution of such policy is the responsibility of the Mayor. 
 
The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
(“GAAP”) as applied to governmental units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The more significant of 
the City’s accounting policies follows. 

A. The Reporting Entity 
 
The City is a municipal corporation with a five-member Council, including the Mayor, who acts as the presiding officer of 
the Council.  The City provides a full range of municipal services, including: police and fire protection, public works 
activities, parks and recreation, planning and development, and general administrative services.  In addition, the City operates 
a water, sewer and reuse utility, and also a sanitation enterprise. 
 
The accompanying financial statements present the City’s primary government.  The reporting entity for the City includes all 
functions of government for which the Mayor and City Council are considered to be financially accountable.  Based upon the 
application of the criteria as set forth in GASB Statement Number 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an 
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, there are no potential component units or related organizations of the 
City. 
 
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
The basic financial statements consist of the government-wide financial statements and fund financial statements.  Both sets 
of statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. 

Government-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities.  These statements 
report on the government as a whole, both the primary government and its component units, and provide a consolidated 
financial picture of the government.  As part of the consolidation process, inter-fund activities are eliminated to avoid 
distorted financial results.  Fiduciary funds of the government are also eliminated from this presentation since these resources 
are not available for general government funding purposes.  The Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital 
resources of the City’s governmental and business-type activities.  It is presented in a net position format (assets plus deferred 
outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources equal net position) and shown with three components: 
net investment in capital assets, restricted net position, and unrestricted net position.  The Statement of Activities reports 
functional categories of programs provided by the City and demonstrate how and to what degree those programs are 
supported by specific revenue. 

Program revenues are classified into three categories: charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital 
grants and contributions.  Charges for services refer to direct recovery from customers for services rendered.  Grants and 
contributions refer to revenues restricted for specific programs whose use may be restricted further to operational or capital 
items.  The general revenues section displays revenue collected that helps support all functions of our government and 
contribute to the change in net position for the fiscal year. 

The fund financial statements follow additional and detailed information about the City’s operations for the major funds 
individually and nonmajor funds in the aggregate for government, proprietary and fiduciary funds.  A reconciliation is 
provided that converts the results of governmental fund accounting to the government-wide presentations.  The preparation of 
financial statements in conformity with GAAP, as applicable to governmental units, requires management to make use of 
estimates that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements.  Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

 

 

33

67



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements, as well as the fund financial statements for the proprietary funds and the fiduciary 
funds, are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are 
recognized in the period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred.  Operating revenues 
shown for proprietary operations generally result from producing or providing goods and services, such as water, sewer, 
reuse, and sanitation services.  Operating expenses for these operations include all costs related to providing the service or 
product.  These costs include salaries, supplies, travel, contract services, depreciation, administrative expenses or other 
expenses directly related to costs of services.  All other revenue and expenses not meeting these definitions are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

All governmental fund financial statements are reported using a current financial resources measurement focus on a modified 
accrual basis of accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting 
period in which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period.  Available means 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period, considered to 
be 60 days. 

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.  Exceptions to this general rule include: (1) accumulated 
sick pay and accumulated vacation pay, which are not recorded as expenditures; (2) prepaid insurance and similar items, 
which are reported only on the balance sheet and do not affect expenditures; and (3) principal and interest on long-term debt, 
which are recognized when due.  Budgets for governmental funds are also prepared on the modified accrual basis. 

Licenses and permits, charges for services, and miscellaneous revenues (except investment earnings) are recorded as 
revenues when received in cash, because they are generally not measureable until actually received.  Investment earnings are 
recorded as earned since they are measurable and available. 

The following are reported as major governmental funds: 

General Fund – The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City.  All general tax revenues and other receipts that 
are not required either legally or by GAAP to be accounted for in other funds are accounted for in the General Fund. 

Community Redevelopment (CRA) Fund – The CRA Fund is used to account for the restricted incremental ad-valorem tax 
revenues and expenditures for designated redevelopment areas within the City. 

The following are reported as major enterprise funds: 

Utility System – The Utility System Fund accounts for the operation of the City’s potable water, reuse, and wastewater 
services to residents and businesses. 

Sanitation Fund – The Sanitation Fund accounts for the operations of the City’s waste and refuse management services to 
residents and businesses. 

The City also reported the following fund types: 

Special Revenue Funds (Nonmajor) – Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are restricted or 
committed by law or administrative action to expenditures for specific purposes. 

Proprietary Fund (Nonmajor) – The Airport Fuel Fund accounts for the operations of the City’s airport fuel services to 
residents and businesses. 

Pension Trust Funds – The Pension Trust Funds account for the activities of the general employees’, police officers’ and 
firefighters’ pension plans. 

  

34

68



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation – continued 

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activities have been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.  
Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu-of-taxes and other charges between the government’s business-type 
functions and various other functions of the government.  Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and 
program revenue reported for the various functions concerned. 

D. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 
 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and highly liquid investments (including 
restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased. 

 
2. Deposits 

 
The City’s deposits consist of demand accounts (interest and non-interest bearing).  The deposits of the Pension 
Trust Funds are held separately from those of other City funds. 
 
At year-end, the carrying amount of the City’s governmental and business-type activities cash and cash equivalents 
deposits was $51,844,562 and the depository balances were $52,730,097 of that balance, $52,730,097 was covered 
by federal depository insurance or by collateral pursuant to the Public Depository Security Act of the State of 
Florida with the ability to assess member institutions to provide protection.  Accordingly, all of the City’s cash 
deposits are considered to be fully insured. 
 
The Pension Trust Funds held $10,060,315 in uninsured and uncollateralized cash deposits at September 30, 2017. 
 

3. Investments 
 

  
Weighted 

  
Average 

  
Maturity 

 
Fair Value (Years) 

Pension Trust Fund Investments: 
 U.S. Government Bonds and Bills $42,256,961  3.24  

U.S. Corporate Stocks 67,158,775 N/A 
International Corporate Stocks 16,628,898 N/A 

Total Investments $126,044,634  
  

 
Interest Rate Risk – Interest rate risk exists when there is a possibility that changes in interest rates could adversely 
affect an investment’s fair value.  The City’s mutual bond funds, at the Florida Municipal Investment Trust, have 
weighted average maturities of one-and-one-half years (1-3 year bond fund) and less than one-and-one-half years.  
The City’s investment/portfolio policy applies to all funds of the City except for its Pension Trust Funds.  Interest 
rate risk is managed by limiting maturity terms to one year or less on bank certificates of deposit and to five years or 
less on U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes, and Bonds.  Further, management limits concentrations of types of investments 
not to exceed from 15% to 25% at any one time. 
 

 

35

69



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 
D. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments – continued 
 

Credit Ratings for Florida Municipal Investment Trust Investments – 
 
     Credit Risk for FMIvT Funds 
 
 Fixed Income Funds:    Fitch Rating 
 0-2 Year High Quality Bond Fund      AAA/V1 
 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund      AAA/V2 
 
 

 Credit Ratings for Pension Trust Fund Investments – 
 

All of the investments of the Pension Trust Funds are held by the Prudential Retirement Insurance and Annuity 
Company (“PRIAC”) in a diversified asset portfolio. 
 
PRIAC has received the following independent credit ratings from the major rating agencies: 
 
     Moody’s  A1 
     Standard & Poor’s AA- 
     A.M. Best  A+ 
     Fitch   AA- 
 
 
Credit Risk – Credit risk exists when there is a possibility the issuer or other counterparty to an investment may be 
unable to meet its obligations.  The City’s investment policy limits the maximum percentage that may be invested in 
any one entity or instrument at any one time.  In addition, the City limits its investments to those authorized by 
Florida Statutes, and City Ordinances and Resolutions.  The following is a current list of authorized securities for 
investment.  Revisions to the authorized list of securities may change from time to time by City Council action.  The 
City is permitted to invest in pools that, in turn, invest in items the City may not purchase directly. 
 
The City is authorized under Florida Statutes to invest in the following: 
 
a. State Board of Administration Local Government Surplus Funds Investment Pool, or any intergovernmental 

investment pool authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act, as provided in Chapter 163.01, 
F.S. 

 
b. Money Market Funds registered with the Securities Exchange Commission and having the highest credit quality 

rating from a nationally recognized rating agency placed only with financial institutions qualifying as a public 
depository, as provided for in Chapter 280, F.S. 

 
c. Savings accounts in state-certified, qualified public depositories, as defined in Chapter 280.02, F.S. 
 
d. Insured or fully collateralized Certificates of Deposit of banks 

-The bank must be a registered public funds depository in the State of Florida 
-Maturities must be one year or less 
 

e. U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds 
-Maturity dates must be within five years or less 

 
f. Full faith or general faith and credit obligations of U.S. Government Agencies 

-Maximum maturity shall be five years or less 
-Maximum portfolio mix shall not exceed 25% for these instruments, inclusive of all types 

 
  

36

70



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 
D. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments – continued 
 

The City is further authorized under Ordinance and/or Resolution to invest in the following: 
 
g. Repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury Securities and Market-to-Market 

-Purchased only from authorized dealers, as provided for in this policy 
-Any authorized institution with which the City transacts repurchase agreements must have on file a fully 
executed copy of the City’s Master Repurchase Agreements 
-Maximum portfolio mix shall not exceed 25% at any one time 
 

h. Securities of, or other interests in, any open-end or closed-end, management-type investment company or 
investment trust registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, U.S.C. ss. 80a-14 et seq., as amended 
from time to time, provided the portfolio of such investment company or investment trust is limited to U.S. 
Government obligations and to repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such U.S. Government obligations 
and provided such investment company or investment trust takes delivery of such collateral either directly or 
through an authorized custodian (i.e., Mutual Funds). 
 
-Portfolio mix shall not exceed 15% at any one time 
 

i. The City will invest all checking account balances in accordance with the bank contract then in effect. 
 

j. The City will not hold or purchase any form of derivatives.  A “derivative” is defined as a financial instrument, 
the value of which depends on, or is derived from the value of one or more underlying assets or index or asset 
values.  The use of reverse repurchase agreements or other forms of leverage is likewise prohibited. 
 

Custodial Credit Risk – For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in 
possession of any outside party.  Financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries, and advisors with which the 
City will do business are prequalified in accordance with the City’s investment policy. 

 
Assets of the General Employees’ Pension Trust Fund, Police Officers’ Pension Trust Fund and Firefighters’ 
Pension Trust Fund may be invested in accordance with Florida Statutes, as previously described, or held in bonds, 
stocks, commingled funds administered by National or State Banks, or other evidence of indebtedness issued or 
guaranteed by a corporation under the laws of the United States, provided the corporation is traded on a nationally 
recognized exchange and meets certain rating criteria. Investments may also include annuity and life insurance 
contracts of life insurance companies. 
 
Fair Value of Investments – Investments are stated at fair value with the exception of investments in State Board of 
Administration’s Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (SBA – an external 2a7-like fund) which is presented 
at share price. 
 
The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by GAAP.  The 
hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted 
prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs.  The level in fair value hierarchy within which a fair value measurement falls is 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.  
 

• U.S Corporate and International Stocks are valued using quoted prices in an active market for identical 
assets (Level 1 inputs). 

• U.S. Government Bonds and Treasury Bills are valued using quoted prices in an active market for identical 
assets (Level 1 inputs). 

• Fixed Income Bonds are valued using either a bid evaluation or a matrix pricing technique.  Bid evaluations 
may include market quotations, yields, maturities, call features and ratings.  Matrix pricing is used to value 
securities based on the securities relationship to benchmark quoted prices (Level 2). 

 

37

71



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 
D. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments – continued 
 

4. Deferred Compensation Plan 
 
The City maintains an Employee Deferred Compensation Plan as a benefit to employees.  Investments in the 
Deferred Compensation Plan are held separately from those of other City funds.  As prescribed by the plan 
documents, the plan administrator is authorized to invest plan assets in obligations of the U.S. government and 
various mutual and money market funds, which are held by the plan administrator and not in the City’s name.  At 
September 30, 2017 and during the year, Deferred Compensation Plan assets were invested in various mutual funds 
under a custodial account.  The City has no fiduciary responsibility for these accounts. 
 

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
 
The following procedures are used to establish the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 
 
1. The Mayor submits a proposed operating budget to the City Council for the fiscal year beginning October 1. 
 
2. Public hearings are held to obtain taxpayers’ comments. 
 
3. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution. 
 
4. Budgets are legally adopted and formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year 
for the General Fund and the Special Revenue Funds.  The budgets adopted for the Enterprise Funds are to comply with bond 
covenants.  The Pension Trust Fund is not budgeted. 
 
5. Budgets for the governmental fund types are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP.  Budgets for proprietary fund types 
are adopted on a non-GAAP basis to reflect budget versus actual information related to “operations and maintenance,” as 
defined in bond covenants. 
 
6. The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revisions that 
alter the total revenues, reserves, or expenditures of any fund must be approved by a majority vote of the City Council.  
Budgeted amounts shown in the financial statements are as originally adopted and as further amended. 
 
7. Appropriations are authorized by resolutions generally at the fund level.  These are the legal levels of budgetary control.  
Administrative control is maintained through the establishment of more detailed line-item budgets. 
 
8. Appropriations lapse at the close of the fiscal year. 
 
  

38

72



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 
F. Receivables 
 
Property Taxes 
 
Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal and school board property 
taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector.  The laws of the State of 
Florida regulating tax assessments are also designed to assure a consistent property valuation method statewide.  State 
Statutes permit municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills.  The City’s current millage rate is 3.7876 
mills. 
 
All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on the levy date of November 1 (levy date) of each year or 
as soon thereafter as the assessment roll is certified by the Orange County Property Appraiser.  Orange County mails to each 
property owner on the assessment roll a notice of the taxes due, and the County also collects the taxes for the City.  Taxes 
may be paid upon receipt of such notice from the County, with discounts at the rate of four percent (4%) if paid in the month 
of November, three percent (3%) if paid in the month of December, two percent (2%) if paid in the month of January, and 
one percent (1%) if paid in the month of February.  Taxes paid during the month of March are without discount, and all 
unpaid taxes on real and tangible property become delinquent on April 1 (the lien date) of the year following the year in 
which taxes were assessed.  Procedures for collecting delinquent taxes, including applicable tax certificate sales, are provided 
for by the Laws of Florida. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Utility System Enterprise Fund operating revenues are generally recognized on the basis of cycle billings rendered monthly.  
Revenues for services delivered during the last month of the fiscal year that have not been read by September 30 are accrued 
based on meter readings for the applicable consumption taken at the beginning of October and billed in October. 
 
G. Inventories 
 
Inventories of the General Fund are stated at cost (determined on the “weighted average” method), and the Utility System 
Enterprise Fund inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market (determined on the “weighted average” method).  
Inventories are accounted for by the consumption method, wherein inventories are charged as expenditures/expenses when 
used.  Inventories of the General Fund consist of fuel and motor vehicle parts and supplies.  Inventories of the Utility System 
Fund consist primarily of meters, meter boxes, pipes and maintenance supplies held for use in maintaining and expanding the 
system.  Obsolete and unusable items have been reduced to estimated salvage values. 
 
H. Prepaid Items 
 
Prepaids represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit beyond September 30, 2017.  These payments are 
recorded as expenditures or expenses when consumed, rather than when purchased. 
 
I. Restricted Assets  
 
The uses of certain assets in both Governmental and Business-Type Activities are restricted by specific provisions of bond 
resolutions and/or other agreements.  Assets so designated are identified as restricted assets on the balance sheet. 
 
J. Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, intangible assets and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, curbs 
and gutters, streets and sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Additions to capital assets are recorded at cost at the time of purchase.  
Gifts or contributions are recorded at fair market value at the time received.  The City’s thresholds for capitalization for 
individual capital assets is $1,000, and for capital projects is $10,000. 

  

39

73



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 
J. Capital Assets – continued 
 
Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method.  The estimated useful lives of the various classes of 
depreciable capital assets are as follows: 

     Assets   Years 

    Water and Sewer Systems  20-50 

    Buildings and Improvements   5-50 

    Machinery and Equipment      3-25 

    Automotive Equipment     2-20 

    Public Domain Infrastructure   5-50 

    Intangibles       5-7 

K. Impact Fees – Proprietary Funds (Business-Type Activities) 
 
The City’s water, sewer, and reuse capital facility fee ordinance requires restriction of all monies collected as impact fees.  
These fees represent a capacity charge for the proportionate share of the cost of expanding, oversizing, separating or 
constructing new additions to the Water, Wastewater and Reuse Systems.  The City is obligated to expend these funds only to 
provide expanded capacity to the system and is permitted to pay applicable debt service on one or more series of bonds for 
the purposes, as described in Note 6.  Impact Fees are recorded as capital contributions upon receipt. 
 
L. Amortization of Premiums and Discounts 
 
Governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these 
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.  Amortization of premiums is computed by the outstanding 
principal method over the life of the debt and is recorded as either a reduction of the debt or as income.  Amortization of 
discounts on debt is determined by the outstanding principal method and is recorded as interest expense each year over the 
life of the debt. 
 
M. Compensated Absences 
 
The City grants hours of paid time off to all of its full-time employees, which they are eligible to use after six months of 
continuous employment.  The City has set annual maximum hours of accrual per year and maximum hours payable based on 
the employee’s length of service with the City.  The annual maximum accruals and payables have set increases at each five-
year anniversary of the employee’s qualifying hire date.  The annual maximum accruals and payables are increased for those 
employees who work on the basis of a 24-hour shift. 
 
As of January 1, 2011, the City “froze” all employee sick leave balances that were based on the City’s prior sick leave 
ordinance.  Those frozen balances are payable to the employee only upon their termination of employment with the City with 
the maximum amount set at $6,000.  The City’s sick leave ordinance requires that an employee must have 10 or more years 
of service to receive any payout of their accumulated sick leave upon termination of employment.  The maximum payout 
under the current ordinance is $6,000.  Employees who work on the basis of a 24-hour shift may accumulate their hours of 
sick pay at an increased rate. 
 
A more detailed narrative of the City’s policy on Paid Time Off (“PTO”) can be found in the City’s Personnel Rules and 
Regulations. 
 
The City records compensated absences in its Governmental Fund Types as an expenditure when the amount is for 
reimbursable unused paid time off (vacation or sick leave) payable to employees who have terminated their employment as of 
the end of the fiscal year.  Compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary funds 
financial statements. 
 
  

40

74



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 
N. Net Pension Liability 
 
In the government-wide and proprietary statements, net pension liability represents the present value of projected benefit 
payments to be provided through the single-employer, defined-benefit pension plans to current active and inactive employees 
that is attributed to those employees’ past periods of service (total pension liability), less the amount of the pension plan’s 
fiduciary net position.  For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pension plans, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position, and additions 
to/deductions from fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plans.  For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value.  The City allocated the net pension liability, deferred outflows 
for pensions, deferred inflows for pensions, and pension expense to funds and functions/activities based on their respective 
contributions made to the pension plans during the measurement year. 
 
O. Deferred Outflows of Resources / Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets and liabilities, the City reports the financial statement elements of deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources.  Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to future 
periods and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenditure or expense) until that applicable time.  Deferred 
inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that applicable time. 
 
The City reports one item that qualifies as deferred outflows of resources on its government-wide and proprietary statements 
of net position, deferred outflows for pensions.  The deferred amount on refunding resulted from a debt refinancing whereby 
the reacquisition price of the refunding debt instruments exceeded their net carrying amount.  This deferred amount on 
refunding will be systematically charged to interest expense over the life of the refunding debt.  The deferred outflows for 
pensions are an aggregate of items related to pensions, as calculated in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions.  The deferred outflows for pensions will be recognized as pension expense or a 
reduction of the net pension liability in future reporting years. 
 
The City reports one item that qualifies as deferred inflows of resources on its government-wide and proprietary statements 
of net position, deferred inflows for pensions.  The deferred inflows for pension are an aggregate of items related to pensions 
as calculated under the same principles as deferred outflows for pensions, and will be recognized as a reduction to pension 
expense in future reporting years. 
 
The City also reports deferred inflows of resources on applicable governmental fund statements that represent revenues 
which are measurable but not available in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting.  These deferred inflows 
will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal year they are earned and become available.  The majority of these deferred inflows 
of resources represent intergovernmental receipts and reimbursements, and a deferred inflow for a settlement arrangement 
with Duke Energy earned but not received during the modified accrual availability period. 
 
P. Fund Equity 
 
Fund balance is reported in the following five components: 
 
Nonspendable – includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in spendable form or because 
of legal or contractual requirements.  This would include inventories, deposits, prepaid items, and long-term notes receivable. 
 
Spendable Fund Balance 
 

Restricted – includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are externally imposed 
by third parties (creditors, grantors, contributors) or amounts constrained due to constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 
 
 
 

41

75



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 
P. Fund Equity - continued 

 
Committed – includes fund balance amounts that can be used only for specific purposes that are internally imposed 
by ordinance action by the Mayor and City Council in a formal meeting.  Commitments may only be changed by 
establishing, modifying, or rescinding an ordinance.  Contractual obligations are included to the extent that existing 
resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual obligations. 
 
Assigned – includes fund balance amounts that are intended and have been assigned, to be used for specific purposes 
that are neither considered restricted nor committed.  These constraints are imposed internally.  These constraints are 
established by the Mayor and City Council.  The Mayor and City Council delegated the authority to assign fund 
balances to the City’s Chief Administrative Officer.  In the General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses 
established by the Mayor and City Council, or the City’s Chief Administrative Officer. 
 
Unassigned – includes residual positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been classified within 
the other above-mentioned categories.  Unassigned fund balance may also include negative balances for other 
governmental funds besides the General Fund if expenditures exceed amounts restricted, committed, or assigned for 
those specific purposes. 
 

When both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) fund resources are available for use, it is the 
City’s policy to generally use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources.  When unrestricted resources are 
available for use, it is the City’s policy to use committed resources first, then assigned, and then unassigned as they are 
needed. 
 
Q. Grants 
 
Grants received or used for purposes normally financed through governmental fund types are accounted for within the City’s 
existing governmental funds.  Revenues received or used from grants for governmental fund types are recognized as 
intergovernmental revenues when they become susceptible to accrual, that is, both measureable and available (modified 
accrual basis).  Unrestricted grants, entitlements or shared revenues received in proprietary funds are reported as non-
operating revenues. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – RECEIVABLES 
 
The following is a detail listing of accounts receivable by type and fund at September 30, 2017: 
 

  
Special 

 Description General Revenue Enterprise 

Receivables: 
   Utility Accounts Billed  $ 36,663  $ 36,500  $ 2,547,915 

Utility Unbilled Receivables  -  -  1,121,269 
Other: 

   Settlement - Duke Energy  898,000  -  - 

Taxes - Franchise and Utility  91,893  -  - 

Miscellaneous  -  -  24,781 

Gross Receivables  1,026,556  36,500  3,693,965 

Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles    -  -  (310,214) 

Net Total Receivables  $ 1,026,556  $ 36,500  $ 3,383,751 
 
 
 
 

42

76



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

NOTE 3 – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 
 
Individual interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended September 30, 3017 were: 
 

 
 Transfers In   Transfers Out  

 General Fund   $                    6,102,742   $                    785,965  
 Enterprise Funds:  

      Utility System                                        -                      5,303,150  
    Sanitation Fund                                        -                         539,796  
 Special Revenue:  

     Streets Improvement Fund*                            590,102                                     -  
 Law Enforcement Trust*                                        -                                     -  
 Transportation Impact Fees*                            158,321                           55,800  
 Stormwater*                                        -                         214,121  
 Grants Fund*                              73,167                                     -  
 Special Assessment Fund*                                        -                           25,500  

 Total Interfund Transfers   $                    6,924,332   $                 6,924,332  
 
*Nonmajor governmental funds. 
 
Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the Enterprise Funds and the Special Revenue Funds to the General Fund to 
assist in financing the costs of the general government of the City in accordance with budgetary authorizations, and (2) to 
move amounts to finance shared projects whose expenditures are budgeted and recorded in another fund. 
 
 
NOTE 4 – RESTRICTED ASSETS – ENTERPRISE FUND (UTILITY SYSTEM) 
 
The use of certain Utility System Fund assets is restricted by specific provisions of the bond resolution authorizing the 
issuance of the $18,065,000 Utility Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2012.  In addition, the City restricts funds available for 
repayment of deposits, as well as funds required by ordinance to be placed in special construction accounts (repair and 
maintenance escrow accounts).  Restricted assets at September 30, 2017 are as follows: 
 

Customer utility deposits  1,041,524 

Capital improvements  281,441 

Total Restricted Assets  $ 1,322,956 

43

77



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

  
 Reclassifications   Reclassifications  

 Governmental Activities:  Beginning   and   and   Ending  

 
 Balance   Increases   Decreases   Balance  

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated: 
      Land  $             27,784,782   $                              -  $                              -   $            27,784,782  

  Construction In Progress                     347,821  3,943,796    (624,654)                  3,666,963  

Total Capital Assets, Not Being 
Depreciated               28,132,603  

                       
3,943,796                     (624,654)                31,451,745  

     Capital Assets, Being Depreciated: 
    

   Buildings               13,247,176  
                               

224,684                             -                   13,471,860  

   Improvements Other than Buildings             101,174,695  
                               

291,168                    (18,067)              101,447,796  

   Machinery and Equipment               20,096,576  
                            

4,650,633                      (7,542)                24,739,667  

   Automotive Equipment               12,266,729  
                            

2,288,044                  (455,961)                14,098,812  

   Intangibles                    449,438  
                                 

20,400                             -                        469,838  

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 147,234,614  7,474,929    (481,570)              154,227,973  

     Less Accumulated Depreciation For: 
      Buildings       (5,516,162)                         (288,489)                            -     (5,804,651) 

  Improvements Other than Buildings              (46,364,513)                      (2,863,937)           18,067   (49,210,383) 
  Machinery and Equipment              (16,534,654)                      (1,310,176)                        7,542       (17,837,288) 
  Automotive Equipment                (8,986,613)                         (829,156)          455,961               (9,359,808) 
  Intangibles                       (8,688)                           (29,035)                            -                      (37,723) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation    (77,410,630)   (5,320,793) 481,570    (82,249,853) 

     Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, 
Net               69,823,984                     (2,154,136)                                -                 71,978,120 

     Governmental Activities Capital Assets, 
Net  $             97,956,587   $                    6,097,932  $                (624,654)  $          103,429,865  

 
 
Depreciation was charged to the functions of governmental activities as follows: 
 

General Government  $ 994,092 

Public Safety  1,116,309 

Transportation  2,483,598 

Culture/Recreation  726,794 

Total Governmental Activities  $ 5,320,793 
 
 

44

78



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS – continued 
 

  
 Reclassification   Reclassification  

 Business-Type Activities  Beginning   and   and   Ending  

 
 Balance   Increases   Decreases   Balance  

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated: 
      Land  $                      7,924,275   $                                -   $                            -   $             7,924,275  

  Construction In Progress                          8,199,196                     20,312,397                 (4,952,358)               23,559,235  

Total Capital Assets, Not Being 
Depreciated                        16,123,471                     20,312,397                 (4,952,358)               31,483,510  

     Capital Assets, Being Depreciated: 
      Buildings                        21,480,830                            49,700                                 -                21,530,530  

  Improvements Other than Buildings                      128,115,809                       5,662,174                                 -              133,777,983  
  Machinery and Equipment                          9,618,688                       1,349,330                    (221,934)               10,746,084  

  Automotive Equipment                          7,332,796                          481,165                    (206,112)                 7,607,849  

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated                      166,548,123                       7,542,369                    (428,046)              173,662,446  

     Less Accumulated Depreciation For: 
      Buildings   (13,941,665) (698,628)                                -  (14,640,293) 

  Improvements Other than Buildings  (35,684,688)  (2,715,204)                                 -  (38,399,892) 
  Machinery and Equipment  (7,587,474)  (757,252)                     221,934  (8,122,792) 

  Automotive Equipment                        (5,044,953)                       (419,362)                     206,112                 (5,258,203) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation                      (62,258,780)                    (4,590,446)                     428,046               (66,421,180) 

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, 
Net                      104,289,343                       2,951,923                                  -              107,241,266  

     Business-type Activities Capital Assets, 
Net  $                 120,412,814   $                23,264,320   $            (4,952,358)  $         138,724,776  

 
Depreciation was charged to business-type activities as follows: 
 

Utility System Fund  $ 4,160,251 

Sanitation System Fund  430,195 

 
 $ 4,590,446 

 
 

45

79



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
The following is a summary of long-term liabilities transactions of the City for the year ended September 30, 2017: 
 

     
Balance Due 

 
 Balance  

  
 Balance   Due Within  

 
 Sep. 30, 2016   Additions   Deductions   Sep. 30, 2017   One Year  

Governmental Activities: 
     

Revenue Notes  $9,926,372           $2,400,000                 $(2,177,482) $10,148,890  $2,413,298  

Add unamortized premium                         12,973                          -                        (3,212)                 9,761                        -  

Bond Payable                      490,000                          -                    (155,000)              335,000             165,000  

Capital Lease                       410,256             2,967,988                  (188,434)           3,189,810            423,601  

Other Postemployment Benefits                  14,563,137               126,123                                 -          14,689,260                       -  

Net Pension Liability                  21,283,291                           -                 (1,956,625)         19,326,666                        -  

Compensated Absences                    1,701,573            1,823,093                 (1,562,106)           1,962,560         1,020,531  

Total                  48,387,602             7,317,204                 (6,042,859)         49,661,947         4,022,430  
            
Business-Type Activities: 

     
Utility Revenue Bonds                 15,250,000                          -                    (770,000)  14,480,000           800,000  

Add unamortized premium                   1,453,511                           -                    (206,823)         1,246,688                       -  

Sanitation Revenue Note                      740,000                          -                    (244,000)          496,000          247,000  

SRF Loan - 2017                                 -           7,594,273                                 -          7,594,273                      -  

Other Postemployment Benefits                  4,413,293                       -                    (508,553)          3,904,740                      -  

Net Pension Liability                  4,167,489                         -                 (2,377,305)          1,790,184                 -  

Compensated Absences                      439,708               778,992                    (750,729)             467,971            243,345  

Total                26,464,001         8,373,265                 (4,857,410)        29,979,856         1,290,345  

Total Long-Term Debt $74,851,603        $15,690,469   $(10,900,269)      $79,641,803       $5,239,273  
 
For the governmental activities, claims and judgments, other postemployment benefits, and compensated absences are 
generally liquidated by the General Fund.  The net pension liability will be liquidated through employer contributions by the 
funds where the current employees charge payroll costs. 
 
New Debt Issuances 
 
The City issued a note in the amount of $2,400,000 with Zion Bank, with an interest rate of 1.87%.  The proceeds were used 
to purchase vehicles and associated equipment. 
 
The City also entered into a loan agreement with the Florida Environmental Protection Agency - State Revolving Fund for 
the City’s treatment facilities project.  The maximum amount of the loan is $25,162,100, including capitalized interest.  A 
final repayment schedule will be established upon project completion.  Current draws for the loan totaled $7,594,273 in the 
fiscal year. 
 
The City’s Long-Term Debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from governmental activities and amounts to be 
repaid from business-type activities. 
  

46

80



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES – continued 
 
Governmental Activities: 
 
Florida Municipal Loan Council Note, due in annual principal installments 
ranging from $135,000 to $170,000, plus semiannual interest ranging from 
2.000% to 5.250% through December 1, 2018.  The note is secured by Non-Ad- 
Valorem Revenues.  This debt is serviced by the General Fund.        $  335,000 
 
Capital Improvement Revenue Note, Series 1999A.  Non-Ad-Valorem Revenues 
are pledged monies budgeted and appropriated pursuant to the loan agreement. 
Principal and interest are due in annual installments of $30,750, plus interest 
at 4.870% through January 29, 2019.                         61,500 
 
Note payable to Bank of America, N.A., collateralized by pledge of recreational 
impact fees, due in annual principal installments ranging from $465,000 to 
$610,000, plus interest at 3.90% through March 1, 2022.  This debt is serviced 
by the Recreational Impact Fees Fund (Special Revenue Fund).                  2,820,000 
 
Note payable to Branch Banking and Trust Company (Special Obligation 
Improvement Revenue Note, Series 2013A), payable from the Non-Ad-Valorem 
Revenues of the City.  Interest is due semiannually at 1.8%, and principal 
installments are due annually ranging from $104,204 to $120,189 through 
March 1, 2023.  The proceeds of this note were used to purchase two new fire 
trucks.  This note is serviced by the General Fund.                       690,000 
 
Note payable to Hancock Bank (Special Obligation Refunding Revenue Note, 
Series 2015), payable from the Non-Ad-Valorem Revenues of the City. 
Interest is due semiannually at 1.67% and principal installments are due 
annually ranging from $89,000 to $208,000 through March 1, 2022. 
This note is serviced by the General Fund.                       572,000 
 
Note payable to Hancock Bank (Special Obligation Refunding Revenue Note, 
Series 2016), payable from the Non-Ad-Valorem Revenues of the City. 
Interest is due semiannually at 1.34% and principal installments are due 
annually ranging from $325,000 to $383,000 through March 1, 2021. 
This note is serviced by the General Fund.                    1,500,000 
 
Note payable to Iberia Bank (Special Obligation Refunding 
Revenue Note, Series 2013C), payable from the Non-Ad-Valorem Revenues 
of the City.  Interest is due semiannually at 1.20% and principal installments 
are due annually ranging from $582,550 to $603,775 through December 1, 2019. 
This note is serviced by the General Fund.                                    1,200,390 
 
Note payable to Hancock Bank (Special Obligation Refunding Revenue Note, 
Series 2014), payable from the Non-Ad-Valorem Revenues of the City. 
Interest is due semiannually at 1.92% and principal installments are due 
annually ranging from $57,000 to $137,000 through March 1, 2024. 
This note is serviced by the General Fund.                       905,000 
 
Note payable to Zion Bank (Special Obligation Refunding Revenue Note, 
Series 2017), payable from the Non-Ad-Valorem Revenues of the City. 
Interest is due semiannually at 1.87% and principal installments are due 
annually ranging from $229,000 to $249,000 through August 1, 2022. 
This note is serviced by the General Fund.                    2,400,000 
 

                      10,483,890 
 

Add:  Unamortized premium                             9,761 
 
Total Governmental Activities Debt            $     10,493,651 

47

81



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES – continued 
 
Business-Type Activities: 
 
Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2012, due in annual 
installments ranging from $710,000 to $1,135,000, plus interest ranging 
from 2.00% to 5.00%, on various maturities.  The Series 2012 Bonds 
are secured by a pledge and are payable solely from the Pledged Revenues 
consisting of (i) the Net Revenues of the System, (ii) the Sewer System 
Development Charges, (iii) the Water System Development Charges, 
(iv) the Reuse System Development Charges, and (v) the monies on 
deposit in various funds and accounts created pursuant to the Series 2012 
Bond Resolution, with the exception of the Rebate Fund.  The total principal 
and interest remaining to be repaid on the bonds is $18,714,300, and total 
debt service for 2017 was $1,319,550.  Pledged revenues of the water, reuse, 
and wastewater system for 2017 amounted to $21,270,170. 
This debt is serviced by the Utility System Fund.           $     14,480,000 
 
Note payable to Hancock Bank (Sanitation System Improvement Revenue 
Note, Series 2014), payable from the Gross Revenues of the Sanitation Fund 
of the City.  Interest is due semiannually at 1.07% and principal installments 
are due annually ranging from $118,000 to $249,000 through March 1, 2019. 
This note is serviced by the Sanitation Fund.                       496,000 
 
Loan payable to Florida Water Pollution Control Financing Corporation,  
payable from the Gross Revenues derived yearly from the operation of the  
Water and Sewer Systems after payment of the Operation and Maintenance Expense  
and satisfaction of all yearly payment of the Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2012.  Interest is due semiannually at 0.66% and principal installments 
are due semiannually in the amount of $685,883 beginning September 15, 2019. 
This note is serviced by the Utility System Fund.                   7,594,273 
 

                      22,570,273 
 

Add:  Unamortized premium                      1,246,688 
 

Total Business-Type Activities Debt            $     23,816,961 
 
The debt service required payments to maturity on the City’s outstanding revenue bonds and notes at September 30, 2017 is 
as follows: 
 

 
Governmental-Type Activities 

 
Business-Type Activities 

 

 
Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total 

Fiscal Year 
      2018  $          2,578,298   $    225,962   $    2,804,260   $           1,047,000   $    538,136   $    1,585,136  

2019              2,513,436        170,000         2,683,436                1,084,000         503,482         1,587,482  

2020              1,752,926         120,352         1,873,278                   860,000         477,100         1,337,100  

2021              1,793,977           82,210         1,876,187                   885,000         451,300         1,336,300  

2022              1,450,064           41,322         1,491,386                   920,000         415,900         1,335,900  

2023-2027                 395,189             6,694            401,883                5,210,000      1,475,250         6,685,250  

2028-2031                           -                       -                        -                  4,970,000         378,450         5,348,450  

 
 $        10,483,890   $    646,540   $  11,130,430   $         14,976,000   $ 4,239,618   $  19,215,618  

 

48

82



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES – continued 
 
Capital Lease Obligations 
 
In fiscal year 2017, the City has four capital lease agreements outstanding.  The four capital leases are related to new 
financial software, new gurneys for the City’s Public Safety Division and two related to various operating equipment for City 
operations.  The future minimum lease obligations are as follows: 
 

 
Governmental-Type Activities 

 
Principal Interest 

Fiscal Year 
  2018  $         427,919   $         52,041  

2019             428,327             51,633  
2020             435,564              44,396  
2021             321,403               36,985  
2022              272,078                31,990  

2023-2027            1,438,637                81,706  

 
 $        3,323,928   $           298,751  

 
Operating Lease Obligations 
 
The City entered into an agreement with Motorola for them to provide services for the upgrade of the City’s emergency radio 
system.  The future minimum lease obligations are as follows: 
 

Governmental-Type Activities 

 
Lease Payment 

Fiscal Year 
 2018  $        261,340  

2019            261,340 
2020            261,340 
2021            261,340 
2022            261,340   

2023-2025            784,020 

 
 $     2,090,720  

 
 
NOTE 7 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 
 
The City maintains a single-employer, defined-benefit pension plan which covers substantially all of the City’s full-time 
employees (General Employees’ Retirement Plan), a single-employer, defined-benefit plan which covers all of its full-time 
certified police officers (Municipal Police Officers’ Retirement Plan), and a single-employer, defined-benefit plan which 
covers all of its full-time certified firefighters (Municipal Firefighters’ Retirement Plan).  Each of the retirement plans is 
administered by its Board of Trustees, subject, however, and, in any event, to the authority and power of the Apopka City 
Council.  Each plan’s assets may be used only for the payment of plan administrative costs and benefits to the members of 
that plan, in accordance with the terms of the plan.  Benefits and refunds of contributions to the members of the applicable 
plan are recognized at the date they become due and payable specific to the terms of the plan.  None of the aforementioned 
retirement plans issues a stand-alone financial report, nor are they included in the report of a Public Employee Retirement 
System, or any other entity. 
 
  

49

83



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 7 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS – continued 
 
A. Plan Description and Membership 
 
1. General Employees’ Retirement Plan 

 
The General Employees’ Retirement Plan (“Plan”) was established on October 16, 1976 for all regular, full-time 
employees not covered by the Municipal Police Officers’ Retirement Plan or the Municipal Firefighters’ Retirement 
Plan. 
 
All full-time employees who have attained the age of 57 and 5 years of credited service are entitled to annual 
benefits of 2.75% of the average of the 5 final years of salary, times years of credited service, subject to a maximum 
of 100% of average final compensation in the form of a life annuity, ceasing upon death.  Early retirement is 
available for employees attaining the age of 47 with 10 years of service.  The early retirement benefit is in the form 
of a life annuity (options available).  A delayed retirement may be elected where the employee remains actively 
employed and benefits continue to accrue after the normal retirement date.  In the event of pre-retirement death and 
the employee is eligible for normal or early retirement, a beneficiary is eligible to receive a benefit as if the member 
retired on the date of death.  If the employee is not eligible for the normal or early retirement at the time of pre-
retirement death, the Plan provides for a refund of any employee contributions.  Participation in the Deferred 
Retirement Option Plan (“DROP”) may not exceed 96 months.  Each participant in the DROP has an account 
credited with benefits not received and investment earnings.  The DROP balance as of September 30, 2017 is 
$1,006,666. 
 
Vesting in the Plan is as follows: 
 
-  with less than 10 years of service, a refund of accumulated contributions. 
-  with 10 years or more of continuous service, an accrued pension payable at either early or normal retirement age, 
or a refund of employee contributions. 
 

2. Municipal Police Officers’ Retirement Plan 
 
The Municipal Police Officers’ Retirement Plan (“Plan”) was established to conform to provisions of the State 
Statutes of the State of Florida for all full-time sworn police officers. 
 
Employees attaining the age of 45 who have completed 10 or more years of credited service, or 20 years of credited 
service regardless of age, are entitled to monthly benefits of 3.6% of their average final compensation times years of 
credited service for the first 10 years of credited service and 4% for each year in excess of 10 years.  Average final 
compensation is the average salary for the best 3 of the 5 last years immediately preceding retirement or termination.  
The Plan permits early retirement at the completion of 10 years of contributed service and attaining the age of 40 
years.  Participation in DROP may not exceed 96 months.  Each participant in the DROP has an account credited 
with benefits not received and investment earnings.  The DROP balance as of September 30, 2017 is $64,390. 
 
Active employees who retire disabled with a disability that occurred in the line of duty shall receive the greater of 
42% of average final compensation or 3.6% per month of average final compensation multiplied by years of credited 
service.  For a non-service incurred disability, a member with 10 years of credited service shall be eligible. 
 
Disability benefits are paid for 10 years certain or life or until recovery from disability.  If an active police officer 
dies before retirement eligibility, their beneficiary receives a refund of the police officer’s contributions to the Plan.  
If the officer dies prior to retirement but has at least 10 years of credited service, their beneficiary is entitled to either 
early or normal retirement benefits.  Minimum disability benefits resulting from an intentional act of violence 
assumes 20 years of credited service. 
 
Retirees on or after March 1, 1998 receive a lump-sum payment of $500 following 5 years of benefit payments and 
an additional $500 payment on each 5-year anniversary. 
 
If an employee terminates their employment with the police department and is not eligible for the other benefits 
under the Plan, the employee is entitled to the following: 
- with less than 10 years of continuous service, a refund of accumulated contributions. 
- with 10 or more years of continuous service, the pension accrued to the date of termination, payable commencing 
at their 45th birthday. 
 

50

84



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 7 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS – continued 
 
A. Plan Description and Membership – continued 
 
3. The Municipal Firefighters’ Retirement Plan 
 

The Municipal Firefighters’ Retirement Plan (“Plan”) was established to conform to provisions of the State of 
Florida for all sworn full-time firefighters.  All of the City’s full-time firefighters participate in the Plan. 
 
Employees attaining the age of 55 who have completed 10 or more credited years of service or with 22 years of 
credited service are entitled to annual benefits of 3.0% of their average final compensation for the best 5 of the last 
10 years times years of credited service.  The Plan permits early retirement at the completion of 10 years of credited 
service and attaining the age of 50 years.  Participation in DROP may not exceed 96 months.  Each participant in the 
DROP has an account credited with benefits not received and investment earnings.  The DROP balance as of 
September 30, 2017 is $1,116,715. 
 
Active employees who retired disabled with disability that occurred in the line of duty shall receive the greater of 
monthly benefits of 3.6% of their average final compensation times years of credited service but not less than 42% 
of average final compensation.  For non-service incurred disability, a member with 10 years of credited service shall 
receive the greater of 2.5% of average final compensation or the accrued benefit actuarially reduced but not less than 
25% of average final compensation.  Disability benefits are paid for 10 years certain or life or until recovery from 
disability that can be provided by the single-sum value of the deferred monthly retirement income beginning a 
normal retirement date, which has accrued to their date of disability. 
 
If an active firefighter dies before retirement eligibility, their beneficiary receives a refund of the firefighter’s 
contributions to the Plan.  If a firefighter dies prior to retirement but has at least 10 years of credited service, their 
beneficiary is entitled to early or normal retirement benefits for 10 years. 
 
If an employee terminates their employment with the fire department and is not eligible for any other benefits under 
the Plan, the employee is entitled to the following: 
-  with less than 10 years of continuous service, a refund of accumulated member contributions. 
-  with 10 or more years of continuous service, the pension accrued to the date of termination, payable commencing 
at their 55th birthday. 
 

Plan membership for all three City retirement plans as of September 30, 2017 was as follows: 
 

 General 
Employees Police Officers Firefighters 

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving 
Benefits 125  47  37 
Inactive Plan Members Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving 
Benefits   69    5  17 
Active Plan Members 209  103  93 
 403 155 147 

 
B. Pension Plan Investments 
 
The Plans’ investment policy is described in Note 1.  The following table presents the adopted asset allocation policy as of 
September 30, 2017 for all plans: 
 

Asset Class 
Target 

Allocation 
Large Cap Equity 32% 
Small Cap Equity 9% 
Mid Cap Equity 7% 
International Equity 12% 
Fixed Income 32% 
Stable Value 8% 

Total 100% 

51

85



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 7 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS – continued 
 
B. Pension Plan Investments – continued 
 
For the year ended September 30, 2017, the annual money-weighted rate of return on the Plans’ investments, net of pension 
investment expense, was 12.7% for all three plans.  The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, 
net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 
 
The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2017 using the following actuarial 
assumptions applied to all measurement periods: 
 

 

General 
Employees 

Police 
Officers Firefighters 

Inflation 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 
Salary Increases 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 

Investment Rate of Return 7.25% 7.25% 7.25% 
 
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Generational projected with Scale BB.  Disabled lives are set back four years for 
males and forward two years for females. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which 
best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expended future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation.  Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in all of the plans’ target asset 
allocations as of September 30, 2017 are summarized as follows: 
 

Asset Class 
Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

Large Cap Equity 8.00% 
Small Cap Equity 8.75% 
Mid Cap Equity 8.50% 
International Equity 7.50% 
Fixed Income 4.50% 
Real Estate 6.75% 
Stable Value 4.60% 

 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%.  This single rate of return has been determined by 
projecting all future benefit payments of the covered group on a closed-group basis and discounting them at the long-term 
expected rate of return on plan assets if the pension plans’ fiduciary net position is projected to be greater than or equal to the 
benefit payments that are projected to be made in that period.  For any future period where the pension plans’ fiduciary net 
position is projected to be less than the benefit payments that are projected to be made in that period, those future benefit 
payments are discounted at an index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating 
of AA or higher. 
 
The following tables present the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate: 
 

General Employees 
1% Decrease to 6.25% Current Discount Rate of 7.25% 1% Increase to 8.25% 

$15,598,859 $8,524,687 $2,668,747 
 

Police Officers 
1% Decrease to 6.25% Current Discount Rate of 7.25% 1% Increase to 8.25% 

$13,793,613 $6,714,807 $890,275 

   Firefighters 

1% Decrease to 6.25% Current Discount Rate of 7.25% 1% Increase to 8.25% 

$11,654,862 $5,877,356 $1,119,978 
  

52

86



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 7 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS – continued 
 
C. Contribution Requirements 
 
The Board of Trustees of each plan establishes and may amend the contribution requirements of plan members and the City. 
 
1. General Employees’ Retirement Plan 
 

Contributions are established by local ordinance.  Employees are required to contribute 4.9% of their annual salary 
to the plan.  The City is required to contribute the amount necessary to meet normal (current year’s) costs and to 
fund the actuarial accrued (past service) liability, if any, over 30 years, adjusted for interest according to the timing 
of the contributions.  The City/State contributed $2,081,290 for the year ended September 30, 2017. 

 
2. Municipal Police Officers’ Retirement Plan 
 

Contributions are established by local ordinance and include a 2% premium tax on all casualty insurance policies 
issued in the City limits.  Employees are required to contribute 9% of their annual salary to the plan.  The City is 
required to contribute an actuarially determined rate that includes the state contribution; the current rate is 27% of 
annual covered payroll, subject to a minimum of 4%.  Any unfunded accrued liability is amortized over no more 
than 30 years.  The City/State contributed $2,191,388 for the year ended September 30, 2017. 

 
3. Municipal Firefighters’ Retirement Plan 

 
Contributions are established by local ordinance and include a 1.85% excise tax from policyholders on all premiums 
collected on property fire insurance covering property within the City limits.  Employees are required to contribute 
9.3% of their salary to the plan.  The City is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate that includes the 
state contribution; the current rate is 19.30% of annual covered payroll, subject to a minimum of 4%.  The City/State 
contributed $1,272,669 for the year ended September 30, 2017.  

 
Municipalities that have established pension plans complying with the provisions of Chapters 175 and 185, Florida Statutes, 
and that have enacted appropriate taxing legislation are eligible to receive revenues generated from excise taxes on gross 
receipts of certain insurance premiums from policyholders covering property within the City limits.  These are the 
Firefighters’ Pension Fund Excise Tax imposed on the gross receipts of property insurance policy premiums and the Police 
Officers’ Pension Fund Excise Tax imposed on the gross receipts of casualty insurance policy premiums.  These revenues, 
receipted in the City’s General Fund and expended as Public Safety activity, are $266,644 and $395,841, respectively, for the 
year ended September 30, 2017. 
 
Insurance premium excise tax revenues collected in the 1997 calendar year represent an initial “frozen” state contribution.  
Until plan benefits are improved for the police officers’ and firefighters’ retirement plans, the City’s (the sponsor) 
contributions are determined based upon the lesser of: (1) the actual state contributions received in the plan year, or (2) the 
“frozen” state contribution amounts.  State contributions received in any plan year in excess of the applicable “frozen” state 
contribution amounts are segregated from plan assets to be used exclusively to fund benefit improvements.  These excess 
state contributions are accumulated in reserve balances titled “Excess State Monies Reserve.”  There were no applicable 
“frozen” amounts for the City’s Plans for the year ended September 30, 2017. 
  

53

87



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 7 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS – continued 
 
D. Actuarial Methods and Significant Assumptions 
 

 
General Employees Police Officers Firefighters 

Contribution rates: 
   Employer 18% 27% 17% 

Employee 4.90% 9.00% 9.30% 

Actuarial valuation date 10/1/2016 10/1/2017 10/1/2017 
Actuarial cost method  Entry Age Normal   Entry Age Normal   Entry Age Normal  

Amortization method 
 Level Percentage of Pay, 

Closed  
 Level Percentage of Pay, 

Closed  
 Level Percentage of Pay, 

Closed  
Remaining amortization period  30   30   30  

Asset valuation method 
 4 Year Smoothed 

Market Value  
 4 Year Smoothed 

Market Value  
 4 Year Smoothed 

Market Value  
Actuarial assumptions: 

   Investment rate of return 7.25% 7.25% 7.25% 
Projected salary increase 5.5% 5.5% 5.5% 

(includes inflation at) 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 
 
E. Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense 
 
The following table presents the change in the Net Pension Liability of the City’s three pension plans as of the measurement 
date at September 30, 2017: 
 

General Employees Police Officers Firefighters
Total Pension Liability
Service Cost 1,775,984$                2,422,832$             1,438,974$          
Interest 3,996,514                   3,809,955                2,940,396             
Differences Between Expected and Actual
    Experience and Changes in Assumptions 561,919                      504,898                   941,126                
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Contrib. (3,149,475)                 (1,975,939)              (1,157,613)           
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 3,184,942                   4,761,746                4,162,883             
    Total Pension Liability - Beginning 54,613,386                51,808,728             40,002,533          
    Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) 57,798,328$              56,570,474$           44,165,416$        

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - City 2,081,290$                2,191,388$             1,272,669$          
Contributions - Employees 576,071                      613,880                   650,530                
Net Investment Income 5,610,806                   5,565,273                4,279,794             
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Contrib. (3,149,175)                 (1,975,939)              (1,157,613)           
Administrative Expense (39,716)                       (39,142)                    (36,316)                 
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 5,079,276                   6,355,460                5,009,064             
    Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 44,194,665                43,500,207             33,278,996          
    Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) 49,273,941$              49,855,667$           38,288,060$        

City's Net Pension Liability - ending (a) - (b) 8,524,387$                6,714,807$             5,877,356$          

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of 
    the Total Pension Liability 85.3% 88.1% 86.7%

  

54

88



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 7 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS – continued 
 
E. Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense - continued 
 
As of September 30, 2015, the City’s total net pension liability amounted to $25,450,780 for all three defined-benefit pension 
plans.  For the year ended September 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $1,777,353 related to the General 
Employees’ Retirement Plan, $1,864,064 related to the Police Officers’ Retirement Plan, and $936,800 related to the 
Firefighters’ Retirement Plan.  
 
F. Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
At September 30, 2017, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources: 

 

   
General Employees 

   

Deferred  
Outflows 

Deferred  
Inflows 

Net difference between projected and 
    actual earnings on plan investments  $                    -     $      (1,022,529) 

Difference between expected and 
     actual experience 

 
               57,729              (929,765) 

Difference for changes in assumptions           1,383,187                         -    

 
Total 

 
          1,440,916           (1,952,294) 

     
   

Police Officers' 

   

Deferred  
Outflows 

Deferred 
Inflows 

Net difference between projected and 
    actual earnings on plan investments                        -                (994,257) 

Difference between expected and 
     actual experience 

 
             600,486              (851,432) 

Difference for changes in assumptions           1,410,652                         -    

 
Total 

 
          2,011,138           (1,845,689) 

     
   

Firefighters' 

   

Deferred  
Outflows 

Deferred  
Inflows 

Net difference between projected and 
    actual earnings on plan investments                        -                (767,222) 

Difference between expected and 
     actual experience 

 
             384,488              (505,421) 

Difference for changes in assumptions           1,417,172                         -    

 
Total 

 
          1,801,660           (1,272,643) 

     

 
Total All City Plans  $       5,253,714   $      (5,070,626) 

 
  

55

89



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 7 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS – continued 
 
F. Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources - continued 
 
The remaining amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense, as follows: 
 

Year Ending General Employees Police Officers Firefighters Net Amount 
2018 $191,118 $542,408 $236,896 $970,422 
2019 219,827 404,870 353,673 978,370 
2020 (459,165) (362,318) (89,157) (910,640) 
2021 (463,158) (419,511) (147,133)   (1,029,802) 
2022 - - 153,278 153,278 
After - - 21,460 21,460 

 $(511,378) $165,449 $529,017 $183,088 
 
G. Combining Fiduciary Statements 
 
The Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position at September 30, 2017 is stated as follows: 

 
 

  
General Employees Police Officers Firefighters Total 

      Assets 
     Cash and cash equivalents 
 

 $                 3,398,553   $              3,647,508   $             3,014,254   $        10,060,315  
Investments at fair value 

 
                  45,522,514                 45,527,552                34,994,568           126,044,634  

Contributions receivable 
 

                       352,873                      680,606                     279,236               1,312,715  

      Total Assets 
 

                  49,273,940                 49,855,666                38,288,058           137,417,664  

      Total Net Position 
 

                  49,273,940                 49,855,666                38,288,058           137,417,664  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

56

90



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 7 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS – continued 
 
G. Combining Fiduciary Statements - continued 
 
The Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position at September 30, 2017 is stated as follows: 
 

  
General Employees Police Officers Firefighters Total 

ADDITIONS 
     Contributions: 
     Employer Contributions 
 

 $                 2,081,290   $              1,795,547   $             1,006,026   $          4,882,863  
State Contributions 

 
                                 -                        395,841                     266,644                  662,485  

Member Contributions 
 

                       576,071                      613,880                     650,530               1,840,481  
Total Contributions 

 
                    2,657,361                   2,805,268                  1,923,200               7,385,829  

      Investment Income (Loss): 
     Interest, dividends and other income 
 

                       674,724                      672,749                     525,720               1,873,193  
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair  

     value of investments 
 

                    3,384,727                   3,476,552                  2,679,056               9,540,335  
Gains (losses) on sales of investments 

 
                    1,551,354                   1,415,971                  1,075,016               4,042,341  

      Net Investment Income (Loss) 
 

                    5,610,805                   5,565,272                  4,279,792             15,455,869  
Total Additions 

 
                    8,268,166                   8,370,540                  6,202,992             22,841,698  

      DEDUCTIONS 
     Benefit payments 
 

                    3,065,039                   1,945,630                  1,126,345               6,137,014  
Termination payments 

 
                         84,136                        30,309                       31,268                  145,713  

Administrative expense 
 

                         39,716                        39,142                       36,047                  114,905  
Total Deductions 

 
                    3,188,891                   2,015,081                  1,193,660               6,397,632  

      CHANGE IN NET POSITION 
 

                    5,079,275                   6,355,459                  5,009,332             16,444,066  

      NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR 
PENSIONS 

    Beginning of year 
 

                  44,194,665                 43,500,207                33,278,726           120,973,598  
End of year 

 
 $               49,273,940   $            49,855,666   $           38,288,058   $      137,417,664  

 
  

57

91



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 8 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (“OPEB”) 
 
Eligibility 
 
A participant is eligible to receive certain other postemployment benefits upon retirement under one of the three City-
sponsored pensions plans.  To be eligible for retiree benefits, the participant does not need to be covered under the City’s 
medical plan immediately prior to retirement.  Participants under the following City-sponsored pension plans are eligible to 
retire under the following criteria: 
 
City of Apopka Municipal Fire Fighters’ Retirement: 

Normal Retirement: Age 55 with 10 years of service or 22 years of service at any age 
Early Retirement: Age 50 and the completion of 10 years of service 
 

City of Apopka Municipal General Employees’ Retirement: 
Normal Retirement: Age 57 with 5 years of service 
Early Retirement: Age 47 and the completion of 10 years of service 
 

City of Apopka Municipal Police Officers’ Retirement: 
Normal Retirement: Age 45 with 10 years of service or 20 years of service at any age 
Early Retirement: Age 40 and the completion of 10 years of service 
 

Participants in all three pension plans have the option of entering the DROP program for up to 8 years, after meeting Normal 
Retirement Criteria. 
 
Life insurance is available to retirees in the amount of $30,000.  Coverage amounts are reduced to $19,500 at age 65, $15,000 
at age 70, and $7,500 at age 75. 
 
OPEB Coverage 
 
OPEB Coverage is available for the lifetime of the retiree (except for the Health Insurance Premium Subsidy, as outlined 
below), so long as the required premiums are paid.  OPEB Coverage is also available to spouses of retirees who are currently 
receiving benefits, but at a higher rate.  OPEB Coverage is not available to surviving spouses of deceased retirees. 
 
Health Insurance Subsidy/Reduced Retiree Contribution 
 
Employees of the City retiring with more than 25 years of service are eligible to have the premiums for Medical coverage 
paid for by the City until Medicare eligibility.  Time spent in the DROP option of the retirement plan is counted towards the 
25-year goal.  Premiums for dependent coverage are not eligible to be paid for by the City. 
 
Effective January 1, 2011, newly hired employees are not eligible for the health insurance program subsidy. 
 
  

58

92



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 8 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (“OPEB”) – continued 
 
Currently, the City’s OPEB benefits are unfunded.  That is, there is no separate trust fund or equivalent arrangement into 
which the City would make contributions to advance-fund the obligation.  Therefore, the ultimate subsidies which are 
provided over time are financed directly by general assets of the City.  The City had an actuarial valuation for the OPEB to 
measure the current year’s subsidies, project these subsidies for decades into the future, and make an allocation of that cost to 
different years. 
 
Membership of each plan consisted of the following: 
 

Date of Actuarial Valuation:     10/01/2016 
Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits              52 
Active Plan Members              419 
Total                471 

 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
 
The Annual OPEB Cost is the amount that was expensed for the fiscal year.  Since the City’s OPEB plan is currently 
unfunded, the offset to that expense comes from subsidies paid on behalf of the current retirees and their dependents for the 
current year.  This offset is called the Employer Contribution, and equals the total age-adjusted premiums paid by the City for 
coverage for the retirees and their dependents for the year (net of the retiree’s own payments for the year).  The cumulative 
difference between the Annual OPEB Cost for the year and the Employer Contribution for the year is called the Net OPEB 
Obligation.  The Net OPEB Obligation is reflected as a liability in the Statement of Net Position. 
 
The following table shows the components of the City’s Annual OPEB Cost for the year and the Net OPEB Obligation: 
 

 

Valuation as of 
October 1, 2016 

Normal Cost (Service cost for one year)  $ 1,369,120  
Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability  1,631,021  
Annual Required Contribution (ARC)  3,000,141  
Interest on ARC  708,224  
Adjustment to ARC   (1,740,700) 
Annual OPEB Cost (Expense)  1,967,665  
Employer Contributions Made   (2,350,095) 
Decrease in Net OPEB Obligation  (382,430)  

  Net OPEB Obligation at Beginning of Year  18,976,430  
Net OPEB Obligation at End of Year  $ 18,594,000  

 
Schedule of Employer Contributions 
 

  
Percentage of 

  

  
Annual OPEB 

Increase 
(Decrease) in Net 

 Fiscal Year Annual Cost OPEB Net OPEB 
Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation Obligation 

     9/30/2017  $ 1,967,665  31.20% $ (382,730)  $ 18,594,000  
9/30/2016   2,754,828  24.24%   2,087,174   18,976,430  
9/30/2015   2,793,126  23.10%   2,148,046   16,889,256  

 
  

59

93



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 8 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (“OPEB”) – continued 
 
Funded Status and Funding Progress 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, 
and the health care cost trend.  Amounts determined regarding the funding status of a plan and the annual required 
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision, as actual results are compared with past expectations and new 
estimates are made about the future. 
 
The following is a schedule of funded status and funding progress: 
 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

Actuarial 
Value 

of Assets 

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Liability (1) 

Unfunded 
Accrued Liability 

(UAAL) (2) 
Funded 
Ratio 

Annual 
Covered 
Payroll 

UAAL as a 
Percentage of 

Payroll 
10/1/2016 $ - $29,331,799 $29,331,799 0% $23,146,823 127% 
10/1/2014    -  27,003,172   27,003,172 0%  21,803,323 124% 
10/1/2014    -  24,915,998  24,915,998 0%  21,965,004 113% 

 
(1) Actuarial liability determined under the projected unit credit cost method. 
(2) Actuarial liability less actuarial value of assets, if any. 

 
Actuarial Cost Method 
 
The actuarial cost method determines, in a systematic way, the incidence of plan sponsor contributions required to provide 
plan benefits.  It also determines how actuarial gains and losses are recognized in OPEB costs.  The gains and losses result 
from the difference between the actual experience under the plan and the experience anticipated by the actuarial assumptions. 
 
Liabilities and cost are derived by making certain specific assumptions as to rates of interest, mortality, turnover, etc., which 
are assumed to hold for many years into the future.  Since actual experience will differ from the long-term assumptions, the 
costs determined by the valuation must be regarded as estimates of the true costs of the current OPEB arrangements. 
 
Actuarial liabilities and comparative costs shown in the actuary report were computed using the Entry Age Normal, which 
consists of the following cost components: 
 

1. The Normal Cost is the actuarial Present Value of benefits allocated to the valuation year. 
 
2. The Actuarial Accrued Liability is the Actuarial Present Value of benefits accrued as of the valuation date. 
 
3. Valuation Assets are equal to the market value of assets as of the valuation date, if any. 
 
4. Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability is the difference between the Actuarial Accrued Liability and the 
Valuation Assets.  It is amortized over the maximum permissible period under GASB 45 of 30 years. 
 

It should be noted that GASB 45 allows a variety of cost methods to be used.  We elected this method because it is generally 
easy to understand and is widely used for the valuation of postemployment benefits other than pensions.  Other methods used 
do not change the ultimate liability, but do allocate, if different, between what has been earned in the past and what will be 
earned in the future.  Please note that the net effect of the change may result in an increase or decrease in the annual required 
contribution (“ARC”). 
 
In addition to the actuarial method used, actuarial cost estimates depend to an important degree on the assumptions made 
relative to various occurrences, such as rate of expected investment earnings by the fund, rates of mortality among active and 
retired employees, rates of termination from employment, and retirement rates. 
 
  

60

94



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 8 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (“OPEB”) – continued 
 
Demographic assumptions for various defined-benefit pension plans under which employees of the City are covered are listed 
below: 
 
In the descriptions below: 
“Fire” refers to City of Apopka Municipal Firefighters’ Retirement Plan 
“General” refers to City of Apopka Municipal General Employees’ Retirement Plan 
“Police” refers to the City of Apopka Municipal Police Officers’ Retirement Plan 
 
In the most current valuation (dated 10/1/2016), the actuarial assumptions used for the calculation of cost and liabilities are as 
follows: 
 
1. Discount Rate:  3.06% per annum 
 
2. Mortality Rates:  RP-2014 generational table 
 
3. Withdrawal Rates:  Sample rates of withdrawal for employees: 
 

      
 
4. Disability Rates:  Sample rates of disability for employees: 
 

 
 
5. Plan Participation:  The participation percentage is the assumed rate of future eligible retirees who elect to continue 

health coverage at retirement.  It is assumed that 60% of all pre-65 employees and 6% of all post-
65 employees, and their dependents, who are eligible for early retiree benefits will participate in 
the retiree medical plan.  100% of pre-65 employees who are eligible for the subsidy are assumed 
to participate in the medical plan.  This assumes that a one-time irrevocable election to participate 
is made at retirement. 

 
6. Health Care Cost Trend Rate: 

The health care cost trend assumptions are used to project the cost of health care in future years.  
The following annual trends are based on the current HCA Consulting trend study, and are applied 
on a select and ultimate basis.  Select trends are reduced 0.5% each year until reaching the 
ultimate trend rate. 
 

 
  

61

95



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 8 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (“OPEB”) - continued 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
The following table summarizes the actuarial methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation date: 
 

Valuation Date October 1, 2016 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 
Amortization Method Level Dollar Factor 
Remaining Amortization Period 12 years closed 
Asset Valuation Method Market Value 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

   Discount Rate 3.06% 
  Projected Salary Increases 3.50% 
  Inflation Rate 2.50% 
  

 
 

62

96



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 9 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The City is exposed to risk of loss related: to torts, theft of, damage to or destruction of assets; errors and omissions, injuries 
to employees, and natural disasters.  The City purchases commercial insurance for all types of claims with nominal 
deductible amounts.  The following is a summary of the City’s significant insurance coverage and limitations: 
 

Type of Coverage Coverage Limitations 
Property $96,293,205  Buildings and Personal Property 

 
Not Included Electronic Data Processing 

 
$50,000,000  Flood, per occurrence 

 
Included Radio equipment 

 
Not Included Valuable papers 

 
$250,000  A/R, per location to a maximum of $250,000 

 
$50,000,000  Boiler and Machinery 

 
$700,000  Business income with extra expense 

   Automobile $2,000,000  Liability combined single limit, per occurrence 

 
Statutory Personal Injury protection 

 
Excluded Uninsured/Underinsured motorists bodily injury liability 

 
Included Hired and Non-Owned Physical damage 

 
Included Hired and Non-Owned Auto Liability 

   Crime $500,000  Employee Dishonesty 

 
$500,000  Money & Securities inside and outside 

 
$500,000  Forgery or Alteration 

   General Liability $2,000,000  Combined single limits, per occurrence 

  
Includes premises and products & completed construction 

   Sexual Abuse per person limit $1,000,000  Total policy limit 

   Public Entity Employment Practices Liability $2,000,000  Per occurrence 

   Cyber Liability $1,000,000 Per member 

 
$5,000,000 Per pool aggregate 

   Public Employee Position Bond $1,000,000  Per person 

   Public Officials Errors and Omissions Liability $2,000,000  Each occurrence 

 
$2,000,000  Sexual Harassment 

   Law Enforcement Officers Liability $2,000,000  Each occurrence 

   Statutory Death Benefit (Police, Fire, General) $60,000  Per covered person 

   Fiduciary Responsibility $1,000,000  For all claims 
 

  Pollution Liability $1,000,000  Each occurrence and aggregate 
   
Underground Storage Tank Pollution Liability $1,000,000  Each incident and policy aggregate 

   Employee Benefits Liability $2,000,000 Each occurrence 

   

63

97



 
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – Continued 
September 30, 2017 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 

NOTE 9 – RISK MANAGEMENT - continued   
   
Type of Coverage Coverage Limitations 
Umbrella Liability $3,000,000 Each occurrence excess $2,000,000 underlying 

  

CGL, Law Enforcement, Auto, E&O, Employee  
Benefits Liability 

   Workers’ Compensation Statutory 
 Employers’ Liability $3,000,000  Each accident, disease, aggregate by disease 

   Business Travel Accident Varies Varies 
 
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage during fiscal year 2016-2017.  Settled claims have not 
exceeded the commercial excess coverage in any of the past three years. 
 
NOTE 10 – OTHER DISCLOSURES 
 
A. Excess of Operating Expenses over Final Budgeted Operating Expenses in Individual Funds 
 
     Excess of operating expenses over appropriations in individual funds are as follows at September 30, 2017: 
 

The Transportation Impact Fees Fund actual expenditures exceeded the budgeted expenditures in the amount of $753,170 
primarily due to actual impact fees being higher than budgeted, which increased spending and under-budgeted 
expenditures.  

 
B. Deficit Ending Fund Balance / Net Position 
 
     The Special Assessment Fund had a deficit ending fund balance at September 30, 2017.  This deficit will be remedied in 

future periods from special assessment receipts and additional transfers from the General Fund for project overruns. 
 
NOTE 11 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Intergovernmental Grants 
 
Amounts received or receivable from grantors are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally, federal 
and state governments.  Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the 
applicable funds.  The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this 
time, although the City expects such amounts to be immaterial. 
 
Construction Commitments 
 
As of September 30, 2017, there were uncompleted construction contracts as follows: 
 

Vendor 
 Commitment  

Remaining  

Garney Construction 
                                        

$17,136,000  

Total 
                                           

$17,136,000  
 

64

98



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

99



 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

100



20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

A
ct

ua
ria

lly
 D

et
er

m
in

ed
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

n
1,

82
6,

87
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
67

4,
25

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
1,

69
1,

53
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
76

7,
28

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

90
8,

00
3

$ 
   

   
   

1,
68

4,
76

3
$ 

   
   

   
1,

71
4,

70
8

$ 
   

   
   

1,
72

4,
14

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

09
3,

68
3

$ 
   

   
   

76
1,

58
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
97

4,
23

4
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
07

2,
49

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 in

 R
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

lly
 D

et
er

m
in

ed
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

n
(2

,0
81

,2
90

)
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

,7
77

,3
53

)
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

,6
65

,8
95

)
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

,8
37

,6
20

)
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,1
91

,3
88

)
   

   
   

 
(1

,8
64

,0
64

)
   

   
   

  
(1

,9
02

,1
26

)
   

   
   

  
(1

,8
56

,2
70

)
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

,2
72

,6
69

)
   

   
   

  
(9

36
,8

00
)

   
   

   
   

(1
,0

43
,4

01
)

   
   

   
(1

,0
97

,9
49

)
   

   
   

   
   

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

D
ef

ic
ie

nc
y 

(E
xc

es
s)

(2
54

,4
16

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1
03

,0
98

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
,6

36
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(7

0,
33

8)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
83

,3
85

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

(1
79

,3
01

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

(1
87

,4
18

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

(1
32

,1
24

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
78

,9
86

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

(1
75

,2
14

)
$ 

   
   

   
(6

9,
16

7)
$ 

   
   

   
  

(2
5,

45
4)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 P

ay
ro

ll
11

,0
41

,2
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
,2

37
,6

97
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
9,

77
2,

66
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

9,
81

7,
06

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
6,

75
9,

96
9

$ 
   

   
   

6,
23

2,
61

1
$ 

   
   

   
5,

59
2,

02
5

$ 
   

   
   

5,
46

3,
61

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
6,

16
7,

70
7

$ 
   

   
   

5,
33

3,
01

5
$ 

   
   

 
4,

96
0,

18
0

$ 
   

   
 

4,
70

1,
48

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

s a
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 P

ay
ro

ll
18

.8
5%

17
.3

6%
17

.0
5%

18
.7

2%
32

.4
2%

29
.9

1%
34

.0
1%

33
.9

8%
20

.6
3%

17
.5

7%
21

.0
4%

23
.3

5%

10
/1

/2
01

6
10

/1
/2

01
5

10
/1

/2
01

4
10

/1
/2

01
2

10
/1

/2
01

6
10

/1
/2

01
5

10
/1

/2
01

4
10

/1
/2

01
2

10
/1

/2
01

6
10

/1
/2

01
5

10
/1

/2
01

4
10

/1
/2

01
2

7.
25

%
 p

er
 y

ea
r

7.
25

%
 p

er
 y

ea
r

7.
25

%
 p

er
 y

ea
r

%
 T

er
m

in
at

in
g

%
 B

ec
om

in
g 

D
is

ab
le

d
%

 T
er

m
in

at
in

g
%

 B
ec

om
in

g 
D

is
ab

le
d

%
 T

er
m

in
at

in
g

%
 B

ec
om

in
g 

D
is

ab
le

d
A

ge
D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
Y

ea
r

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

Y
ea

r
D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
Y

ea
r

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

Y
ea

r
D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
Y

ea
r

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

Y
ea

r
20

38
.6

%
0.

07
%

6.
0%

0.
09

%
6.

0%
0.

09
%

30
19

.4
%

0.
11

%
5.

0%
0.

12
%

5.
0%

0.
12

%
40

7.
3%

0.
19

%
2.

6%
0.

21
%

2.
6%

0.
21

%
50

2.
7%

0.
51

%
0.

8%
0.

54
%

0.
8%

0.
54

%
60

1.
2%

1.
70

%
0.

2%
2.

70
%

0.
2%

2.
70

%

N
ot

e 
to

 th
e 

Sc
he

du
le

:
Pl

an
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 o
nl

y 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r y

ea
rs

 2
01

4 
th

ro
ug

h 
20

17
. S

ub
se

qu
en

t y
ea

rs
 w

ill
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

fo
r a

 fu
ll 

te
n-

ye
ar

 tr
en

d 
to

 b
e 

pr
es

en
te

d.

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
A

PO
PK

A
, F

L
O

R
ID

A
SC

H
E

D
U

L
E

 O
F 

C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

S
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 E
M

PL
O

Y
E

E
S'

, P
O

L
IC

E
 O

FF
IC

E
R

S'
 A

N
D

 F
IR

E
FI

G
H

T
E

R
S'

 P
E

N
SI

O
N

 P
L

A
N

S
L

A
ST

 1
0 

FI
SC

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

S

En
try

 A
ge

 N
or

m
al

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 E

M
PL

O
Y

E
E

S
PO

L
IC

E
 O

FF
IC

E
R

S
FI

R
E

FI
G

H
T

E
R

S

V
al

ua
tio

n 
D

at
e

Fu
nd

in
g 

M
et

ho
d

R
P-

20
00

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 to

 2
01

2 
by

 P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Sc
al

e 
A

A
. D

is
ab

le
d 

liv
es

 se
t f

or
w

ar
d 

5 
ye

ar
s.

R
P-

20
00

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 to

 2
01

2 
by

 P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Sc
al

e 
A

A
. 

D
is

ab
le

d 
liv

es
 se

t f
or

w
ar

d 
5 

ye
ar

s.

En
try

 A
ge

 N
or

m
al

Le
ve

l %
 o

f P
ay

 C
lo

se
d

30
 Y

ea
rs

4-
Y

ea
r S

m
oo

th
ed

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

7.
50

%
 p

er
 y

ea
r

7.
50

%
 p

er
 y

ea
r

3.
00

%

Sa
la

ry
 is

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 a

t t
he

 ra
te

 o
f 5

.5
0%

A
ge

 5
7 

Le
ve

l %
 o

f P
ay

 C
lo

se
d

30
 Y

ea
rs

Sa
la

ry
 is

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 a

t t
he

 ra
te

 o
f 5

.5
0%

. P
ro

je
ct

ed
 sa

la
ry

 a
t r

et
ire

m
en

t 
is

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
20

%
 to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r n

on
-re

gu
la

r c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n

7.
50

%
 p

er
 y

ea
r

C
om

m
en

ci
ng

 w
ith

 a
tta

in
m

en
t o

f E
ar

ly
 R

et
ire

m
en

t S
ta

tu
s (

ag
e 

47
 w

ith
 1

0 
ye

ar
s o

f s
er

vi
ce

), 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 re
tir

e 
w

ith
 a

n 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 su
bs

id
iz

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
at

 th
e 

ra
te

 o
f 2

%
 p

er
 y

ea
r.

A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
M

et
ho

d
R

em
ai

ni
ng

 A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pe

rio
d

A
ss

et
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

M
et

ho
d

Se
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

.

Te
rm

in
at

io
n 

an
d 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 R

at
e 

Ta
bl

e

R
P-

20
00

 M
al

e 
D

is
ab

le
d 

se
t b

ac
k 

4 
yr

s, 
Fe

m
al

e 
D

is
ab

le
d 

se
t f

or
w

ar
d 

2 
yr

s

R
P-

20
00

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 to

 2
01

2 
by

 P
ro

je
ct

io
n 

Sc
al

e 
A

A
. D

is
ab

le
d 

liv
es

 se
t 

fo
rw

ar
d 

5 
yr

s

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge

In
fla

tio
n

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
s

In
te

re
st

 R
at

e

O
th

er
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
M

or
ta

lit
y

Te
rm

in
at

io
n 

R
at

es
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 R
at

es

Ea
rly

 R
et

ire
m

en
t

Sa
la

ry
 is

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 a

t t
he

 ra
te

 o
f 5

.5
0%

. P
ro

je
ct

ed
 sa

la
ry

 a
t r

et
ire

m
en

t i
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
20

%
 to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r n

on
-re

gu
la

r c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n

Ea
rli

er
 o

f a
tta

in
m

en
t o

f a
ge

 4
5 

w
ith

 1
0 

ye
ar

s o
f c

re
di

te
d 

se
rv

ic
e,

 o
r 2

0 
ye

ar
s o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f a

ge
. 

C
om

m
en

ci
ng

 w
ith

 a
tta

in
m

en
t o

f E
ar

ly
 R

et
ire

m
en

t S
ta

tu
s (

ag
e 

40
 w

ith
 1

0 
ye

ar
s o

f 
se

rv
ic

e)
, m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 re
tir

e 
w

ith
 a

n 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 su
bs

id
iz

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
at

 th
e 

ra
te

 o
f 5

%
 p

er
 y

ea
r.

Se
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

.
Se

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
.

Se
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

.

R
P-

20
00

 
G

en
er

at
io

na
l 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
w

ith
 

Sc
al

e 
B

B
Te

rm
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 R
at

e 
Ta

bl
e

En
try

 A
ge

 N
or

m
al

Le
ve

l %
 o

f P
ay

 C
lo

se
d

30
 Y

ea
rs

4-
Y

ea
r S

m
oo

th
ed

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

3.
00

%

Ea
rli

er
 o

f a
tta

in
m

en
t o

f a
ge

 5
5 

w
ith

 1
0 

ye
ar

s o
f c

re
di

te
d 

se
rv

ic
e,

 o
r 2

2 
ye

ar
s o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f a

ge
. 

C
om

m
en

ci
ng

 w
ith

 a
tta

in
m

en
t o

f E
ar

ly
 R

et
ire

m
en

t S
ta

tu
s (

ag
e 

50
 w

ith
 1

0 
ye

ar
s o

f 
se

rv
ic

e)
, m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 re
tir

e 
w

ith
 a

n 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 su
bs

id
iz

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
at

 
th

e 
ra

te
 o

f 5
%

 p
er

 y
ea

r.

Se
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

.
Se

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
.

R
P-

20
00

 
G

en
er

at
io

na
l 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
w

ith
 

Sc
al

e 
B

B
Te

rm
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 R
at

e 
Ta

bl
e

4-
Y

ea
r S

m
oo

th
ed

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

3.
00

%

65

101



G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 

E
M

PL
O

Y
E

E
S

PO
L

IC
E

   
   

   
   

   
 

O
FF

IC
E

R
S

FI
R

E
FI

G
H

T
E

R
S

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 

E
M

PL
O

Y
E

E
S

PO
L

IC
E

   
   

   
   

   
 

O
FF

IC
E

R
S

FI
R

E
FI

G
H

T
E

R
S

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 

E
M

PL
O

Y
E

E
S

PO
L

IC
E

   
   

   
   

   
 

O
FF

IC
E

R
S

FI
R

E
FI

G
H

T
E

R
S

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 

E
M

PL
O

Y
E

E
S

PO
L

IC
E

   
   

   
   

   
 

O
FF

IC
E

R
S

FI
R

E
FI

G
H

T
E

R
S

T
ot

al
 P

en
sio

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
os

t
1,

77
5,

98
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

42
2,

83
2

$ 
   

   
  

1,
43

8,
97

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
72

4,
10

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

2,
15

7,
66

2
$ 

   
 

1,
26

9,
60

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
62

9,
19

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

1,
93

4,
06

7
$ 

   
   

   
99

3,
46

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

56
4,

99
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
88

5,
08

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
10

7,
88

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

In
te

re
st

3,
99

6,
51

4
   

   
   

   
 

3,
80

9,
95

5
   

   
   

  
2,

94
0,

39
6

   
   

   
   

  
3,

76
8,

99
9

   
   

   
   

   
3,

48
7,

02
9

   
   

 
2,

69
9,

64
1

   
   

   
   

  
3,

51
7,

51
0

   
   

   
   

   
3,

04
4,

71
1

   
   

   
   

2,
39

6,
52

9
   

   
   

   
  

3,
29

4,
97

2
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

78
7,

11
9

   
   

   
   

 
2,

28
4,

00
5

   
   

   
   

  
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 E
xc

es
s S

ta
te

 M
on

ey
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

80
,6

66
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

2,
25

1
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
61

,8
88

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
5,

67
7

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f B

en
ef

it 
Te

rm
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

16
6,

70
3

   
   

   
   

1,
44

9,
75

6
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

s B
et

w
ee

n 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 A

ct
ua

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e

an
d 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
56

1,
91

9
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

4,
89

8
   

   
   

   
  

94
1,

12
6

   
   

   
   

   
  

14
4,

54
1

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
03

0,
68

0
   

   
 

54
1,

29
5

   
   

   
   

   
  

45
8,

03
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
16

0,
80

6
   

   
   

   
67

0,
99

3
   

   
   

   
   

  
(5

4,
82

7)
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

14
6,

57
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

(4
61

,1
17

)
   

   
   

   
   

 
Be

ne
fit

 P
ay

m
en

ts
, I

nc
lu

di
ng

 R
ef

un
ds

 o
f M

em
be

r C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(3
,1

49
,4

75
)

   
   

   
   

(1
,9

75
,9

39
)

   
   

   
 

(1
,1

57
,6

13
)

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,4
61

,7
78

)
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,1

83
,3

66
)

   
   

(1
,2

25
,5

47
)

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,0
94

,9
64

)
   

   
   

   
  

(1
,3

86
,9

46
)

   
   

   
  

(1
,7

28
,0

61
)

   
   

   
   

 
(1

,6
63

,8
48

)
   

   
   

   
   

(1
,4

03
,2

90
)

   
   

   
   

(1
,2

94
,3

71
)

   
   

   
   

 
N

et
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 T
ot

al
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
3,

18
4,

94
2

   
   

   
   

 
4,

76
1,

74
6

   
   

   
  

4,
16

2,
88

3
   

   
   

   
  

3,
17

5,
86

4
   

   
   

   
   

4,
49

2,
00

5
   

   
 

3,
28

4,
99

7
   

   
   

   
  

3,
50

9,
77

3
   

   
   

   
   

6,
00

0,
00

7
   

   
   

   
3,

88
4,

92
8

   
   

   
   

  
3,

14
1,

29
5

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
47

7,
36

8
   

   
   

   
 

1,
75

2,
08

2
   

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 - 
Be

gi
nn

in
g

54
,6

13
,3

86
   

   
   

  
51

,8
08

,7
28

   
   

   
40

,0
02

,5
33

   
   

   
   

51
,4

37
,5

22
   

   
   

   
 

47
,3

16
,7

23
   

  
36

,7
17

,5
36

   
   

   
   

47
,9

27
,7

49
   

   
   

   
 

41
,3

16
,7

16
   

   
   

 
32

,8
32

,6
08

   
   

   
   

44
,7

86
,4

54
   

   
   

   
   

37
,8

39
,3

48
   

   
   

  
31

,0
80

,5
26

   
   

   
   

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 - 
En

di
ng

 (a
)

57
,7

98
,3

28
$ 

   
   

  
56

,5
70

,4
74

$ 
   

   
 

44
,1

65
,4

16
$ 

   
   

   
54

,6
13

,3
86

$ 
   

   
   

 
51

,8
08

,7
28

$ 
  

40
,0

02
,5

33
$ 

   
   

   
51

,4
37

,5
22

$ 
   

   
   

 
47

,3
16

,7
23

$ 
   

   
 

36
,7

17
,5

36
$ 

   
   

   
47

,9
27

,7
49

$ 
   

   
   

   
41

,3
16

,7
16

$ 
   

   
  

32
,8

32
,6

08
$ 

   
   

   

Pl
an

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 - 

C
ity

2,
08

1,
29

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
19

1,
38

8
$ 

   
   

  
1,

27
2,

66
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

77
7,

35
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

86
4,

06
4

$ 
   

 
93

6,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

66
5,

89
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

90
2,

12
6

$ 
   

   
   

1,
04

3,
40

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

1,
83

7,
62

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

85
6,

27
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

09
7,

94
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 - 

St
at

e
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
80

,6
66

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
2,

25
1

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

61
,8

88
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

5,
67

7
   

   
   

   
   

  
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 - 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s
57

6,
07

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
61

3,
88

0
   

   
   

   
  

65
0,

53
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

53
1,

04
1

   
   

   
   

   
  

64
0,

04
6

   
   

   
 

50
5,

32
7

   
   

   
   

   
  

51
2,

74
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

43
1,

46
1

   
   

   
   

   
45

4,
23

2
   

   
   

   
   

  
53

5,
33

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

39
9,

32
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

52
7,

34
6

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t I

nc
om

e
5,

61
0,

80
6

   
   

   
   

 
5,

56
5,

27
3

   
   

   
  

4,
27

9,
79

4
   

   
   

   
  

3,
33

7,
76

8
   

   
   

   
   

3,
23

5,
12

1
   

   
 

2,
47

9,
64

9
   

   
   

   
  

28
7,

81
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

26
7,

55
0

   
   

   
   

   
21

2,
67

2
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

36
4,

18
5

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
17

9,
74

2
   

   
   

   
 

2,
51

7,
70

5
   

   
   

   
  

Be
ne

fit
 P

ay
m

en
ts

, I
nc

lu
di

ng
 R

ef
un

ds
 o

f M
em

be
r C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(3

,1
49

,1
75

)
   

   
   

   
(1

,9
75

,9
39

)
   

   
   

 
(1

,1
57

,6
13

)
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,4

61
,7

78
)

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,1
83

,3
66

)
   

   
(1

,2
25

,5
47

)
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,0

94
,9

64
)

   
   

   
   

  
(1

,3
86

,9
46

)
   

   
   

  
(1

,7
28

,0
61

)
   

   
   

   
 

(1
,6

63
,8

48
)

   
   

   
   

   
(1

,4
03

,2
90

)
   

   
   

   
(1

,2
94

,3
71

)
   

   
   

   
 

A
dm

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e
(3

9,
71

6)
   

   
   

   
   

 
(3

9,
14

2)
   

   
   

   
   

(3
6,

31
6)

   
   

   
   

   
   

(4
1,

66
5)

   
   

   
   

   
   

(3
7,

05
4)

   
   

   
  

(3
5,

10
9)

   
   

   
   

   
   

(4
8,

63
5)

   
   

   
   

   
   

(5
5,

89
1)

   
   

   
   

   
 

(6
0,

04
0)

   
   

   
   

   
   

(3
1,

93
9)

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(3

1,
54

2)
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

8,
40

2)
   

   
   

   
   

   
N

et
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
la

n 
Fi

du
ci

ar
y 

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

5,
07

9,
27

6
   

   
   

   
 

6,
35

5,
46

0
   

   
   

  
5,

00
9,

06
4

   
   

   
   

  
3,

14
2,

71
9

   
   

   
   

   
3,

51
8,

81
1

   
   

 
2,

66
1,

12
0

   
   

   
   

  
32

2,
86

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

23
8,

96
6

   
   

   
   

24
,4

55
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
04

1,
35

2
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

06
2,

38
8

   
   

   
   

 
2,

93
5,

90
4

   
   

   
   

  
Pl

an
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 - 
Be

gi
nn

in
g,

 a
s r

es
ta

te
d

44
,1

94
,6

65
   

   
   

  
43

,5
00

,2
07

   
   

   
33

,2
78

,9
96

   
   

   
   

41
,0

51
,9

46
   

   
   

   
 

39
,9

81
,3

96
   

  
30

,6
17

,8
76

   
   

   
   

40
,7

29
,0

86
   

   
   

   
 

38
,7

42
,4

30
   

   
   

 
30

,5
93

,4
21

   
   

   
   

36
,6

87
,7

34
   

   
   

   
   

34
,6

80
,0

42
   

   
   

  
27

,6
57

,5
17

   
   

   
   

Pl
an

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 - 

En
di

ng
 (b

)
49

,2
73

,9
41

$ 
   

   
  

49
,8

55
,6

67
$ 

   
   

 
38

,2
88

,0
60

$ 
   

   
   

44
,1

94
,6

65
$ 

   
   

   
 

43
,5

00
,2

07
$ 

  
33

,2
78

,9
96

$ 
   

   
   

41
,0

51
,9

46
$ 

   
   

   
 

39
,9

81
,3

96
$ 

   
   

 
30

,6
17

,8
76

$ 
   

   
   

40
,7

29
,0

86
$ 

   
   

   
   

38
,7

42
,4

30
$ 

   
   

  
30

,5
93

,4
21

$ 
   

   
   

C
ity

's
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y/

(A
ss

et
) -

 e
nd

in
g 

(a
) -

 (b
)

8,
52

4,
38

7
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
71

4,
80

7
$ 

   
   

  
5,

87
7,

35
6

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

,4
18

,7
21

$ 
   

   
   

 
8,

30
8,

52
1

$ 
   

 
6,

72
3,

53
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

,3
85

,5
76

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

33
5,

32
7

$ 
   

   
   

6,
09

9,
66

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

7,
19

8,
66

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2,

57
4,

28
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

23
9,

18
7

$ 
   

   
   

  

Pl
an

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 a

s a
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

85
.2

5%
88

.1
3%

86
.6

9%
80

.9
2%

83
.9

6%
83

.1
9%

79
.8

1%
84

.5
0%

83
.3

9%
84

.9
8%

93
.7

7%
93

.1
8%

C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 P

ay
ro

ll
11

,0
41

,2
75

   
   

   
  

6,
16

7,
70

7
   

   
   

  
6,

75
9,

96
9

   
   

   
   

  
10

,2
37

,9
67

   
   

   
   

 
6,

23
2,

61
1

   
   

 
5,

33
3,

01
5

   
   

   
   

  
9,

77
2,

66
0

   
   

   
   

   
5,

59
2,

02
5

   
   

   
   

4,
96

0,
18

0
   

   
   

   
  

9,
81

7,
06

7
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

46
3,

61
8

   
   

   
   

 
4,

70
1,

48
0

   
   

   
   

  

N
et

 P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 a
s a

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 C

ov
er

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 P
ay

ro
ll

77
.2

0%
10

8.
87

%
86

.9
4%

10
1.

77
%

13
3.

31
%

12
6.

07
%

10
6.

27
%

13
1.

17
%

12
2.

97
%

73
.3

3%
47

.1
2%

47
.6

3%

N
ot

e 
to

 th
e 

Sc
he

du
le

:
Pl

an
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is 

on
ly

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r y
ea

rs
 2

01
4 

th
ro

ug
h 

20
17

. S
ub

se
qu

en
t y

ea
rs

 w
ill

 b
e 

ad
de

d 
fo

r a
 fu

ll 
te

n-
ye

ar
 tr

en
d 

to
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d.

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
A

PO
PK

A
, F

L
O

R
ID

A
SC

H
E

D
U

L
E

 O
F 

C
H

A
N

G
E

S 
IN

 T
H

E
 N

E
T

 P
E

N
SI

O
N

 L
IA

B
IL

IT
Y

 A
N

D
 R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 R
A

T
IO

S
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 E
M

PL
O

Y
E

E
S'

, P
O

L
IC

E
 O

FF
IC

E
R

S'
 A

N
D

 F
IR

E
FI

G
H

T
E

R
S'

 P
E

N
SI

O
N

 P
L

A
N

S
L

A
ST

 1
0 

FI
SC

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

S

20
15

20
14

20
16

20
17

66

102



2017 2016 2015 2014
General Employees

Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return, Net of Investment Expense 12.70% 8.20% 0.70% 9.10%

Police Officers

Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return, Net of Investment Expense 12.70% 8.10% 0.70% 9.10%

Firefighters

Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return, Net of Investment Expense 12.70% 8.10% 0.70% 9.00%

Note to the Schedule:
Plan information is only available for years 2014 through 2017. Subsequent years will be added for a full ten-year trend to be presented.

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS

GENERAL EMPLOYEES', POLICE OFFICERS' AND FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION PLANS

67

103



Actuarial 
Valuation Date

Actuarial Value 
of Assets            

(a)

Actuarial Accrued 
Liability (AAL) 

Entry Age           
(b)

Unfunded AAL 
(UAAL)               

(a-b)
Funded Ratio          

(a/b)
Covered Payroll            

(c)

UAAL as % of 
Covered Payroll          

((b-a)/c)
10/1/2016 -$                        29,331,799$       29,331,799       0.00% 23,146,823$       126.7%
10/1/2014 -                          27,003,172         27,003,172       0.00% 21,803,323         123.8%
10/1/2014 -                          24,915,998         24,915,998       0.00% 21,965,004         113.4%
10/1/2013 -                          26,060,861         26,060,861       0.00% 19,291,933         135.1%
10/1/2012 -                          24,124,054         24,124,054       0.00% 18,549,936         130.0%
10/1/2011 -                          27,060,537         27,060,537       0.00% 18,874,190         143.4%
10/1/2010 -                          24,289,582         24,289,582       0.00% 16,941,501         143.4%

Year Ended 
September 30,

Annual Required 
Contribution

Annual         
OPEB Cost

City 
Contribution

Percentage 
Contributed

Net OPEB 
Obligation

2017 3,000,141$         1,967,665$         2,350,395$       119.5% 18,594,000$       
2016 3,176,666           2,754,828           667,654            24.2% 18,976,430         
2015 3,055,964           2,793,126           645,080            23.1% 16,889,256         
2014 3,220,673           2,996,457           830,437            27.7% 14,741,210         
2013 3,042,760           2,857,680           662,693            23.2% 12,575,190         
2012 3,609,416           3,471,325           836,000            24.1% 10,380,203         
2011 3,239,818           3,144,565           742,000            23.6% 7,744,878           

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN

68

104



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

105



 

 

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND  
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 

 

106



Streets 
Improvement Fund

Law 
Enforcement 

Trust
Transportation 

Impact Fees
Recreation 

Impact Fees Stormwater Grants Fund

Special 
Assessment 

Fund
Police 

Discretionary Fire Impact Fees
Police Impact 

Fees

Total Nonmajor 
Special Revenue 

Funds
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,399,276$         336,534$       7,281,799$      617,771$       2,175,807$         -$                     -$                    311,126$          116,860$          123,116$          12,362,289$       
Accounts Receivable 36,500                -                     -                      -                     -                          -                       -                      -                        -                        -                        36,500                
Due from Other Governments 33,440                -                     -                      -                     1,419                  239,505            -                      -                        -                        -                        274,364              

Total Assets 1,469,216$         336,534$       7,281,799$      617,771$       2,177,226$         239,505$          -$                    311,126$          116,860$          123,116$          12,673,153$       

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 59,083$              -$                   182,277$         -$                   4,429$                100,207$          128,207$        -$                      -$                      -$                      474,203$            
Accrued Liabilities 6,302                  -                     -                      26,933           -                          6,103                -                      7,909                -                        -                        47,247                
Retainage Payable -                          -                     -                      -                     -                          -                       -                      -                          
Due to Pension Beneficiaries -                          -                     -                      -                     -                          -                       -                      -                        -                        -                        -                          
Due to Other Funds -                          -                     -                      -                     -                          -                       -                      -                        -                        -                        -                          
Deposits 3,790                  -                     -                      -                     -                          -                       -                      -                        -                        -                        3,790                  

Total Liabilities 69,175                -                     182,277           26,933           4,429                  106,310            128,207          7,909                -                        -                        525,240              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenues -                          -                     -                      -                     -                          133,195            -                      -                        -                        -                        133,195              

Total Deferred Inflows
of Resources -                          -                     -                      -                     -                          133,195            -                      -                        -                        -                        133,195              

FUND BALANCES
Restricted 1,400,041           336,534         -                      -                     -                          -                       -                      -                        -                        -                        1,736,575           
Committed -                          -                     7,099,522        590,838         2,172,797           -                       -                      303,217            116,860            123,116            10,406,350         
Unassigned (Deficit) -                          -                     -                      -                     -                          -                       (128,207)         -                        -                        -                        (128,207)             

Total Fund Balances 1,400,041           336,534         7,099,522        590,838         2,172,797           -                       (128,207)         303,217            116,860            123,116            12,014,718         

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances 1,469,216$         336,534$       7,281,799$      617,771$       2,177,226$         239,505$          -$                    311,126$          116,860$          123,116$          12,673,153$       

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2017

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

69

107



Streets 
Improvement 

Fund

Law 
Enforcement 

Trust
Transportation 

Impact Fees
Recreation 

Impact Fees Stormwater Grants Fund
Special 

Assessment Fund
Police 

Discretionary
Fire Impact 

Fees
Police Impact 

Fees

Total Nonmajor 
Special Revenue 

Funds
REVENUES
Taxes 1,623,250$       -$                  -$                       -$                   -$                       -$                     -$                     -$                    -$                   -$                   1,623,250$         
Special Assessments -                       -                    -                         -                     -                         -                       65,094              -                      -                     -                     65,094                
Impact Fees -                       -                    2,875,371           217,136          -                         -                       -                       -                      116,526          122,764          3,331,797           
Intergovernmental Revenues -                       -                    -                         -                     -                         372,498            -                       -                      -                     -                     372,498              
Charges for Services 652,266           -                    -                         -                     416,222              -                       40,370             -                     -                     1,108,858           
Fines and Forfeitures -                       16,096           -                         -                     -                         -                       -                       9,613               -                     -                     25,709                
Investment Earnings 5,136               333                34,790                2,661              10,720                -                       39                     1,500               334                352                55,865                
Miscellaneous Revenues -                       -                    -                         -                     -                         -                       13,655             -                     -                     13,655                

Total Revenues 2,280,652        16,429           2,910,161           219,797          426,942              372,498            65,133              65,138             116,860          123,116          6,596,726           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government -                       -                    -                         -                     -                         14,312              -                       -                      -                     -                     14,312                
Public Safety -                       9,501             -                         -                     -                         205,046            -                       145,796           -                     -                     360,343              
Physical Environment -                       -                    -                         -                     91,540                116,469            7,638                -                      -                     -                     215,647              
Transportation 2,864,179        -                    3,453,710           -                     -                         -                       -                       -                      -                     -                     6,317,889           
Culture and Recreation -                       -                    -                         100,531          -                         109,838            -                       -                      -                     -                     210,369              

Total Expenditures 2,864,179        9,501             3,453,710           100,531          91,540                445,665            7,638                145,796           -                     -                     7,118,560           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

   Over (Under) Expenditures (583,527)          6,928             (543,549)             119,266          335,402              (73,167)             57,495              (80,658)           116,860          123,116          (521,834)             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 590,102           158,321              -                     -                         73,167              -                       -                      -                     -                     821,590              
Transfers (Out) -                       -                    (55,800)               (214,121)             -                       (25,500)             -                      -                     -                     (295,421)             
Debt Proceeds -                    -                         -                     -                         -                       -                       -                      -                     -                     -                         

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 590,102           -                    102,521              -                     (214,121)             73,167              (25,500)             -                      -                     -                     526,169              

Net Change in Fund Balances 6,575               6,928             (441,028)             119,266          121,281              -                       31,995              (80,658)           116,860          123,116          4,335                  

Fund Balances (Deficit) - Beginning 1,393,466        329,606         7,540,550           471,572          2,051,516           -                       (160,202)           383,875           -                     -                     12,010,383         

Fund Balances (Deficit) - Ending 1,400,041$       336,534$       7,099,522$         590,838$        2,172,797$         -$                     (128,207)$         303,217$         116,860$        123,116$        12,014,718$       

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

70

108



Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
Taxes 1,638,000$       1,623,250$           (14,750)$                    
Charges for Services 498,500            652,266                153,766                     
Investment Earnings 2,500                5,136                    2,636                         
Miscellaneous -                        -                            -                                 

Total Revenues 2,139,000         2,280,652             141,652                     

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Transportation 3,263,246         2,697,860             565,386                     
Capital Outlay 255,000            166,319                88,681                       

Total Expenditures 3,518,246         2,864,179             654,067                     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
   Over Expenditures (1,379,246)        (583,527)               795,719                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 748,423            590,102                (158,321)                    
Transfers (Out) -                        -                            
Debt Proceeds -                        -                            -                                 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 748,423            590,102                (158,321)                    

Net Change in Fund Balance (630,823)           6,575                    637,398                     

Fund Balance - Beginning 1,393,466         1,393,466             -                                 

Fund Balance - Ending 762,643$          1,400,041$           637,398$                   

Variance with Final 
Budget Positive 

(Negative)

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
STREETS IMPROVEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

71

109



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
Fines and Forfeitures 30,000$            16,096$                (13,904)$                    
Interest 300                   333                       33                              

Total Revenues 30,300              16,429                  (13,871)                      

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public Safety 50,000              9,501                    40,499                       
Capital Outlay 50,000              -                            50,000                       

Total Expenditures 100,000            9,501                    90,499                       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
   Over (Under) Expenditures (69,700)             6,928                    76,628                       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (Out) -                        -                            -                                 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) -                        -                            -                                 

Net Change in Fund Balance (69,700)             6,928                    76,628                       

Fund Balance - Beginning 329,606            329,606                -                                 

Fund Balance - Ending 259,906$          336,534$              76,628$                     

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Variance with Final 
Budget Positive 

(Negative)

72

110



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
Impact Fees 1,500,000$       2,875,371$           1,375,371$                
Investment Earnings 22,000              34,790                  12,790                       

Total Revenues 1,522,000         2,910,161             1,388,161                  

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Transportation 150,000            3,453,710             (3,303,710)                 
Capital Outlay 2,550,000         -                            2,550,000                  

Total Expenditures 2,700,000         3,453,710             (753,710)                    

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
   Over (Under) Expenditures (1,178,000)        (543,549)               634,451                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In -                    158,321                (158,321)                    
Transfers (Out) (55,800)             (55,800)                 -                                 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) (55,800)             102,521                -                                 

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,233,800)        (441,028)               634,451                     

Fund Balance - Beginning 7,540,550         7,540,550             -                                 

Fund Balance - Ending 6,306,750$       7,099,522$           634,451$                   

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Variance with Final 
Budget Positive 

(Negative)

73

111



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

RECREATION IMPACT FEES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
Impact Fees 160,000$          217,136$              57,136$                     
Investment Earnings 1,000                2,661                    1,661                         

Total Revenues 161,000            219,797                58,797                       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Culture/Recreation 750,000            100,531                649,469                     
Total Expenditures 750,000            100,531                649,469                     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
   Over (Under) Expenditures (589,000)           119,266                708,266                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (Out) 489,839            -                            489,839                     

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 489,839            -                            489,839                     

Net Change in Fund Balance (99,161)             119,266                708,266                     

Fund Balance - Beginning 471,572            471,572                -                                 

Fund Balance - Ending 372,411$          590,838$              708,266$                   

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Variance with Final 
Budget Positive 

(Negative)

74

112



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

STORMWATER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
Charges for Services 415,000$          416,222$              1,222$                       
Investment Earnings 8,000                10,720                  2,720                         

Total Revenues 423,000            426,942                3,942                         

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Physical Environment 367,500            52,162                  315,338                     
Capital Outlay 50,000              39,378                  10,622                       

Total Expenditures 417,500            91,540                  325,960                     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
   Over Expenditures 5,500                335,402                329,902                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (Out) (214,121)           (214,121)               -                                 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) (214,121)           (214,121)               -                                 

Net Change in Fund Balance (208,621)           121,281                329,902                     

Fund Balance - Beginning 2,051,516         2,051,516             -                                 

Fund Balance - Ending 1,842,895$       2,172,797$           329,902$                   

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Variance with Final 
Budget Positive 

(Negative)

75

113



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

GRANTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
Intergovernmental Revenues 351,791$          372,498$              20,707$                     

Total Revenues 351,791            372,498                20,707                       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government 520,246            14,312                  505,934                     
Public Safety -                        205,046                (205,046)                    
Culture and Recreation -                        109,838                (109,838)                    

Total Expenditures 520,246            329,196                191,050                     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
   Over Expenditures (168,455)           43,302                  211,757                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (Out) 6,000                73,167                  67,167                       

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 6,000                73,167                  67,167                       

Net Change in Fund Balance (162,455)           116,469                278,924                     

Fund Balance - Beginning -                        -                            -                                 

Fund Balance - Ending (162,455)$         116,469$              278,924$                   

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Variance with Final 
Budget Positive 

(Negative)

76

114



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
Special Assessments 67,000$            65,094$                (1,906)$                      
Investment Earnings 150                   39                         (111)                           

Total Revenues 67,150              65,133                  (2,017)                        

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Physical Environment 16,500              7,638                    8,862                         
Total Expenditures 16,500              7,638                    8,862                         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
   Over Expenditures 50,650              57,495                  6,845                         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (Out) (25,500)             (25,500)                 -                                 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) (25,500)             (25,500)                 -                                 

Net Change in Fund Balance 25,150              31,995                  6,845                         

Fund Balance (Deficit) - Beginning (160,202)           (160,202)               -                                 

Fund Balance (Deficit) - Ending (135,052)$         (128,207)$             6,845$                       

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Variance with Final 
Budget Positive 

(Negative)

77

115



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

POLICE DISCRETIONARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
Charges for Services -$                      40,370$                40,370$                     
Fines and Forfeitures -                        9,613                    9,613                         
Investment Earnings -                        1,500                    1,500                         
Miscellaneous Revenues -                        13,655                  13,655                       

Total Revenues -                        65,138                  65,138                       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public Safety -                        137,803                (137,803)                    
Capital Outlay -                        7,993                    (7,993)                        

Total Expenditures -                        145,796                (145,796)                    

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
   Over Expenditures -                        (80,658)                 (80,658)                      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (Out) -                        -                            -                                 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) -                        -                            -                                 

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        (80,658)                 (80,658)                      

Fund Balance - Beginning 383,875            383,875                -                                 

Fund Balance - Ending 383,875$          303,217$              (80,658)$                    

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Variance with Final 
Budget Positive 

(Negative)

78

116



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

FIRE IMPACT FEES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
Impact Fees -$                      116,526$              116,526$                   
Investment Earnings -                        334                       334                            

Total Revenues -                        116,860                116,860                     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
   Over (Under) Expenditures -                        116,860                116,860                     

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        116,860                116,860                     

Fund Balance - Beginning -                        -                            -                                 

Fund Balance - Ending -$                      116,860$              116,860$                   

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Variance with Final 
Budget Positive 

(Negative)

79

117



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

POLICE IMPACT FEES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Final
Budget Actual

REVENUES
Impact Fees -$                      122,764$              122,764$                   
Investment Earnings -                        352                       352                            

Total Revenues -                        123,116                123,116                     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
   Over (Under) Expenditures -                        123,116                123,116                     

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        123,116                123,116                     

Fund Balance - Beginning -                        -                            -                                 

Fund Balance - Ending -$                      123,116$              123,116$                   

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Variance with Final 
Budget Positive 

(Negative)

80

118



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

119



 

 

STATISTICAL SECTION 
 

120



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

121



Contents Page

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 81-85

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most
significant local revenue source, the property tax. 86-89

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of
the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional
debt in the future. 90-92

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take place. 93-94

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the City's financial report relates to the services
the City provides and the activities it performs. 95-97

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the

comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB
Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003; schedules presenting government-wide information include information
beginning in that year.

Statistical Section

This section of the City of Apopka's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements,
note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City's overall
financial health.

122



Sc
he

du
le

 1
C

ity
 o

f A
po

pk
a

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 b
y 

C
om

po
ne

nt
L

as
t T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs
(a

cc
ru

al
 b

as
is

 o
f a

cc
ou

nt
in

g)

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
N

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

ca
pi

ta
l a

ss
et

s
81

,8
67

,7
99

$ 
   

84
,6

40
,4

36
$ 

   
89

,5
06

,8
66

$ 
   

89
,6

26
,4

66
$ 

   
87

,8
69

,6
26

$ 
   

86
,7

64
,9

54
$ 

   
89

,3
27

,1
68

$ 
   

88
,5

73
,4

33
$ 

   
87

,1
16

,9
86

$ 
   

89
,7

46
,4

04
$ 

   
R

es
tri

ct
ed

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

17
3,

45
5

   
   

  
2,

03
2,

13
1

   
   

  
2,

17
4,

52
3

   
   

  
2,

15
6,

92
2

   
   

  
1,

90
7,

82
2

   
   

  
2,

48
2,

32
3

   
   

  
2,

39
8,

09
6

   
   

  
U

nr
es

tri
ct

ed
19

,0
96

,6
07

   
   

17
,5

63
,0

34
   

   
15

,3
38

,8
37

   
   

11
,5

95
,9

02
   

   
12

,8
31

,1
10

   
   

11
,6

47
,1

04
   

   
8,

86
4,

25
0

   
   

  
(2

14
,7

24
)

   
   

   
 

(9
,4

22
,0

61
)

   
   

(1
0,

74
9,

80
9)

   
 

To
ta

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
 n

et
 a

ss
et

s
10

0,
96

4,
40

6
$ 

 
10

2,
20

3,
47

0
$ 

 
10

4,
84

5,
70

3
$ 

 
10

3,
39

5,
82

3
$ 

 
10

2,
73

2,
86

7
$ 

 
10

0,
58

6,
58

1
$ 

 
10

0,
34

8,
34

0
$ 

 
90

,2
66

,5
31

$ 
   

80
,1

77
,2

48
$ 

   
81

,3
94

,6
91

$ 
   

Bu
si

ne
ss

-ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
N

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

ca
pi

ta
l a

ss
et

s
84

,6
51

,8
08

$ 
   

85
,2

87
,7

85
$ 

   
85

,4
05

,3
61

$ 
   

87
,6

24
,9

78
$ 

   
86

,0
15

,2
27

$ 
   

85
,1

41
,6

27
$ 

   
84

,6
26

,5
87

$ 
   

10
0,

65
6,

36
1

$ 
 

10
3,

14
0,

72
9

$ 
 

12
2,

53
8,

17
9

$ 
 

R
es

tri
ct

ed
13

,7
03

,9
60

   
   

12
,5

71
,7

61
   

   
12

,3
47

,3
88

   
   

9,
30

1,
56

4
   

   
  

9,
84

2,
13

0
   

   
  

10
,3

37
,6

21
   

   
10

,7
62

,6
02

   
   

74
5,

66
1

   
   

   
  

48
1,

44
1

   
   

   
  

28
1,

44
1

   
   

   
  

U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

12
,8

22
,0

79
   

   
12

,5
89

,9
92

   
   

13
,5

69
,6

52
   

   
15

,6
40

,4
02

   
   

17
,2

83
,8

78
   

   
18

,3
62

,8
98

   
   

19
,3

09
,2

66
   

   
17

,0
57

,9
07

   
   

17
,0

18
,2

63
   

   
4,

84
6,

80
7

   
   

  
To

ta
l b

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 n

et
 a

ss
et

s
11

1,
17

7,
84

7
$ 

 
11

0,
44

9,
53

8
$ 

 
11

1,
32

2,
40

1
$ 

 
11

2,
56

6,
94

4
$ 

 
11

3,
14

1,
23

5
$ 

 
11

3,
84

2,
14

6
$ 

 
11

4,
69

8,
45

5
$ 

 
11

8,
45

9,
92

9
$ 

 
12

0,
64

0,
43

3
$ 

 
12

7,
66

6,
42

7
$ 

 

T
ot

al
 N

et
 A

ss
et

s
Pr

im
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t
N

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

ca
pi

ta
l a

ss
et

s
16

6,
51

9,
60

7
$ 

 
16

9,
92

8,
22

1
$ 

 
17

4,
91

2,
22

7
$ 

 
17

7,
25

1,
44

4
$ 

 
17

3,
88

4,
85

3
$ 

 
17

1,
90

6,
58

1
$ 

 
17

3,
95

3,
75

5
$ 

 
18

9,
22

9,
79

4
$ 

 
19

0,
25

7,
71

5
$ 

 
21

2,
28

4,
58

3
$ 

 
R

es
tri

ct
ed

13
,7

03
,9

60
   

   
12

,5
71

,7
61

   
   

12
,3

47
,3

88
   

   
11

,4
75

,0
19

   
   

11
,8

74
,2

61
   

   
12

,5
12

,1
44

   
   

12
,9

19
,5

24
   

   
2,

65
3,

48
3

   
   

  
2,

96
3,

76
4

   
   

  
2,

67
9,

53
7

   
   

  
U

nr
es

tri
ct

ed
31

,9
18

,6
86

   
   

30
,1

53
,0

26
   

   
28

,9
08

,4
89

   
   

27
,2

36
,3

04
   

   
30

,1
14

,9
88

   
   

30
,0

10
,0

02
   

   
28

,1
73

,5
16

   
   

16
,8

43
,1

83
   

   
7,

59
6,

20
2

   
   

  
(5

,9
03

,0
02

)
   

   
To

ta
l p

rim
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t n
et

 a
ss

et
s

21
2,

14
2,

25
3

$ 
 

21
2,

65
3,

00
8

$ 
 

21
6,

16
8,

10
4

$ 
 

21
5,

96
2,

76
7

$ 
 

21
5,

87
4,

10
2

$ 
 

21
4,

42
8,

72
7

$ 
 

21
5,

04
6,

79
5

$ 
 

20
8,

72
6,

46
0

$ 
 

20
0,

81
7,

68
1

$ 
 

20
9,

06
1,

11
8

$ 
 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

81

123



Sc
he

du
le

 2
C

ity
 o

f A
po

pk
a

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
La

st
 T

en
 F

isc
al

 Y
ea

rs
(a

cc
ru

al
 b

as
is

 o
f a

cc
ou

nt
in

g)

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

Ex
pe

ns
es

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
:

G
en

er
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t

5,
30

5,
91

9
$ 

   
 

5,
48

9,
29

8
$ 

   
 

7,
06

6,
26

7
$ 

   
 

6,
04

2,
00

3
$ 

   
 

6,
99

5,
37

1
$ 

   
 

6,
14

8,
92

0
$ 

   
 

6,
37

7,
89

1
$ 

   
 

6,
51

1,
97

4
$ 

   
 

10
,5

51
,9

24
$ 

  
10

,4
50

,1
76

$ 
  

Pu
bl

ic
 sa

fe
ty

18
,1

64
,7

62
   

  
20

,7
34

,1
13

   
  

20
,6

87
,2

24
   

  
22

,6
86

,1
15

   
  

23
,5

02
,4

77
   

  
26

,0
38

,0
39

   
  

25
,9

85
,1

90
   

  
27

,8
64

,8
02

   
  

33
,9

42
,5

57
   

  
29

,1
89

,8
80

   
  

Ph
ys

ic
al

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

5,
76

7
   

   
   

 
15

2,
25

2
   

   
   

 
33

5,
01

1
   

   
   

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n

5,
20

1,
55

3
   

   
 

4,
96

3,
39

2
   

   
 

5,
30

9,
41

9
   

   
 

5,
01

6,
37

6
   

   
 

5,
44

0,
39

1
   

   
 

5,
78

1,
28

8
   

   
 

8,
09

3,
85

8
   

   
 

5,
59

5,
62

5
5,

66
1,

53
4

6,
12

9,
08

7
   

   
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l
24

7,
28

8
   

   
   

 
18

1,
21

0
   

   
   

 
18

9,
30

7
   

   
   

 
47

9,
13

0
   

   
   

 
20

3,
25

0
   

   
   

 
23

6,
84

3
   

   
   

 
25

1,
57

7
   

   
   

 
22

8,
42

2
   

   
   

 
24

1,
46

7
   

   
   

 
28

3,
24

6
   

   
   

 
C

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 re

cr
ea

tio
n

2,
98

3,
58

0
   

   
 

2,
98

7,
47

8
   

   
 

2,
74

4,
46

8
   

   
 

3,
19

7,
66

1
   

   
 

2,
69

9,
13

0
   

   
 

3,
80

2,
96

2
   

   
 

3,
98

5,
13

7
   

   
 

3,
97

1,
40

9
   

   
 

3,
97

3,
53

6
   

   
 

3,
89

9,
52

4
   

   
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 d
eb

t
44

3,
33

0
   

   
   

 
61

1,
99

4
   

   
   

 
60

9,
81

8
   

   
   

 
55

7,
05

9
   

   
   

 
50

1,
90

6
   

   
   

 
44

0,
84

3
   

   
   

 
34

1,
78

5
   

   
   

 
27

9,
35

1
   

   
   

 
26

0,
54

3
   

   
   

 
22

7,
85

8
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

 e
xp

en
se

s
32

,3
46

,4
32

   
  

34
,9

67
,4

85
   

  
36

,6
06

,5
03

   
  

37
,9

78
,3

44
   

  
39

,3
42

,5
25

   
  

42
,4

48
,8

95
   

  
45

,0
35

,4
38

   
  

44
,7

57
,3

50
   

  
54

,7
83

,8
13

   
  

50
,5

14
,7

82
   

  

B
us

in
es

s-
ty

pe
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

:
U

til
ity

 sy
st

em
13

,3
05

,2
65

   
  

13
,4

71
,2

77
   

  
13

,4
83

,2
00

   
  

13
,6

33
,2

36
   

  
13

,7
93

,7
70

   
  

15
,0

66
,7

90
   

  
15

,0
19

,0
98

   
  

16
,0

36
,5

73
   

  
15

,3
12

,5
42

   
  

13
,3

09
,8

05
   

  
Sa

ni
ta

tio
n

3,
07

2,
99

9
   

   
 

3,
04

3,
15

8
   

   
 

3,
08

7,
32

8
   

   
 

3,
26

0,
50

3
   

   
 

3,
39

7,
04

1
   

   
 

3,
39

7,
74

5
   

   
 

3,
45

3,
25

3
   

   
 

3,
64

2,
60

5
   

   
 

3,
88

4,
27

3
   

   
 

3,
16

5,
18

6
   

   
 

A
irp

or
t f

ue
l

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
53

8,
30

6
   

   
   

 
32

3,
13

9
   

   
   

 
33

0,
66

2
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l b

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 e

xp
en

se
s

16
,3

78
,2

64
   

  
16

,5
14

,4
35

   
  

16
,5

70
,5

28
   

  
16

,8
93

,7
39

   
  

17
,1

90
,8

11
   

  
18

,4
64

,5
35

   
  

18
,4

72
,3

51
   

  
20

,2
17

,4
84

   
  

19
,5

19
,9

54
   

  
16

,8
05

,6
53

   
  

To
ta

l p
rim

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t e

xp
en

se
s

48
,7

24
,6

96
$ 

  
51

,4
81

,9
20

$ 
  

53
,1

77
,0

31
$ 

  
54

,8
72

,0
83

$ 
  

56
,5

33
,3

36
$ 

  
60

,9
13

,4
30

$ 
  

63
,5

07
,7

89
$ 

  
64

,9
74

,8
34

$ 
  

74
,3

03
,7

67
$ 

  
67

,3
20

,4
35

$ 
  

Pr
og

ra
m

 R
ev

en
ue

s
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

:
C

ha
rg

es
 fo

r s
er

vi
ce

s:
G

en
er

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t
1,

50
7,

28
5

$ 
   

 
1,

09
8,

25
4

$ 
   

 
1,

25
7,

85
3

$ 
   

 
1,

30
8,

18
2

$ 
   

 
1,

83
5,

68
7

$ 
   

 
1,

93
5,

22
9

$ 
   

 
3,

92
2,

15
5

$ 
   

 
3,

53
9,

92
8

$ 
   

 
4,

31
2,

50
3

$ 
   

 
5,

03
5,

98
0

$ 
   

 
Pu

bl
ic

 sa
fe

ty
1,

72
5,

27
8

2,
39

8,
29

3
   

   
 

3,
33

0,
19

2
   

   
 

3,
64

7,
62

0
   

   
 

4,
66

4,
24

9
   

   
 

4,
98

9,
18

2
   

   
 

1,
93

7,
81

0
   

   
 

1,
77

5,
39

8
   

   
 

1,
24

9,
90

5
   

   
 

1,
30

9,
86

2
   

   
 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n
41

5,
32

2
45

7,
68

3
   

   
   

 
57

9,
97

0
   

   
   

 
47

5,
38

9
   

   
   

 
57

6,
49

8
   

   
   

 
95

9,
10

0
   

   
   

 
2,

11
7,

94
6

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l
38

7,
90

2
39

3,
67

5
   

   
   

 
39

8,
60

7
   

   
   

 
40

0,
94

8
   

   
   

 
40

9,
74

1
   

   
   

 
40

1,
23

9
   

   
   

 
2,

01
9,

38
9

   
   

 
2,

37
7,

97
6

   
   

 
2,

95
0,

40
7

   
   

 
3,

00
3,

56
9

   
   

 
C

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 re

cr
ea

tio
n

56
8,

68
2

49
1,

73
6

   
   

   
 

50
1,

54
0

   
   

   
 

51
6,

99
3

   
   

   
 

73
1,

74
0

   
   

   
 

89
1,

31
5

   
   

   
 

81
3,

57
6

   
   

   
 

69
6,

45
5

   
   

   
 

81
4,

37
6

   
   

   
 

67
7,

16
4

   
   

   
 

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s r
ev

en
ue

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

gr
an

ts
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
7,

24
3,

98
8

   
   

 
6,

76
7,

07
2

   
   

 
6,

77
7,

07
0

   
   

 
7,

61
6,

07
0

   
   

 
7,

65
8,

91
0

   
   

 
8,

46
8,

82
9

   
   

 
1,

28
3,

71
8

   
   

 
99

3,
78

8
   

   
   

 
1,

51
0,

31
0

   
   

 
1,

44
4,

57
3

   
   

 
C

ap
ita

l g
ra

nt
s a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
2,

67
1,

24
2

   
   

 
2,

25
8,

09
0

   
   

 
4,

36
4,

26
6

   
   

 
1,

57
0,

73
4

   
   

 
2,

47
4,

55
4

   
   

 
1,

90
4,

21
3

   
   

 
1,

85
5,

69
4

   
   

 
2,

34
5,

94
1

   
   

 
2,

02
6,

20
2

   
   

 
3,

52
6,

95
9

   
   

 
To

ta
l g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

 p
ro

gr
am

 re
ve

nu
es

14
,5

19
,6

99
   

  
13

,8
64

,8
03

   
  

17
,2

09
,4

98
   

  
15

,5
35

,9
36

   
  

18
,3

51
,3

79
   

  
19

,5
49

,1
07

   
  

13
,9

50
,2

88
   

  
11

,7
29

,4
86

   
  

12
,8

63
,7

03
   

  
14

,9
98

,1
07

   
  

B
us

in
es

s-
ty

pe
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

:
C

ha
rg

es
 fo

r s
er

vi
ce

s:
  U

til
ity

 sy
st

em
:

W
at

er
 sa

le
s

4,
41

0,
79

1
   

   
 

4,
47

8,
28

6
   

   
 

4,
76

6,
79

6
   

   
 

5,
37

1,
82

6
   

   
 

5,
76

5,
96

9
   

   
 

5,
54

8,
70

1
   

   
 

5,
54

1,
17

2
   

   
 

5,
74

9,
00

2
   

   
 

5,
99

1,
86

0
   

   
 

8,
76

2,
95

1
   

   
 

Se
w

er
 sa

le
s

4,
61

1,
79

3
   

   
 

4,
77

3,
40

8
   

   
 

4,
92

6,
14

9
   

   
 

5,
16

7,
00

2
   

   
 

5,
47

9,
37

1
   

   
 

5,
53

7,
93

9
   

   
 

5,
69

1,
20

1
   

   
 

5,
98

4,
90

3
   

   
 

6,
11

6,
09

6
   

   
 

6,
64

8,
90

5
   

   
 

R
ec

la
im

ed
 w

at
er

 sa
le

s
1,

66
0,

92
8

   
   

 
2,

29
5,

69
0

   
   

 
2,

32
9,

37
2

   
   

 
2,

83
6,

58
3

   
   

 
2,

82
1,

40
3

   
   

 
2,

49
1,

13
6

   
   

 
2,

66
1,

17
6

   
   

 
2,

70
5,

53
4

   
   

 
3,

12
4,

26
9

   
   

 
1,

43
5,

43
5

   
   

 
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s r

ev
en

ue
s

86
3,

15
4

   
   

   
 

88
4,

45
4

   
   

   
 

1,
05

2,
38

4
   

   
 

83
4,

89
9

   
   

   
 

88
6,

67
4

   
   

   
 

1,
20

1,
53

7
   

   
 

1,
08

5,
24

3
   

   
 

1,
09

6,
05

4
   

   
 

1,
17

5,
84

3
   

   
 

1,
30

0,
93

5
   

   
 

  S
an

ita
tio

n:
Sa

ni
ta

tio
n 

fe
es

3,
64

5,
79

9
   

   
 

3,
55

5,
18

0
   

   
 

3,
57

1,
54

8
   

   
 

3,
60

3,
01

6
   

   
 

3,
62

4,
24

1
   

   
 

3,
70

7,
52

5
   

   
 

3,
82

7,
34

9
   

   
 

3,
98

3,
82

5
   

   
 

4,
15

3,
09

9
   

   
 

4,
42

2,
87

9
   

   
 

Fi
ne

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
1

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s r
ev

en
ue

s
16

0,
62

5
   

   
   

 
20

5,
43

8
   

   
   

 
15

6,
10

6
   

   
   

 
16

9,
27

3
   

   
   

 
17

4,
70

1
   

   
   

 
15

4,
41

6
   

   
   

 
17

9,
49

4
   

   
   

 
17

8,
81

8
   

   
   

 
17

7,
74

2
   

   
   

 
10

9,
16

6
   

   
   

 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

82

124



Sc
he

du
le

 2
C

ity
 o

f A
po

pk
a

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
La

st
 T

en
 F

isc
al

 Y
ea

rs
(a

cc
ru

al
 b

as
is

 o
f a

cc
ou

nt
in

g)

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

A
irp

or
t F

ue
l

Fu
el

 S
al

es
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
7,

46
4

$ 
   

   
 

33
7,

69
7

$ 
   

   
 

33
6,

51
0

$ 
   

   
 

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s r
ev

en
ue

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

23
,0

75
   

   
   

   
32

,3
97

   
   

   
   

38
,0

38
   

   
   

   
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

gr
an

ts
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
69

3,
32

0
   

   
 

1,
02

0,
97

6
   

   
 

76
4,

30
2

   
   

   
 

C
ap

ita
l g

ra
nt

s a
nd

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

2,
29

6,
96

0
   

   
 

2,
32

9,
51

2
   

   
 

3,
54

9,
28

7
   

   
 

3,
28

2,
43

9
   

   
 

2,
31

3,
25

9
   

   
 

4,
05

9,
84

7
   

   
 

4,
08

8,
78

4
   

   
 

5,
83

1,
36

2
   

   
 

5,
39

5,
04

3
   

   
 

5,
67

8,
39

6
   

   
 

To
ta

l b
us

in
es

s-
ty

pe
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 p
ro

gr
am

 re
ve

nu
es

17
,6

50
,0

50
   

  
18

,5
21

,9
68

   
  

20
,3

51
,6

42
   

  
21

,2
65

,1
89

   
  

21
,0

65
,6

18
   

  
22

,7
01

,1
01

   
  

23
,0

74
,4

19
   

  
30

,7
53

,3
57

   
  

27
,5

25
,0

22
   

  
29

,4
97

,5
17

   
  

To
ta

l p
rim

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t p

ro
gr

am
 re

ve
nu

es
32

,1
69

,7
49

$ 
  

32
,3

86
,7

71
$ 

  
37

,5
61

,1
40

$ 
  

36
,8

01
,1

25
$ 

  
39

,4
16

,9
97

$ 
  

42
,2

50
,2

08
$ 

  
37

,0
24

,7
07

$ 
  

42
,4

82
,8

43
$ 

  
40

,3
88

,7
25

$ 
  

44
,4

95
,6

24
$ 

  

N
et

 (E
xp

en
se

)/R
ev

en
ue

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
(1

7,
82

6,
73

3)
$ 

 
(2

1,
10

2,
68

2)
$ 

 
(1

9,
39

7,
00

5)
$ 

 
(2

2,
44

2,
40

8)
$ 

 
(2

0,
99

1,
14

6)
$ 

 
(2

2,
89

9,
78

8)
$ 

 
(3

1,
08

5,
15

0)
$ 

 
(3

3,
02

7,
86

4)
$ 

 
(4

1,
92

0,
11

0)
$ 

 
(3

5,
51

6,
67

5)
$ 

 
B

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
1,

27
1,

78
6

   
   

 
2,

00
7,

53
3

   
   

 
3,

78
1,

11
4

   
   

 
4,

37
1,

45
0

   
   

 
3,

87
4,

80
7

   
   

 
4,

23
6,

56
6

   
   

 
4,

60
2,

06
8

   
   

 
10

,5
35

,8
73

   
  

8,
00

5,
06

8
   

   
 

12
,6

91
,8

64
   

  
To

ta
l p

rim
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t n
et

 e
xp

en
se

(1
6,

55
4,

94
7)

$ 
 

(1
9,

09
5,

14
9)

$ 
 

(1
5,

61
5,

89
1)

$ 
 

(1
8,

07
0,

95
8)

$ 
 

(1
7,

11
6,

33
9)

$ 
 

(1
8,

66
3,

22
2)

$ 
 

(2
6,

48
3,

08
2)

$ 
 

(2
2,

49
1,

99
1)

$ 
 

(3
3,

91
5,

04
2)

$ 
 

(2
2,

82
4,

81
1)

$ 
 

G
en

er
al

 R
ev

en
ue

s a
nd

 O
th

er
 C

ha
ng

es
 in

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
:

Ta
xe

s
Pr

op
er

ty
 ta

xe
s

8,
48

1,
78

0
$ 

   
 

9,
04

5,
56

5
$ 

   
 

8,
03

2,
96

5
$ 

   
 

6,
96

7,
59

1
$ 

   
 

6,
70

8,
58

2
$ 

   
 

6,
47

3,
48

6
$ 

   
 

6,
78

9,
00

4
$ 

   
 

6,
99

4,
98

7
$ 

   
 

7,
87

4,
03

1
$ 

   
 

9,
88

0,
49

5
$ 

   
 

Fr
an

ch
is

e 
ta

xe
s, 

ut
ili

ty
 ta

xe
s a

nd
   

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 ta
x

7,
96

4,
94

2
   

   
 

8,
26

6,
40

2
   

   
 

8,
91

0,
57

0
   

   
 

8,
73

1,
05

9
   

   
 

8,
32

8,
61

2
   

   
 

8,
45

0,
60

4
   

   
 

16
,7

13
,1

71
   

  
17

,6
45

,7
62

   
  

16
,1

47
,2

99
   

  
17

,9
78

,1
74

   
  

G
as

ol
in

e 
ta

xe
s

1,
31

7,
75

8
   

   
 

1,
30

8,
11

7
   

   
 

1,
32

5,
62

3
   

   
 

1,
31

9,
66

8
   

   
 

1,
30

8,
22

0
   

   
 

1,
41

2,
72

2
   

   
 

1,
43

3,
90

0
   

   
 

1,
49

7,
36

4
   

   
 

1,
44

8,
90

6
   

   
 

1,
62

3,
25

0
   

   
 

Sa
le

 o
f c

ap
ita

l a
ss

et
s

59
,4

91
   

   
   

   
24

,0
24

   
   

   
   

33
,1

54
   

   
   

   
70

,0
46

   
   

   
   

(1
00

,6
45

)
   

   
   

81
,3

74
   

   
   

   
11

,4
44

   
   

   
   

5,
84

5
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s r
ev

en
ue

s
92

0,
77

1
   

   
   

 
60

4,
49

3
   

   
   

 
50

9,
46

2
   

   
   

 
50

3,
96

9
   

   
   

 
49

0,
66

4
   

   
   

 
56

1,
57

8
   

   
   

 
23

5,
91

1
   

   
   

 
20

8,
13

2
   

   
   

 
24

6,
35

1
   

   
   

 
1,

25
3,

93
1

   
   

 
In

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

s
75

2,
84

2
   

   
   

 
18

9,
14

5
   

   
   

 
12

9,
71

4
   

   
   

 
12

0,
39

5
   

   
   

 
12

2,
56

7
   

   
   

 
95

,3
08

   
   

   
   

98
,7

12
   

   
   

   
10

2,
48

2
   

   
   

 
12

9,
57

7
   

   
   

 
15

5,
32

2
   

   
   

 
Tr

an
sf

er
s

2,
92

1,
16

9
   

   
 

2,
90

4,
00

0
   

   
 

3,
09

7,
75

0
   

   
 

3,
27

9,
80

0
   

   
 

3,
47

0,
19

0
   

   
 

3,
67

8,
43

0
   

   
 

3,
89

9,
13

0
   

   
 

4,
13

3,
06

0
   

   
 

5,
98

4,
66

3
   

   
 

5,
84

2,
94

6
   

   
 

To
ta

l g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
22

,4
18

,7
53

   
  

22
,3

41
,7

46
   

  
22

,0
39

,2
38

   
  

20
,9

92
,5

28
   

  
20

,3
28

,1
90

   
  

20
,7

53
,5

02
   

  
29

,1
81

,2
72

   
  

30
,5

87
,6

32
   

  
31

,8
30

,8
27

   
  

36
,7

34
,1

18
   

  

B
us

in
es

s-
ty

pe
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

:
Sa

le
 o

f c
ap

ita
l a

ss
et

s
28

,9
21

   
   

   
   

3,
80

0
   

   
   

   
  

27
,4

53
   

   
   

   
12

,0
99

   
   

   
   

41
,6

47
   

   
   

   
16

,2
38

   
   

   
   

12
,2

87
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t e

ar
ni

ng
s

83
3,

46
6

   
   

   
 

16
4,

35
8

   
   

   
 

11
1,

29
0

   
   

   
 

10
8,

95
2

   
   

   
 

93
,3

32
   

   
   

   
84

,1
91

   
   

   
   

10
4,

44
8

   
   

   
 

99
,2

69
   

   
   

   
11

2,
76

1
   

   
   

 
11

3,
53

8
   

   
   

 
Fr

an
ch

is
e 

ta
xe

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

,9
99

   
   

   
   

31
,8

39
   

   
   

   
34

,6
95

   
   

   
   

42
,3

46
   

   
   

   
36

,6
36

   
   

   
   

37
,7

29
   

   
   

   
47

,3
38

   
   

   
   

63
,5

38
   

   
   

   
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s r

ev
en

ue
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

,7
57

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Tr

an
sf

er
s

(2
,9

21
,1

69
)

   
   

(2
,9

04
,0

00
)

   
   

(3
,0

97
,7

50
)

   
   

(3
,2

79
,8

00
)

   
   

(3
,4

70
,1

90
)

   
   

(3
,6

78
,4

30
)

   
   

(3
,8

99
,1

30
)

   
   

(4
,1

33
,0

60
)

   
   

(5
,9

84
,6

63
)

   
   

(5
,8

42
,9

46
)

   
   

To
ta

l b
us

in
es

s-
ty

pe
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

(2
,0

58
,7

82
)

   
   

(2
,7

35
,8

42
)

   
   

(2
,9

08
,2

51
)

   
   

(3
,1

26
,9

10
)

   
   

(3
,3

00
,5

16
)

   
   

(3
,5

35
,6

55
)

   
   

(3
,7

45
,7

59
)

   
   

(3
,9

96
,0

62
)

   
   

(5
,8

24
,5

64
)

   
   

(5
,6

65
,8

70
)

   
   

To
ta

l p
rim

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t

20
,3

59
,9

71
$ 

  
19

,6
05

,9
04

$ 
  

19
,1

30
,9

87
$ 

  
17

,8
65

,6
18

$ 
  

17
,0

27
,6

74
$ 

  
17

,2
17

,8
47

$ 
  

25
,4

35
,5

13
$ 

  
26

,5
91

,5
70

$ 
  

26
,0

06
,2

63
$ 

  
31

,0
68

,2
48

$ 
  

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

4,
59

2,
02

0
$ 

   
 

1,
23

9,
06

4
$ 

   
 

2,
64

2,
23

3
$ 

   
 

(1
,4

49
,8

80
)

$ 
   

(6
62

,9
56

)
$ 

   
   

(2
,1

46
,2

86
)

$ 
   

(1
,9

03
,8

78
)

$ 
   

(2
,4

40
,2

32
)

$ 
   

(1
0,

08
9,

28
3)

$ 
 

1,
21

7,
44

3
$ 

   
 

B
us

in
es

s-
ty

pe
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

(7
86

,9
96

)
   

   
   

(7
28

,3
09

)
   

   
   

87
2,

86
3

   
   

   
 

1,
24

4,
54

3
   

   
 

57
4,

29
1

   
   

   
 

70
0,

91
1

   
   

   
 

85
6,

30
9

   
   

   
 

6,
53

9,
81

1
   

   
 

2,
18

0,
50

4
   

   
 

7,
02

5,
99

4
   

   
 

To
ta

l p
rim

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t

3,
80

5,
02

4
$ 

   
 

51
0,

75
5

$ 
   

   
 

3,
51

5,
09

6
$ 

   
 

(2
05

,3
37

)
$ 

   
   

(8
8,

66
5)

$ 
   

   
  

(1
,4

45
,3

75
)

$ 
   

(1
,0

47
,5

69
)

$ 
   

4,
09

9,
57

9
$ 

   
 

(7
,9

08
,7

79
)

$ 
   

8,
24

3,
43

7
$ 

   
 

83

125



Sc
he

du
le

 3
C

ity
 o

f A
po

pk
a

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

s, 
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l F

un
ds

L
as

t T
en

 F
isc

al
 Y

ea
rs

(m
od

ifi
ed

 a
cc

ru
al

 b
as

is
 o

f a
cc

ou
nt

in
g)

20
07

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

G
en

er
al

 fu
nd

R
es

er
ve

d
41

2,
66

2
$ 

   
   

24
4,

04
8

$ 
   

   
42

6,
27

7
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

U
nr

es
er

ve
d

7,
96

9,
14

6
   

   
7,

24
4,

32
2

   
   

8,
49

6,
57

3
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
N

on
sp

en
da

bl
e

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
30

3,
05

4
   

   
20

4,
07

4
   

   
   

21
5,

03
5

   
   

   
22

5,
52

6
   

   
   

89
,4

21
   

   
   

  
91

,1
18

   
   

   
  

99
,3

28
   

   
   

  
R

es
tri

ct
ed

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

91
3,

18
0

   
   

   
97

4,
66

5
   

   
   

96
4,

80
1

   
   

   
1,

01
7,

74
9

   
   

95
6,

25
2

   
   

   
75

9,
25

1
   

   
   

66
1,

52
1

   
   

   
C

om
m

itt
ed

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

86
1,

94
0

   
   

   
94

0,
18

0
   

   
   

70
3,

44
5

   
   

   
51

2,
59

1
   

   
   

97
9,

14
6

   
   

   
78

4,
43

9
   

   
   

75
0,

93
0

   
   

   
A

ss
ig

ne
d

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

84
4,

54
6

   
   

   
85

2,
90

8
   

   
   

85
4,

82
3

   
   

   
85

4,
54

1
   

   
   

85
5,

80
9

   
   

   
85

5,
80

9
   

   
   

85
5,

80
9

   
   

   
U

na
ss

ig
ne

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

50
5,

32
2

   
   

8,
81

2,
31

1
   

   
8,

78
8,

24
8

   
   

8,
22

8,
16

7
   

   
8,

99
3,

37
3

   
   

8,
07

6,
02

3
   

   
9,

91
3,

10
3

   
   

To
ta

l g
en

er
al

 fu
nd

8,
38

1,
80

8
$ 

   
7,

48
8,

37
0

$ 
   

8,
92

2,
85

0
$ 

   
9,

42
8,

04
2

$ 
   

11
,7

84
,1

38
$ 

 
11

,5
26

,3
52

$ 
 

10
,8

38
,5

74
$ 

 
11

,8
74

,0
01

$ 
 

10
,5

66
,6

40
$ 

 
12

,2
80

,6
91

$ 
 

A
ll 

O
th

er
 G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l F

un
ds

R
es

er
ve

d
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
U

nr
es

er
ve

d,
 re

po
rte

d 
in

:
Sp

ec
ia

l r
ev

en
ue

 fu
nd

s
12

,8
50

,7
94

   
 

12
,1

44
,2

03
   

 
10

,5
21

,2
23

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
ap

ita
l p

ro
je

ct
s f

un
ds

36
9,

58
8

   
   

   
38

4,
06

3
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
es

tri
ct

ed
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

26
0,

27
5

   
   

1,
05

7,
47

6
   

   
1,

20
9,

72
2

   
   

1,
13

9,
17

3
   

   
95

1,
57

0
   

   
   

1,
72

3,
07

2
   

   
1,

73
6,

57
5

   
   

U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

9,
86

4,
95

9
   

   
10

,8
08

,0
15

   
 

11
,1

74
,0

83
   

 
9,

56
0,

67
9

   
   

10
,4

72
,9

18
   

 
12

,5
02

,5
85

   
 

12
,4

97
,8

74
   

 
U

na
ss

ig
ne

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

99
,7

10
)

   
   

  
(1

60
,2

02
)

   
   

  
(1

28
,2

07
)

   
   

  
To

ta
l a

ll 
ot

he
r g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l f

un
ds

13
,2

20
,3

82
$ 

 
12

,5
28

,2
66

$ 
 

10
,5

21
,2

23
$ 

 
11

,1
25

,2
34

$ 
 

11
,8

65
,4

91
$ 

 
12

,3
83

,8
05

$ 
 

10
,6

99
,8

52
$ 

 
11

,2
24

,7
78

$ 
 

14
,0

65
,4

55
$ 

 
14

,1
06

,2
42

$ 
 

Th
e 

C
ity

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

G
A

SB
 5

4 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

w
ith

 fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r 2

01
1 

an
d 

ha
s e

le
ct

ed
 to

 d
is

pl
ay

 th
is

 c
ha

ng
e 

pr
os

pe
ct

iv
el

y.
  A

dd
iti

on
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ca
n 

be
 fo

un
d 

in
 th

e 
N

ot
es

 to
 th

e 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts
(a

)

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

84

126



Sc
he

du
le

 4
C

ity
 o

f A
po

pk
a

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

s, 
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l F

un
ds

L
as

t T
en

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

(m
od

ifi
ed

 a
cc

ru
al

 b
as

is
 o

f a
cc

ou
nt

in
g)

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

R
ev

en
ue

s
Ta

xe
s 

15
,6

33
,7

03
$ 

 
16

,2
37

,6
92

$ 
 

15
,1

99
,2

81
$ 

 
14

,3
22

,3
74

$ 
 

13
,5

48
,6

09
$ 

 
13

,6
56

,4
28

$ 
 

13
,8

21
,9

53
$ 

 
14

,2
65

,9
77

$ 
 

14
,7

20
,2

45
$ 

 
17

,4
99

,6
00

$ 
 

Li
ce

ns
es

, f
ee

s a
nd

 p
er

m
its

4,
55

1,
44

0
   

   
4,

39
0,

98
9

   
   

4,
88

5,
49

9
   

   
4,

91
7,

67
0

   
   

5,
62

2,
48

3
   

   
5,

34
6,

16
9

   
   

5,
68

9,
50

6
   

   
5,

92
5,

54
2

   
   

5,
50

5,
92

5
   

   
6,

85
5,

00
4

   
   

Sp
ec

ia
l a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
65

,1
48

   
   

   
  

65
,0

70
   

   
   

  
65

,0
94

   
   

   
  

In
te

rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l r
ev

en
ue

s
6,

63
9,

76
0

   
   

6,
15

9,
65

2
   

   
6,

75
3,

00
8

   
   

7,
02

5,
45

6
   

   
7,

12
5,

24
2

   
   

7,
90

8,
75

3
   

   
8,

43
2,

32
2

   
   

9,
05

0,
84

8
   

   
9,

31
3,

03
0

   
   

3,
33

1,
79

7
   

   
C

ha
rg

es
 fo

r s
er

vi
ce

s
2,

29
8,

58
7

   
   

2,
35

0,
13

3
   

   
3,

07
5,

54
9

   
   

3,
13

3,
49

0
   

   
3,

59
2,

85
6

   
   

4,
29

5,
67

7
   

   
4,

64
5,

22
8

   
   

3,
84

0,
74

5
   

   
3,

67
9,

02
2

   
   

10
,5

07
,0

00
   

 
Fi

ne
s a

nd
 fo

rf
ei

tu
re

s
44

9,
31

5
   

   
   

1,
08

6,
02

8
   

   
1,

49
2,

89
9

   
   

1,
67

0,
41

4
   

   
2,

28
8,

93
3

   
   

2,
58

8,
78

1
   

   
1,

59
7,

54
5

   
   

1,
95

7,
25

8
   

   
2,

38
6,

49
9

   
   

3,
43

4,
86

1
   

   
Im

pa
ct

 fe
es

1,
35

8,
31

4
   

   
68

6,
40

2
   

   
   

62
0,

55
5

   
   

   
83

0,
03

6
   

   
   

2,
08

3,
40

5
   

   
1,

42
5,

05
5

   
   

2,
25

2,
48

1
   

   
1,

20
1,

31
1

   
   

1,
55

0,
86

9
   

   
2,

28
7,

39
0

   
   

In
ve

st
m

en
t e

ar
ni

ng
s

75
2,

84
1

   
   

   
18

9,
14

4
   

   
   

12
8,

49
7

   
   

   
12

0,
39

4
   

   
   

12
2,

56
6

   
   

   
95

,3
09

   
   

   
  

98
,7

12
   

   
   

  
10

2,
48

2
   

   
   

12
9,

57
7

   
   

   
15

5,
32

2
   

   
   

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s r
ev

en
ue

s
1,

58
4,

13
6

   
   

1,
14

8,
00

4
   

   
1,

12
0,

84
1

   
   

87
0,

85
4

   
   

   
84

1,
42

4
   

   
   

1,
07

0,
76

3
   

   
89

2,
98

9
   

   
   

69
0,

71
1

   
   

   
93

3,
41

3
   

   
   

1,
75

1,
07

9
   

   
To

ta
l r

ev
en

ue
s

33
,2

68
,0

96
   

 
32

,2
48

,0
44

   
 

33
,2

76
,1

29
   

 
32

,8
90

,6
88

   
 

35
,2

25
,5

18
   

 
36

,3
86

,9
35

   
 

37
,4

30
,7

36
   

 
37

,1
00

,0
22

   
 

38
,2

83
,6

50
   

 
45

,8
87

,1
47

   
 

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
G

en
er

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t
5,

02
8,

20
9

   
   

4,
79

7,
01

3
   

   
5,

33
7,

59
8

   
   

5,
34

5,
54

5
   

   
6,

00
3,

03
4

   
   

5,
00

8,
06

0
   

   
7,

70
2,

76
5

   
   

5,
82

9,
30

9
   

   
7,

92
1,

68
7

   
   

8,
39

1,
32

0
   

   
Pu

bl
ic

 sa
fe

ty
17

,3
46

,3
92

   
 

18
,3

30
,2

39
   

 
18

,3
44

,9
56

   
 

19
,1

87
,1

80
   

 
20

,1
84

,3
86

   
 

23
,0

71
,2

74
   

 
24

,2
19

,9
05

   
 

24
,7

91
,8

83
   

 
27

,3
70

,8
53

   
 

32
,5

63
,8

82
   

 
Ph

ys
ic

al
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

9,
61

4
   

   
   

19
5,

36
7

   
   

   
35

4,
84

7
   

   
   

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n
3,

30
6,

89
3

   
   

2,
91

9,
19

8
   

   
3,

03
7,

60
2

   
   

3,
01

5,
78

3
   

   
3,

29
3,

00
3

   
   

3,
66

9,
94

3
   

   
3,

96
9,

04
1

   
   

4,
09

7,
37

1
   

   
3,

37
7,

49
5

   
   

7,
26

4,
17

3
   

   
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l

20
7,

36
8

   
   

   
14

2,
36

9
   

   
   

14
1,

06
3

   
   

   
15

3,
36

0
   

   
   

15
9,

09
4

   
   

   
19

9,
79

1
   

   
   

20
8,

43
6

   
   

   
22

8,
42

2
   

   
   

24
1,

46
7

   
   

   
28

3,
24

6
   

   
   

C
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 re
cr

ea
tio

n
2,

78
5,

18
4

   
   

2,
59

0,
28

5
   

   
2,

34
2,

58
7

   
   

2,
46

9,
82

9
   

   
2,

16
1,

49
2

   
   

3,
05

7,
06

1
   

   
3,

31
4,

34
8

   
   

3,
27

2,
95

9
   

   
3,

63
9,

45
6

   
   

3,
71

3,
29

8
   

   
N

on
de

pa
rtm

en
ta

l
C

ap
ita

l o
ut

la
y

8,
01

7,
00

9
   

   
9,

54
2,

83
0

   
   

5,
65

4,
44

1
   

   
2,

94
1,

26
3

   
   

1,
85

0,
40

0
   

   
4,

01
1,

14
4

   
   

4,
16

6,
38

0
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
D

eb
t s

er
vi

ce
:

In
te

re
st

46
3,

42
3

   
   

   
46

0,
97

4
   

   
   

63
7,

34
2

   
   

   
59

0,
51

1
   

   
   

53
6,

68
0

   
   

   
49

9,
53

5
   

   
   

43
1,

18
4

   
   

   
29

9,
37

4
   

   
   

27
6,

54
1

   
   

   
25

1,
56

0
   

   
   

In
su

ra
nc

e 
co

st
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

42
,5

00
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Pr

in
ci

pa
l

1,
12

1,
88

0
   

   
1,

20
8,

58
4

   
   

1,
45

0,
85

3
   

   
1,

35
7,

81
4

   
   

1,
41

1,
27

5
   

   
2,

50
6,

01
9

   
   

4,
43

1,
60

4
   

   
1,

66
1,

86
2

   
   

2,
04

7,
92

6
   

   
2,

52
0,

91
7

   
   

G
ra

nt
s a

nd
 a

id
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

To
ta

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
38

,2
76

,3
58

   
 

39
,9

91
,4

92
   

 
36

,9
46

,4
42

   
 

35
,0

61
,2

85
   

 
35

,5
99

,3
64

   
 

42
,0

65
,3

27
   

 
48

,4
43

,6
63

   
 

40
,6

90
,7

94
   

 
45

,0
70

,7
92

   
 

55
,3

43
,2

43
   

 

Ex
ce

ss
 o

f r
ev

en
ue

s
ov

er
 (u

nd
er

)
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
(5

,0
08

,2
62

)
(7

,7
43

,4
48

)
(3

,6
70

,3
13

)
(2

,1
70

,5
97

)
(3

73
,8

46
)

(5
,6

78
,3

92
)

(1
1,

01
2,

92
7)

(3
,5

90
,7

72
)

(6
,7

87
,1

42
)

(9
,4

56
,0

96
)

O
th

er
 F

in
an

ci
ng

So
ur

ce
s (

U
se

s)
Sa

le
 o

f c
ap

ita
l a

ss
et

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
24

,0
24

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

58
,0

65
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

ap
ita

l l
ea

se
s p

ro
ce

ed
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
31

6,
96

3
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
51

0,
79

5
   

   
   

2,
96

7,
98

8
   

   
N

ot
e 

pr
oc

ee
ds

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
26

0,
50

0
   

   
4,

14
7,

92
9

   
   

96
0,

00
0

   
   

   
1,

82
5,

00
0

   
   

2,
40

0,
00

0
   

   
Tr

an
sf

er
s i

n
3,

94
8,

04
7

   
   

4,
07

4,
40

7
   

   
4,

99
0,

96
9

   
   

4,
32

8,
10

3
   

   
5,

63
0,

73
0

   
   

5,
01

3,
80

4
   

   
4,

86
3,

01
2

   
   

5,
06

5,
88

2
   

   
7,

37
8,

88
8

   
   

6,
92

4,
33

2
   

   
Tr

an
sf

er
s o

ut
(1

,0
26

,8
78

)
   

  
(1

,1
70

,4
07

)
   

  
(1

,8
93

,2
19

)
   

  
(1

,0
48

,3
03

)
   

  
(2

,1
60

,5
41

)
   

  
(1

,3
35

,3
74

)
   

  
(9

63
,8

82
)

   
   

  
(9

32
,8

22
)

   
   

  
(1

,3
94

,2
25

)
   

  
(1

,0
81

,3
86

)
   

  
To

ta
l o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
in

g
so

ur
ce

s (
us

es
)

2,
92

1,
16

9
8,

24
4,

98
7

3,
09

7,
75

0
3,

27
9,

80
0

3,
47

0,
18

9
5,

93
8,

93
0

8,
04

7,
05

9
5,

15
1,

12
5

8,
32

0,
45

8
11

,2
10

,9
34

N
et

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
s

(2
,0

87
,0

93
)

$ 
  

50
1,

53
9

$ 
   

   
(5

72
,5

63
)

$ 
   

  
1,

10
9,

20
3

$ 
   

3,
09

6,
34

3
$ 

   
26

0,
53

8
$ 

   
   

(2
,9

65
,8

68
)

$ 
  

1,
56

0,
35

3
$ 

   
1,

53
3,

31
6

$ 
   

1,
75

4,
83

8
$ 

   

D
eb

t s
er

vi
ce

 a
s a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f n

on
-c

ap
ita

l
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
5.

2%
5.

5%
6.

7%
6.

1%
5.

8%
7.

9%
11

.0
%

4.
8%

5.
2%

5.
0%

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

85

127



Sc
he

du
le

 5
C

ity
 o

f A
po

pk
a

A
ss

es
se

d 
V

al
ue

 a
nd

 A
ct

ua
l V

al
ue

 o
f T

ax
ab

le
 P

ro
pe

rt
y

L
as

t T
en

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

(in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s o

f d
ol

la
rs

)

Fi
sc

al
T

ot
al

Y
ea

r
T

ot
al

L
es

s:
T

ot
al

 T
ax

ab
le

D
ir

ec
t

E
nd

ed
R

es
id

en
tia

l
C

om
m

er
ci

al
In

du
st

ri
al

A
ss

es
se

d
T

ax
-E

xe
m

pt
A

ss
es

se
d

T
ax

Se
pt

. 3
0,

Pr
op

er
ty

Pr
op

er
ty

Pr
op

er
ty

Pr
op

er
ty

Pr
op

er
ty

V
al

ue
R

at
e

20
08

1,
86

5,
78

9
$ 

  
57

5,
10

6
$ 

   
  

10
2,

07
7

$ 
   

2,
54

2,
97

2
$ 

   
   

38
5,

55
0

$ 
   

  
2,

15
7,

42
2

$ 
   

  
3.

17
38

 
20

09
2,

30
7,

55
7

   
  

67
3,

46
8

   
   

  
11

8,
55

6
   

   
3,

09
9,

58
1

   
   

   
42

5,
62

6
2,

67
3,

95
5

   
   

  
3.

51
68

 
20

10
2,

40
6,

30
9

   
  

79
4,

12
2

   
   

  
12

4,
55

0
   

   
3,

32
4,

98
1

   
   

   
73

7,
38

7
2,

58
7,

59
4

   
   

  
3.

51
68

 
20

11
2,

12
5,

22
9

   
  

76
8,

37
0

   
   

  
13

2,
75

5
   

   
3,

02
6,

35
4

   
   

   
75

7,
03

6
2,

26
9,

31
8

   
   

  
3.

51
66

 
20

12
1,

87
2,

90
3

   
  

70
8,

30
3

   
   

  
11

6,
61

8
   

   
2,

69
7,

82
4

   
   

   
75

7,
32

8
1,

94
0,

49
6

   
   

  
3.

51
64

 
20

13
1,

80
3,

97
7

   
  

76
2,

59
0

   
   

  
16

6,
73

1
   

   
2,

73
3,

29
8

   
   

   
80

1,
13

9
1,

93
2,

15
9

   
   

  
3.

51
61

 
20

14
2,

00
5,

15
9

   
  

77
6,

28
7

   
   

  
21

5,
80

2
   

   
2,

99
7,

24
8

   
   

   
82

5,
32

9
2,

17
1,

91
9

   
   

  
3.

47
27

 
20

15
2,

11
3,

49
5

   
  

89
3,

43
8

   
   

  
24

8,
36

9
   

   
3,

25
5,

30
2

   
   

   
82

1,
43

5
2,

43
3,

86
7

   
   

  
3.

28
76

 
20

16
2,

33
4,

43
6

   
  

92
3,

97
5

   
   

  
24

1,
49

3
   

   
3,

49
9,

90
4

   
   

   
84

1,
68

8
2,

65
8,

21
7

   
   

  
3.

28
76

 
20

17
2,

55
4,

54
4

   
  

1,
01

1,
09

4
   

  
26

4,
26

3
   

   
3,

82
9,

90
1

   
   

   
87

6,
28

0
2,

95
3,

62
1

   
   

  
3.

78
76

 

N
ot

e:
Pr

op
er

ty
 in

 th
e 

C
ity

 is
 re

as
se

ss
ed

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
.  

To
ta

ls
 sh

ow
n 

ar
e 

pe
r $

1,
00

0.

86

128



Sc
he

du
le

 6
C

ity
 o

f A
po

pk
a

D
ir

ec
t a

nd
 O

ve
rl

ap
pi

ng
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

T
ax

 R
at

es
L

as
t T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs
(r

at
e 

pe
r $

1,
00

0 
of

 a
ss

es
se

d 
va

lu
e)

O
ra

ng
e

St
. J

oh
n'

s
C

ou
nt

y
W

at
er

Fi
sc

al
B

as
ic

T
ot

al
O

ra
ng

e
Sc

ho
ol

M
an

ag
em

en
t

Y
ea

r
R

at
e

D
ir

ec
t

C
ou

nt
y

B
oa

rd
D

is
tr

ic
t

L
ib

ra
ry

20
08

3.
17

38
   

   
   

   
3.

17
38

5.
16

39
7.

16
90

0.
46

20
0.

43
25

20
09

3.
51

68
   

   
   

   
3.

51
68

4.
43

47
7.

12
10

0.
41

58
0.

37
48

20
10

3.
51

68
   

   
   

   
3.

51
68

4.
43

47
7.

67
30

0.
41

58
0.

37
48

20
11

3.
51

66
   

   
   

   
3.

51
66

4.
43

47
7.

89
40

0.
41

58
0.

37
48

20
12

3.
51

64
   

   
   

   
3.

51
64

4.
43

47
7.

89
40

0.
41

58
0.

37
48

20
13

3.
51

61
   

   
   

   
3.

51
61

4.
43

47
8.

47
80

0.
33

13
0.

37
48

20
14

3.
47

27
   

   
   

   
3.

47
27

4.
43

47
8.

36
20

0.
32

83
0.

37
48

20
15

3.
28

76
   

   
   

   
3.

28
76

4.
43

47
8.

47
40

0.
31

64
0.

37
48

20
16

3.
28

76
   

   
   

   
3.

28
76

4.
43

47
8.

21
80

0.
30

23
0.

37
48

20
17

3.
78

76
   

   
   

   
3.

78
76

4.
43

47
7.

81
10

0.
27

24
0.

37
48

So
ur

ce
:  

O
ra

ng
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

Pr
op

er
ty

 A
pp

ra
is

er
's 

O
ff

ic
e 

– 
R

og
er

 R
os

s 4
07

.8
36

.5
07

4

C
ity

 D
ir

ec
t R

at
es

O
ve

rl
ap

pi
ng

 R
at

es

87

129



Sc
he

du
le

 7
C

ity
 o

f A
po

pk
a

Pr
in

ci
pa

l P
ro

pe
rt

y 
T

ax
pa

ye
rs

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
an

d 
N

in
e 

Y
ea

rs
 A

go

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

of
 T

ot
al

 C
ity

of
 T

ot
al

 C
ity

T
ax

ab
le

T
ax

ab
le

T
ax

ab
le

T
ax

ab
le

A
ss

es
se

d
A

ss
es

se
d

A
ss

es
se

d
A

ss
es

se
d

T
ax

pa
ye

r
V

al
ue

R
an

k
V

al
ue

V
al

ue
R

an
k

V
al

ue

Q
or

vo
 (T

riq
ui

nt
)

12
2,

62
3,

45
4

$ 
   

 
1

   
   

   
4.

61
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
oc

a 
C

ol
a

80
,7

34
,9

09
   

   
   

2
   

   
   

3.
04

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
D

uk
e 

En
er

gy
48

,6
63

,9
31

   
   

   
3

   
   

   
1.

83
%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Em
ba

rq
 (S

pr
in

t U
ni

te
d 

M
gm

t C
o.

)
36

,4
19

,9
69

   
   

   
4

   
   

   
1.

37
%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

W
oo

lb
rig

ht
 W

ek
iv

a 
LL

C
18

,1
01

,4
00

   
   

   
5

   
   

   
0.

68
%

20
,7

50
,8

87
   

   
   

2
   

   
   

1.
24

%
SP

T 
W

A
H

 W
ill

ow
 L

ak
e 

LL
C

17
,9

22
,5

32
   

   
   

6
   

   
   

0.
67

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
O

ak
m

on
t A

po
pk

a 
R

oa
d 

LL
C

13
,1

76
,1

92
   

   
   

7
   

   
   

0.
50

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Pa

lm
 K

ey
 II

 L
im

ite
d 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
12

,7
12

,5
26

   
   

   
8

   
   

   
0.

48
%

12
,5

54
,1

32
   

   
   

6
   

   
   

0.
75

%
A

po
pk

a 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

s 2
00

6 
LL

C
11

,8
55

,6
18

   
   

   
9

   
   

   
0.

45
%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

W
al

-M
ar

t S
to

re
s E

as
t L

P
11

,5
72

,7
87

   
   

   
10

   
   

 
0.

44
%

10
,8

45
,0

75
   

   
   

9
   

   
   

0.
65

%

To
ta

l
37

3,
78

3,
31

8
$ 

   
 

14
.0

7%
44

,1
50

,0
94

$ 
   

   
2.

64
%

So
ur

ce
:  

O
ra

ng
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

Pr
op

er
ty

 A
pp

ra
is

er
's 

O
ffi

ce
 A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t. 

C
on

ta
ct

:  
R

og
er

 R
os

s 4
07

.8
36

.5
07

4

20
17

20
08

88

130



Sc
he

du
le

 8
C

ity
 o

f A
po

pk
a

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ax

 L
ev

ie
s a

nd
 C

ol
le

ct
io

ns
L

as
t T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs

Fi
sc

al
Y

ea
r

T
ax

es
 L

ev
ie

d
C

ol
le

ct
io

ns
E

nd
ed

fo
r 

th
e

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
in

 S
ub

se
qu

en
t

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
Se

pt
. 3

0,
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r
A

m
ou

nt
of

 L
ev

y
Y

ea
rs

A
m

ou
nt

of
 L

ev
y

20
08

9,
31

1,
99

6
$ 

   
  

8,
90

3,
34

0
$ 

   
   

95
.6

1%
16

,2
90

$ 
   

   
  

8,
91

9,
62

9
$ 

   
  

95
.7

9%
20

09
9,

94
4,

98
8

   
   

  
9,

52
7,

65
3

   
   

   
95

.8
0%

5,
11

9
   

   
   

   
 

9,
53

2,
77

2
   

   
  

95
.8

6%
20

10
8,

78
5,

19
0

   
   

  
8,

42
9,

89
5

   
   

   
95

.9
6%

15
,1

92
   

   
   

  
8,

44
5,

08
7

   
   

  
96

.1
3%

20
11

7,
55

7,
78

2
   

   
  

7,
25

4,
68

4
   

   
   

95
.9

9%
23

,1
15

   
   

   
  

7,
27

7,
79

9
   

   
  

96
.3

0%
20

12
7,

17
5,

94
0

   
   

  
6,

88
1,

74
7

   
   

   
95

.9
0%

73
,3

39
   

   
   

  
6,

95
5,

08
6

   
   

  
96

.9
2%

20
13

6,
80

0,
77

7
   

   
  

6,
64

8,
42

8
   

   
   

97
.7

6%
29

,2
07

   
   

   
  

6,
67

7,
63

5
   

   
  

98
.1

9%
20

14
6,

94
9,

03
1

   
   

  
6,

75
4,

18
8

   
   

   
97

.2
0%

34
,8

16
   

   
   

  
6,

78
9,

00
3

   
   

  
97

.7
0%

20
15

7,
12

9,
63

7
   

   
  

6,
75

4,
18

8
   

   
   

94
.7

3%
34

,8
16

   
   

   
  

6,
78

9,
00

3
   

   
  

95
.2

2%
20

16
8,

00
3,

26
2

   
   

  
7,

83
3,

13
0

   
   

   
97

.8
7%

40
,9

01
   

   
   

  
7,

87
4,

03
1

   
   

  
98

.3
9%

20
17

10
,0

70
,0

26
   

   
9,

87
3,

45
1

   
   

   
98

.0
5%

7,
04

4
   

   
   

   
 

9,
88

0,
49

5
   

   
  

98
.1

2%

So
ur

ce
:  

O
ra

ng
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

Ta
x 

C
ol

le
ct

or
's 

O
ff

ic
e

* 
Y

ea
rs

 2
00

7 
th

ro
ug

h 
20

11
 C

ol
le

ct
io

ns
 re

st
at

ed
 fo

r p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
pu

rp
os

es
* 

 In
cl

ud
es

 C
R

A
 A

d 
V

al
or

em
 T

ax
es

C
ol

le
ct

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

of
 th

e 
L

ev
y

T
ot

al
 C

ol
le

ct
io

ns
 to

 D
at

e

89

131



Sc
he

du
le

 9
C

ity
 o

f A
po

pk
a

R
at

io
s o

f O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 D
eb

t b
y 

T
yp

e
L

as
t T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs

U
til

ity
T

ot
al

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
Fi

sc
al

B
on

ds
N

ot
es

C
ap

ita
l

R
ev

en
ue

N
ot

es
C

ap
ita

l
Pr

im
ar

y
of

 P
er

so
na

l
Pe

r
Y

ea
r

Pa
ya

bl
e

Pa
ya

bl
e

L
ea

se
s

B
on

ds
Pa

ya
bl

e
L

ea
se

s
G

ov
er

nm
en

t
In

co
m

ea
C

ap
ita

a

20
08

33
8,

25
0

$ 
   

   
11

,0
91

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

45
2,

12
8

$ 
   

   
 

22
,0

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
11

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

1,
34

2,
55

0
$ 

   
   

34
,8

47
,0

61
$ 

   
   

 
3.

55
%

86
5

   
   

   
20

09
30

7,
50

0
   

   
   

10
,0

15
,0

00
   

   
   

 
5,

66
7,

25
7

   
   

 
22

,0
40

,0
00

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

66
2,

99
4

   
   

   
   

38
,2

03
,0

28
   

   
   

 
3.

77
%

94
5

   
   

   
20

10
27

6,
75

0
   

   
   

9,
15

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
5,

11
2,

15
4

   
   

 
21

,4
75

,0
00

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

40
5,

56
9

   
   

   
   

35
,9

71
,1

78
   

   
   

 
3.

35
%

86
6

   
   

   
20

11
24

6,
00

0
   

   
   

8,
39

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
4,

54
5,

09
0

   
   

 
20

,2
60

,0
00

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

13
7,

84
9

   
   

   
   

33
,1

72
,3

11
   

   
   

 
2.

96
%

78
8

   
   

   
20

12
21

5,
25

0
   

   
   

7,
60

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
3,

95
4,

56
6

   
   

 
19

,6
15

,0
00

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

19
,5

47
31

,0
46

,5
26

   
   

   
 

2.
65

%
72

5
   

   
   

20
13

18
4,

50
0

   
   

   
7,

90
0,

50
0

   
   

   
   

3,
43

9,
29

7
   

   
 

17
,4

35
,0

00
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
,3

15
,1

23
   

   
   

 
2.

43
%

68
7

   
   

   
20

14
15

3,
75

0
   

   
   

11
,0

86
,8

72
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
,7

25
,0

00
   

   
   

  
1,

10
0,

00
0

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

,3
98

,6
18

   
   

   
 

2.
19

%
66

6
   

   
   

20
15

65
6,

18
5

   
   

   
10

,4
60

,6
22

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
17

,6
60

,3
34

   
   

   
  

98
2,

00
0

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
31

,2
84

,1
41

   
   

   
 

2.
15

%
67

2
   

   
   

20
16

50
2,

97
3

   
   

   
9,

92
6,

37
2

   
   

   
   

41
0,

25
6

   
   

   
 

16
,7

03
,5

11
   

   
   

  
74

0,
00

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

29
,7

36
,6

23
   

   
   

 
2.

28
%

61
5

   
   

   
20

17
33

5,
00

0
   

   
   

10
,1

48
,8

90
   

   
   

 
3,

18
9,

81
0

   
   

 
15

,0
62

,0
22

   
   

   
  

7,
84

3,
27

3
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

36
,5

78
,9

95
   

   
   

 
2.

77
%

71
7

   
   

   

N
ot

e:
  D

et
ai

ls
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

C
ity

's 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
de

bt
 c

an
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

in
 th

e 
no

te
s t

o 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 st

at
em

en
ts

.
a 
Se

e 
Sc

he
du

le
 1

4 
fo

r p
er

so
na

l i
nc

om
e 

an
d 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
da

ta
.

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l A
ct

iv
iti

es
B

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 A
ct

iv
iti

es

90

132



Sc
he

du
le

 1
0

C
ity

 o
f A

po
pk

a
Pl

ed
ge

d-
R

ev
en

ue
 C

ov
er

ag
e

L
as

t T
en

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

U
til

ity
L

es
s:

N
et

Fi
sc

al
Se

rv
ic

e
O

pe
ra

tin
g

A
va

ila
bl

e
Y

ea
r

C
ha

rg
es

 (1
)

E
xp

en
se

s (
2)

R
ev

en
ue

Pr
in

ci
pa

l
In

te
re

st
C

ov
er

ag
e

20
08

14
,0

03
,1

69
$ 

   
   

 
9,

26
4,

34
4

$ 
   

   
   

4,
73

8,
82

5
$ 

   
   

   
54

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

1,
04

0,
69

3
$ 

   
   

   
2.

99
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
09

14
,1

83
,5

25
   

   
   

   
9,

41
6,

67
5

   
   

   
   

  
4,

76
6,

85
0

   
   

   
   

  
56

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

01
8,

89
3

   
   

   
   

  
3.

01
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
10

14
,0

59
,7

83
   

   
   

   
9,

02
2,

37
1

   
   

   
   

  
5,

03
7,

41
2

   
   

   
   

  
59

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
98

0,
08

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
11

15
,1

07
,9

26
   

   
   

   
9,

12
1,

38
8

   
   

   
   

  
5,

98
6,

53
8

   
   

   
   

  
62

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
95

2,
74

3
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

81
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
12

16
,4

92
,4

61
   

   
   

   
9,

27
3,

52
3

   
   

   
   

  
7,

21
8,

93
8

   
   

   
   

  
64

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
93

8,
79

3
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

56
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
13

17
,1

95
,8

08
   

   
   

   
10

,2
85

,9
15

   
   

   
   

6,
90

9,
89

3
   

   
   

   
  

63
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

76
1,

09
9

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
97

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

14
17

,1
30

,6
14

   
   

   
   

10
,4

21
,6

78
   

   
   

   
6,

70
8,

93
6

   
   

   
   

  
71

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
62

3,
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

03
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
15

19
,5

42
,4

32
   

   
   

   
10

,9
00

,6
42

   
   

   
   

8,
64

1,
79

0
   

   
   

   
  

72
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
9,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
48

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

16
20

,6
27

,2
68

   
   

   
   

10
,9

88
,9

99
   

   
   

   
9,

63
8,

26
9

   
   

   
   

  
75

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
57

6,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
7.

27
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
17

23
,8

30
,1

06
   

   
   

   
12

,5
82

,7
54

   
   

   
   

11
,2

47
,3

52
   

   
   

   
77

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
56

4,
95

0
   

   
   

   
   

  
8.

43
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

N
ot

e:
(1

) G
ro

ss
 P

le
dg

ed
 R

ev
en

ue
s i

nc
lu

de
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

re
ve

nu
es

, c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

fe
es

 (F
un

d 
40

1)
, a

nd
 im

pa
ct

 fe
es

 (F
un

d 
40

3)
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 fr

om
 g

ra
nt

s a
nd

 d
is

po
sa

l o
f f

ix
ed

 a
ss

et
s a

re
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

ed
.

(2
) D

ire
ct

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
ex

pe
ns

es
 in

cl
ud

e 
al

l p
er

so
nn

el
 e

xp
en

se
s a

nd
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

ex
pe

ns
es

 (l
es

s d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n)
 a

s p
er

 th
e

   
   

St
at

em
en

t o
f R

ev
en

ue
 a

nd
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s (

Fu
nd

 4
01

).

So
ur

ce
: 

C
ity

 o
f A

po
pk

a 
Fi

na
nc

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

U
til

ity
 R

ev
en

ue
 B

on
ds

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

91

133



Schedule 11
City of Apopka
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Percentage Overlapping 

Governmental Unit Debt Outstanding Applicable* Debt

Debt Repaid with Property Taxes

Orange County School District** 1,283,016,298$    2.43% 31,170,865$   

City Direct Debt (Governmental Activities) 100% 10,839,601     

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 42,010,466$   

Source:  

Notes:

*

** Debt outstanding as of June 30, 2016

Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentage provided by the Orange County
Property Appraiser (Form DR-403V).  Debt outstanding provided by each governmental unit.

Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with geographic boundaries
of the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping
governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of Apopka. This process recognizes
that, when considering the City's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt
burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this
does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident and, therefore, is responsible for repaying the
debt, of each overlapping government.

For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt was determined by
taking the City's assessed taxable value and dividing it by Orange County's assessed taxable
value.

92

134



Sc
he

du
le

 1
2

C
ity

 o
f A

po
pk

a
D

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 a

nd
 E

co
no

m
ic

 S
ta

tis
tic

s
L

as
t T

en
 C

al
en

da
r 

Y
ea

rs

Pe
rs

on
al

Pe
r

In
co

m
e

C
ap

ita
E

du
ca

tio
n

(th
ou

sa
nd

s
Pe

rs
on

al
M

ed
ia

n
L

ev
el

 in
 Y

ea
rs

Sc
ho

ol
U

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t
Y

ea
r

Po
pu

la
tio

n
of

 d
ol

la
rs

)
In

co
m

e
A

ge
of

 S
ch

oo
lin

g
E

nr
ol

lm
en

t
R

at
e

20
08

40
,2

80
   

   
   

   
98

0,
34

9
$ 

   
   

  
24

,3
38

$ 
   

   
 

34
.7

   
   

 
13

.4
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,3
89

   
   

   
 

6.
4%

20
09

40
,4

06
   

   
   

   
1,

01
2,

91
9

   
   

  
25

,0
69

   
   

   
 

38
.7

   
   

 
13

.4
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

,1
89

   
   

   
 

10
.6

%
20

10
41

,5
42

   
   

   
   

1,
07

2,
63

8
   

   
  

25
,8

21
   

   
   

 
38

.7
   

   
 

13
.4

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
,3

71
   

   
   

 
11

.6
%

20
11

42
,0

89
   

   
   

   
1,

11
9,

36
5

   
   

  
26

,5
95

   
   

   
 

38
.7

   
   

 
13

.4
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

,1
51

   
   

   
 

10
.4

%
20

12
42

,8
05

   
   

   
   

1,
17

2,
55

9
   

   
  

27
,3

93
   

   
   

 
35

.4
   

   
 

13
.4

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
,3

51
   

   
   

 
8.

0%
20

13
44

,1
29

   
   

   
   

1,
24

5,
10

0
   

   
  

28
,2

15
   

   
   

 
35

.4
   

   
 

13
.4

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
,3

51
   

   
   

 
5.

6%
20

14
45

,6
69

   
   

   
   

1,
38

5,
04

9
   

   
  

30
,3

28
   

   
   

 
34

.1
   

   
 

13
.4

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
,8

40
   

   
   

 
5.

1%
20

15
46

,5
61

   
   

   
   

1,
45

4,
47

3
   

   
  

31
,2

38
   

   
   

 
34

.1
   

   
 

13
.4

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
,9

22
   

   
   

 
4.

2%
20

16
48

,3
82

   
   

   
   

1,
30

6,
84

6
   

   
  

27
,0

11
   

   
   

 
36

.6
   

   
 

13
.4

   
   

   
   

   
   

17
,5

12
   

   
   

 
4.

0%
20

17
51

,0
07

   
   

   
   

1,
32

0,
82

6
   

   
  

25
,8

95
   

   
   

 
36

.6
   

   
 

13
.4

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
,1

01
   

   
   

 
3.

9%

So
ur

ce
s:

U
.S

. C
en

su
s B

ur
ea

u 
an

d 
w

w
w

.b
es

tp
la

ce
s.n

et
O

rla
nd

o 
Ec

on
om

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

om
m

is
si

on
C

om
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t D
ep

t. 
fo

r a
nn

ua
lly

 u
pd

at
ed

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

fig
ur

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f F

lo
rid

a
Sc

ho
ol

 E
nr

ol
lm

en
t i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

w
w

w
.o

cp
s.n

et
 E

nr
ol

lm
en

t S
um

m
ar

ie
s

93

135



Sc
he

du
le

 1
3

C
ity

 o
f A

po
pk

a
Pr

in
ci

pa
l E

m
pl

oy
er

s
C

ur
re

nt
 Y

ea
r 

an
d 

N
in

e 
Y

ea
rs

 A
go

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

of
 T

ot
al

 C
ity

of
 T

ot
al

 C
ity

E
m

pl
oy

er
E

m
pl

oy
ee

s
R

an
k

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t
E

m
pl

oy
ee

s
R

an
k

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t

C
en

tu
ry

 L
in

k 
(f

or
m

er
ly

 E
m

ba
rq

 &
 S

pr
in

t)
2,

19
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
   

   
   

4.
53

%
51

8
3

   
   

   
2.

87
%

N
or

th
ro

p 
G

ru
m

m
an

81
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

   
   

   
1.

69
%

61
5

2
   

   
   

3.
41

%
W

al
-M

ar
t S

up
er

ce
nt

er
81

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3
   

   
   

1.
68

%
93

5
1

   
   

   
5.

19
%

Fl
or

id
a 

H
os

pi
ta

l -
 A

po
pk

a
67

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4
   

   
   

1.
39

%
44

7
4

   
   

   
2.

48
%

Q
or

vo
59

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
   

   
   

1.
22

%
Fi

nf
ro

ck
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

In
c.

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6

   
   

   
1.

03
%

24
8

10
   

   
 

1.
38

%
Pu

bl
ix

45
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7

   
   

   
0.

93
%

C
ity

 o
f A

po
pk

a
43

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8
   

   
   

0.
91

%
R

an
da

ll 
M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l
41

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9
   

   
   

0.
87

%
41

8
5

   
   

   
2.

32
%

O
ra

ng
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

Sc
ho

ol
s

41
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

   
   

 
0.

86
%

Tr
iq

ui
nt

 (f
or

m
er

ly
 S

aw
Te

k)
36

8
6

   
   

   
2.

04
%

En
er

gy
 A

ir 
In

c 
(r

el
oc

at
ed

)
30

5
7

   
   

   
1.

69
%

Fl
or

id
a 

Li
vi

ng
 N

ur
si

ng
 C

en
te

r
28

1
8

   
   

   
1.

56
%

A
po

pk
a 

H
ig

h 
Sc

ho
ol

24
8

9
   

   
   

1.
38

%
To

ta
l

7,
30

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

.1
1%

4,
38

3
   

   
   

   
  

24
.3

2%

48
,3

82
   

   
   

   
 

18
,0

24
   

   
   

   
 

So
ur

ce
: C

ity
 o

f A
po

pk
a 

Fi
na

nc
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t s

ur
ve

y 
of

 lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

se
s

20
17

20
08

94

136



Schedule 14
City of Apopka
Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Function/Program

General government
Administration 15     14     13     14     13     11     10     11     11 10
Finance 10     9       9       9       8       9       8       9       11 11
Human resources 3       3       3       3       3       3       3       3       4 4
Planning 10     8       8       7       7       8       8       7       8 11
Building 7       7       7       7       6       6       6       6       7 7
IT 5       5       6       6       7       7       7       5       6 7

Police
Officers 85     85     91     91     88     90     90     90     97 107
Civilians 9       8       32     32     35     35     31     32     37 37

Fire
Firefighters and officers 81     81     80     80     80     75     78     77     81 100
Civilians 20     18     2 2 3       6       2       3       2 2

Sanitation 17     17     17     17     16     16     18     17     18 18

Other public works
Administration 8       7       7       7       7       9       9       8       9 9
Engineering 5       4       4       4       3       6       7       7       8 7
Purchasing -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -
Construction 10     8       7       6       6       7       7       7       13 9
Facilities maintenance -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        2
Restoration -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        4
Fleet 10     8       10     10     11     11     11     9       13 13
Streets 9       8       8       9       8       9       7       8       16 18
Cemetery 2       2       2       2       1       2       2       2       2 2

Parks and recreation 33     28     28     28     27     28     25     28     20 19

Water 22     22     21     21     22     22     21     19     17 18
Wastewater 26     22     23     22     21     20     21     19     20 23

Total 387 364 376 377 372 380 371 367 400 438

Source:  City Finance Department

Fiscal Year

95

137



Sc
he

du
le

 1
5

C
ity

 o
f A

po
pk

a
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 b

y 
Fu

nc
tio

n/
Pr

og
ra

m

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

Fu
nc

tio
n/

Pr
og

ra
m

Po
lic

e
Ph

ys
ic

al
 a

rr
es

ts
1,

89
7

   
   

2,
37

4
   

   
2,

14
7

   
 

1,
52

3
   

 
1,

41
4

   
 

1,
01

1
   

 
1,

50
5

   
 

1,
42

6
   

 
1,

31
1

1,
23

2
Pa

rk
in

g 
vi

ol
at

io
ns

39
   

   
   

  
11

   
   

   
  

11
7

   
   

 
32

   
   

   
15

7
   

   
 

42
4

   
   

 
15

2
   

   
 

17
7

   
   

 
23

5
51

Tr
af

fic
 v

io
la

tio
ns

6,
81

3
   

   
4,

48
1

   
   

3,
52

1
   

 
2,

28
3

   
 

1,
76

4
   

 
3,

63
6

   
 

3,
45

9
   

 
3,

52
2

   
 

2,
05

8
2,

78
6

R
ed

 L
ig

ht
 V

io
la

tio
ns

26
9

   
   

   
9,

73
5

   
   

13
,8

70
  

16
,7

54
  

22
,4

22
  

27
,6

30
  

22
,2

83
  

23
,2

04
  

31
,7

73
26

,6
02

Fi
re

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
on

se
s

6,
24

2
   

   
5,

85
9

   
   

5,
43

3
   

 
5,

09
3

   
 

5,
41

8
   

 
4,

97
3

   
 

5,
29

8
   

 
5,

56
3

   
 

6,
52

3
7,

53
2

Fi
re

s e
xt

in
gu

is
he

d
17

4
   

   
   

13
5

   
   

   
16

3
   

   
 

15
8

   
   

 
14

3
   

   
 

10
3

   
   

 
11

0
   

   
 

10
7

   
   

 
13

8
13

7
In

sp
ec

tio
ns

5,
66

9
   

   
5,

45
1

   
   

2,
32

4
   

 
2,

61
4

   
 

2,
44

4
   

 
2,

12
0

   
 

2,
74

0
   

 
2,

73
8

   
 

2,
70

6
2,

68
0

R
ef

us
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n
R

ef
us

e 
co

lle
ct

ed
 (t

on
s p

er
 d

ay
)

64
.3

   
   

  
74

.5
   

   
  

73
.5

   
   

74
.7

   
   

73
.9

   
   

60
.3

   
   

86
.6

   
   

91
.2

   
   

96
10

0
R

ec
yc

la
bl

es
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 (t
on

s p
er

 d
ay

)
6.

3
   

   
   

 
5.

9
   

   
   

 
5.

7
   

   
  

5.
6

   
   

  
5.

7
   

   
  

5.
8

   
   

  
5.

8
   

   
  

5.
2

   
   

  
4

6
O

th
er

 p
ub

lic
 w

or
ks

St
re

et
 re

su
rf

ac
in

g 
(m

ile
s)

6.
8

   
   

   
 

2.
4

   
   

   
 

4.
0

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
 

2.
4

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
 

2
4

Pa
rk

s a
nd

 re
cr

ea
tio

n
A

th
le

tic
 le

ag
ue

s
8

   
   

   
  

9
   

   
   

  
10

   
   

   
10

   
   

   
7

   
   

   
  

7
   

   
   

  
7

7
A

th
le

tic
 le

ag
ue

s p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

52
9,

14
0

  
43

6,
62

2
  

4,
06

2
   

 
3,

20
1

   
 

2,
17

5
   

 
2,

37
5

   
 

2,
41

5
   

 
2,

39
5

   
 

2,
45

3
3,

55
2

Se
ni

or
 a

nd
 A

du
lt 

pr
og

ra
m

s
37

3
   

   
   

28
1

   
   

   
9

   
   

   
  

14
   

   
   

10
   

   
   

10
   

   
   

13
   

   
   

11
   

   
   

13
18

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s p

ro
gr

am
s

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

4
   

   
   

  
4

   
   

   
  

5
   

   
   

  
5

   
   

   
  

6
   

   
   

  
6

   
   

   
  

7
7

Fa
ci

lit
y 

re
nt

al
 p

er
m

its
1,

00
2

   
   

2,
04

8
   

   
2,

86
1

   
 

66
6

   
   

 
3,

26
9

   
 

3,
32

7
   

 
3,

42
3

   
 

3,
36

8
   

 
3,

39
3

W
at

er
N

ew
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
27

8
   

   
   

24
6

   
   

   
27

0
   

   
 

23
9

   
   

 
33

3
   

   
 

40
5

   
   

 
42

7
   

   
 

35
6

   
   

 
67

0
19

8
A

ve
ra

ge
 d

ai
ly

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
(m

ill
io

ns
 o

f g
al

lo
ns

)
8.

27
   

   
  

7.
57

   
   

  
7.

54
   

   
7.

35
   

   
7.

01
   

   
6.

79
   

   
6.

82
   

   
7.

16
   

   
8

8
Pe

ak
 d

ai
ly

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
(m

ill
io

ns
 o

f g
al

lo
ns

)
14

.9
1

   
   

14
.6

8
   

   
12

.4
4

   
 

12
.3

5
   

 
9.

90
   

   
11

.0
2

   
 

9.
69

   
   

10
.8

8
   

 
11

11
W

as
te

w
at

er A
ve

ra
ge

 d
ai

ly
 se

w
ag

e 
tre

at
m

en
t (

m
ill

io
ns

 o
f g

al
lo

ns
)

2.
96

   
   

  
2.

64
   

   
  

2.
66

   
   

2.
59

   
   

2.
62

   
   

2.
76

   
   

2.
89

   
   

3.
07

   
   

3
3

R
ec

la
im

ed
 W

at
er

N
ew

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

-
   

   
   

   
 

20
2

   
   

   
21

9
   

   
 

18
3

   
   

 
20

7
   

   
 

26
1

   
   

 
40

9
   

   
 

30
0

   
   

 
40

2
13

6
A

ve
ra

ge
 d

ai
ly

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
(m

ill
io

ns
 o

f g
al

lo
ns

)
-

   
   

   
   

 
5.

63
   

   
  

5.
51

   
   

6.
03

   
   

6.
06

   
   

5.
49

   
   

5.
64

   
   

6.
10

   
   

7
7

Pe
ak

 d
ai

ly
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

(m
ill

io
ns

 o
f g

al
lo

ns
)

-
   

   
   

   
 

9.
31

   
   

  
9.

61
   

   
10

.6
1

   
 

9.
85

   
   

9.
39

   
   

9.
62

   
   

11
.0

0
   

 
11

14

So
ur

ce
s:

  V
ar

io
us

 C
ity

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

.
N

ot
e:

  I
nd

ic
at

or
s a

re
 n

ot
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r t

he
 g

en
er

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t f
un

ct
io

n.

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

96

138



Sc
he

du
le

 1
6

C
ity

 o
f A

po
pk

a
C

ap
ita

l A
ss

et
 S

ta
tis

tic
s b

y 
Fu

nc
tio

n/
Pr

og
ra

m
L

as
t T

en
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

Fu
nc

tio
n/

Pr
og

ra
m

Po
lic

e
St

at
io

ns
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
Pa

tro
l u

ni
ts

76
80

44
54

78
10

5
10

5
10

5
10

8
10

8
Fi

re
 st

at
io

ns
4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4
R

ef
us

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

tru
ck

s
12

16
16

16
17

15
19

19
19

19
O

th
er

 p
ub

lic
 w

or
ks

St
re

et
s (

m
ile

s)
19

3
19

5
20

3
20

3
20

3
20

3
26

6
30

0
30

3
30

6
St

re
et

lig
ht

s
13

4
13

4
13

4
13

4
13

4
13

4
13

4
13

4
13

4
13

4
Tr

af
fic

 si
gn

al
s

30
27

28
32

32
32

33
34

34
34

Pa
rk

s a
nd

 re
cr

ea
tio

n
A

cr
ea

ge
22

1.
2

26
5.

18
26

5.
18

26
5.

18
26

5.
18

26
5.

18
26

5.
18

26
5.

18
26

5
26

5
Pl

ay
gr

ou
nd

s
7

7
7

7
7

7
7

7
7

7
B

as
eb

al
l/s

of
tb

al
l d

ia
m

on
ds

14
14

14
14

14
14

14
14

14
14

So
cc

er
/fo

ot
ba

ll 
fie

ld
s

15
15

15
15

15
16

16
16

16
16

C
om

m
un

ity
 c

en
te

rs
4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4
4

4
W

at
er

W
at

er
 m

ai
ns

 (m
ile

s)
25

1
25

9
26

6
26

8
26

8
27

0
31

3
33

7
34

1
34

6
Fi

re
 h

yd
ra

nt
s

13
48

13
81

14
03

14
14

14
29

14
35

16
91

17
81

1,
81

3
1,

84
0

To
ta

l s
ys

te
m

 c
ap

ac
ity

 (m
ill

io
ns

 o
f g

al
lo

ns
)

47
.0

2
46

.8
4

46
.8

4
46

.8
4

46
.8

4
46

.8
4

46
.8

4
46

.8
4

46
.8

4
47

W
as

te
w

at
er Sa

ni
ta

ry
 se

w
er

s (
m

ile
s)

20
6

21
0

21
7

21
8

21
8

21
9

24
5

25
0

25
4

25
8

St
or

m
 se

w
er

s (
m

ile
s)

24
26

96
96

96
96

12
5

10
9

11
1

11
4

Tr
ea

tm
en

t c
ap

ac
ity

 (m
ill

io
ns

 o
f g

al
lo

ns
)

4.
5

4.
5

4.
5

4.
5

4.
5

4.
5

4.
5

4.
5

5
5

Li
ft 

st
at

io
ns

11
1

10
8

11
1

11
2

11
2

11
3

11
5

11
6

12
0

12
3

R
ec

la
im

ed
 W

at
er

R
ec

la
im

ed
 w

at
er

 m
ai

ns
 (m

ile
s)

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

4
11

3
11

7
11

8
12

6
13

0
13

3
13

7
14

1
To

ta
l s

ys
te

m
 c

ap
ac

ity
 (m

ill
io

ns
 o

f g
al

lo
ns

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
.5

5
15

.5
5

15
.5

5
15

.5
5

26
.3

5
26

.3
5

26
.3

5
31

31

So
ur

ce
s:

   
 V

ar
io

us
 C

ity
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
.

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

97

139



 

 

COMPLIANCE SECTION 
 

140



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

141



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
The Honorable Mayor and 

Members of the City Commission 
City of Apopka, Florida 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the City of Apopka, Florida (the “City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2017, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated April 13, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow manage-
ment or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and 
correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  We 
consider deficiency 2017-001, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned 
Costs, to be a material weakness. Management’s responses were not audited. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govern-
ance.  We consider deficiency 2017-002, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs, to be a significant deficiency. Management’s responses were not audited. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

 

98

142



 
The Honorable Mayor and 

Members of the City Commission 
City of Apopka, Florida 
 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s basic financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
grant agreements and contracts, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated April 13, 
2018. 
 
Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or 
on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE, P.A. 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
Orlando, Florida 
April 13, 2018 
 
 

99

143



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR 
EACH MAJOR STATE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL 

CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Commission 

City of Apopka, Florida 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Project 
We have audited the compliance of the City of Apopka, Florida (the “City”) with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the Department of Financial Services State Projects Compliance Supplement 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state projects for the year ended 
September 30, 2017. 

Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants referred to above. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the City’s major state project based on our 
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.  Those standards and 
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on the major state project identified in the accom-
panying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state 
project.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance with those 
requirements. 

Opinion on Each Major State Project 
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on its major state project identified in the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended September 30, 2017. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit, 
we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on the major state project to determine auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing 
our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with 
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance. 

100

144



 

 

The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Commission 

City of Apopka, Florida 
 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
state project on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state project will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance 
with a type of compliance requirement of a state project that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses in internal control over compliance.  We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance 

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of the City as of and for the year 
ended September 30, 2017, and have issued our report thereon dated April 13, 2018.  Our audit was 
performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements as a whole.  The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State 
Financial Assistance is presented for the purposes of additional analysis, as required by Chapter 10.550, 
Rules of the Auditor General, and is not a required part of the financial statements.  Such information is 
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
referred to above.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE, P.A. 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
Orlando, Florida 
April 13, 2018 
 

101

145



 

Grant /
State Agency/Pass-Through Grantor/ State CSFA/ Identifying Amount State

Program Title or Cluster Title Number Number Approved Expenditures

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Florida Recreation Development Assistance Program 37.017 A7026 2,359$            
Florida Recreation Development Assistance Program 37.017 A7057 6,152              

Total 8,511              

State Revolving Fund Loan 37.077 WW480211 7,393,578       

   Pass-through Agency
St. John's Water Management District

Florida Springs Grant Program 37.052 28145 5,297              
Reclamation Water Main Extension 37.052 28455 723,964          
Water Conservation Incentive Program 37.052 22848 33,349            

Total 762,610          

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 8,164,699$     

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

Note 2 - State Revolving Fund Loans

Program Title CSFA Number Total Outstanding
State Revolving Fund 37.077 7,594,273$               

For State Revolving Fund loans listed on the Schedule of State Financial Assistance, the City had the following loan balances outstanding at
September 30, 2017:

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017

The schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance (the “schedule”) is a summary of the activity of the City’s state financial assistance
presented on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
information in the schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

102

146



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

Year Ended September 30, 2017 
 
 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements 

Type of Auditor’s Report Issued: Unmodified Opinion 
 
Internal control over financial reporting:   
 
• Material weakness(es) identified?   X   Yes           No 

 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified?   X   Yes           None reported 

 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?         Yes    X    No 

State Projects   
   
Internal control over major projects:   
 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 
 
        Yes    X   No 

 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

 
        Yes    X   None reported 

   Type of report issued on compliance for major state 
projects: Unmodified Opinion 
  Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with Chapter 10.557, Rules of the Auditor 
General? 

 
   X    Yes 

 
        No  

 
Identification of Major State Project(s): 
  
CSFA Number Name of State Project 
37.077 State Revolving Loan 
  
  Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
 Type A and Type B projects: $300,000 

 
SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
Yes, see Schedule of Findings and Recommendations. 
 
SECTION III - STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS SECTION 
 
None reported. 
 
SECTION IV - PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 
 
None reported.

103

147



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA  
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS  

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 
 

Current Year Findings 
 
Type:  Material Weakness 
 
2017-001 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
 
Finding:  
During our audit, we noted an invoice that should have been expensed in fiscal year 2017, as the service 
occurred prior to fiscal year-end, the City recorded the transaction in fiscal year 2018.  
 
Criteria: 
To ensure that accurate and complete information is being captured, the City should review all account 
balances at year-end. 
 
Cause: 
The City’s year-end procedures were not adequately followed. 
 
Effect: 
This resulted in a material audit adjustment to the City’s Utility System Fund. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the City ensure that all year-end closing procedures are properly performed and that 
the City reviews all year-end account balances to ensure timely and accurate closing of the City’s trial 
balance. 
 
Type:  Significant Deficiency 
 
2017-002 FIXED ASSETS 
 
Finding:  
During our audit, we noted discrepancies between recorded balances of fixed assets and the recorded 
amounts in the City’s fixed assets subsidiary ledger. The amount of the discrepancies were not significant 
and correcting entries were made. 
 
Criteria: 
To ensure that accurate and complete information is being captured, the City should review all account 
balances at year-end and reconcile to available fixed asset subsidiary ledgers. 
 
Cause: 
During the current year, the City implemented a new fixed asset system which resulted in general ledger 
balances not being reconciled on a timely basis.  
 
Effect: 
Discrepancies in fixed asset balances and fixed asset subsidiary ledgers were noted during the period and 
audit adjustments were made to the City’s general ledger. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the City review and reconcile all fixed asset account balances, at least annually, to 
ensure timely and accurate financial reporting. 
 

104

148



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

149



 

 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT 
 
 
 
 
The Honorable Mayor and 

Members of the City Commission 
City of Apopka, Florida 
 
 
We have examined the City of Apopka, Florida’s (the “City”) compliance with the requirements of 
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017.  Management is 
responsible for the City’s compliance with those requirements.  Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the City’s compliance based on our examination. 
 
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the exami-
nation to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the City complied with those requirements.  An 
examination involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the City’s compliance with those 
requirements.  The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, 
including an assessment of the risks of noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error.  We believe that the 
evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  Our 
examination does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with specified requirements. 
 
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2017. 
 
 
 
MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE, P.A. 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
Orlando, Florida 
April 13, 2018 
 

105

150



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

151



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S MANAGEMENT LETTER 
 
 
 
The Honorable Mayor and 

Members of the City Commission 
City of Apopka, Florida 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Apopka, Florida (the “City”) as of and for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, and have issued our report thereon dated April 13, 2018. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. 
 
Other Reports and Schedule 

We have also issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and 
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards, Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major State 
Project and on Internal Control over Compliance and Report on Schedule of State Financial Assistance 
Required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, 
and our Independent Accountant’s Report on an examination conducted in accordance with AICPA 
Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance requirements in accordance with 
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.  Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated 
April 13, 2018, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter. 
 
Prior Audit Findings 

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective 
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial 
audit report.  The current year status of prior year findings are listed in the attached Schedule of 
Observations and Recommendations. 
 
Official Title and Legal Authority 

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal 
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this 
management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.  The legal authority is 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 

106

152



The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Commission 

City of Apopka, Florida 

 

Financial Condition and Management 

Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate 
procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether or not the City has met one or more 
of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and identification of the specific 
conditions met.  In connection with our audit, we determined that the City did not meet any of the 
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.c. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial 
condition assessment procedures.  It is management’s responsibility to monitor the City’s financial 
condition, and our financial condition assessment was based, in part, on representations made by 
management and the review of financial information provided by same. 

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations 
to improve financial management.  These recommendations are listed in the attached Schedule of 
Observations and Recommendations. 

Annual Financial Report 

Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate 
procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether the annual financial report for the 
City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, filed with the Florida Department of Financial 
Services, pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the annual financial 
audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017.  In connection with our audit, we determined 
that these two reports were in agreement. 

Special District Component Units 

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.d., Rules of the Auditor General, requires, if appropriate, that we communicate the 
failure of a special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or special district, to 
provide the financial information necessary for proper reporting of the component unit, within the audited 
financial statements of the county, municipality, or special district in accordance with 
Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes.  In connection with our audit, we did not note any special district 
component units that failed to provide the necessary information for proper reporting in accordance with 
Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes. 

Additional Matters 

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with 
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, 
that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants the attention of 
those charged with governance.  In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings. 

Purpose of this Letter 

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing 
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor 
General, federal and other granting agencies, the Mayor, City Commission, and applicable management, 
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
MOORE STEPHENS LOVELACE, P.A. 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
Orlando, Florida 
April 13, 2018 

107

153



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA  
SCHEDULE OF OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 
 

Prior Year Observations 
 
MLO-2016-001 EMPLOYEE TURNOVER 
 
Observation: 
During our current-year audit of the City’s financial statements, it was noted that the City had not 
completed some of its bank reconciliations in a timely manner. Furthermore, some of its journal entries 
were not reviewed and approved in accordance with the City’s existing policies and procedures.  
 
Criteria: 
Preparing bank reconciliations and reviewing and approving journal entries are essential in ensuring 
accurate financial operations and strong internal controls. 
 
Cause: 
The City had significant turnover of key Finance personnel in the current year. The City’s Accountant II 
and Accounting Manager positions were vacant during a portion of the year. Bank reconciliations and 
journal entries are the job duties of these positions. 
 
Effect: 
Not reconciling bank accounts and reviewing journal entries on a consistent basis means that errors or 
other problems might not be recognized and resolved in a timely manner.  
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the City implement cross-training procedures within the Finance Department. This 
will ensure that essential accounting functions can be carried out by various employees in the event of key 
personnel turnover. 
 
Current Year Status: 
During our control testing in the current year, we found instances of the observation noted above. 
Therefore, the observation has not been fully resolved in the current year. 
 

108

154



CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA  
SCHEDULE OF OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (Continued) 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 
 

Current Year Observations 
 
MLO-2017-001 UTILITY BILLING 
 
Observation: 
During our audit, we noted that the new software system does not produce billing reports that reconcile to 
the City’s revenue general ledger postings.  The City’s utility billing reports must be run periodically in 
order to reconcile to the general ledger posting on a particular day.  Discrepancies between utility billing 
reports and the general ledger were small, however, in past audits, these reports were reconciled without 
exception. 
 
Criteria: 
To ensure that accurate and complete information is being captured, the City should review all utility 
billing reports when they are run and reconcile the reports to their general ledger. 
 
Cause: 
Due to changes in the City’s financial software during the year, balances were not reconciled on a timely 
basis. 
 
Effect: 
Discrepancies in utility billing reports and general ledger postings were noted during the period. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the City review and reconcile its utility billing reports to the general ledger on a 
periodic basis. 
  

109

155



110

156



111

157



158



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: April 18, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             City Clerk 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      Official Run-off Election  

        OTHER:                  Results 
  

 

SUBJECT:  2018 RUN-OFF ELECTION RESULTS 

 

REQUEST: RATIFY THE CERTIFICATE OF OFFICIAL ELECTION RESULTS 
  
SUMMARY:   

 

The City’s Run-off election for City Council Seat 2 was held on April 10, 2018.  The Canvassing Board 

met on April 10, 2018, 5:30 p.m. at the Supervisor of Elections office, 119 W Kaley Street, Orlando, FL 

to canvass the absentee and early voting ballots. The board reconvened at 7:00 p.m. to continue 

canvassing ballots as the results came in from the precincts.  The Canvassing Board met again on April 

12, 2018, 2:00 p.m. at the same location to conduct the voting system manual audit as required by FS 

101.591, with the assistance from employees of the Orange County Supervisor of Election’s Office. 

Following the manual audit, the Canvassing Board voted unanimously to officially certify the April 10, 

2018, City of Apopka Run-off election results. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
N/A 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

Chapter 34 – Elections, Section 34-41 – Canvassing board; canvass and certification of votes, of the City 

Code of Ordinances requires the Canvassing Board to present the signed certificate containing the number 

of votes cast for each candidate to the City Council for ratification. The Canvassing Board recommends 

the Council ratify the official certified results of the Run-off election held April 10, 2018, as presented. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director 

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

159



160



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  April 18, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Surplus Forms 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT/PROPERTY AND 

REMOVAL OF ASSET PROPERTY FROM THE CITY ASSET LIST.  
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Staff requests City Council approval to dispose of surplus capital equipment/property which has no useful 

benefit to the daily operation of the city. This request is per Administrative Policy 122.1.1.II: “The 

disposal of capital asset property which is obsolete, or for which the continued use would be 

uneconomical or inefficient, shall be in accordance with Florida Statue 274 and must be approved by the 

City Council”. The asset property includes the disposal of items by auction, donation, or elimination. The 

attached form identifies vehicles and equipment which are no longer functional or has usefulness to the 

city.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the disposal of said equipment/property.  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

161



162



163



164



165



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: April 18, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

  X  OTHER: BUSINESS 
  

 

SUBJECT:  GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT TO PETROLEUM TRADERS 

CORPORATION FOR THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

On March 26, 2018 staff received three (3) sealed bids for ITB# 2018-09, Gasoline and Diesel Fuel 

Contract.  The bid prices submitted are based on either a discount or premium added to or subtracted from 

the Oil Price Information Service – OPIS (spot market rate) weekly average price per gallon of fuel.  In 

the sample below $1.75 was used as the OPIS.  Please note that the quantities and totals displayed are 

only samples to demonstrate the effect of fuel prices submitted.  

 

 

Petroleum Traders Corporation 

Description Sample OPIS 

Weekly Average 

Sample 

Qty (gal.) 

Bid 

Delivery 

Fee 

Bid 

Price 

Total 

Small Gas or Diesel Tanker: 100 – 4,000 gal. $1.75 4,000 $50.00 +0.245 $8,030.00 

Full Load 87 Gas Tanker:  8,000 – 8,500 gal. $1.75 8,000 $50.00 -0.0073 $13,991.60 

Full Load Diesel Tanker:  7,500 – 8,500 gal. $1.75 8,000 $50.00 -0.0105 $13,966.00 

Split Load (Gas):  7,500 – 8,500 gal. $1.75 4,000 $50.00 -0.0089 $7,014.40 

Split Load (Diesel):  7,500 – 8,500 gal. $1.75 4,000 $50.00 -0.0089 $7,014.40 

GRAND TOTAL +0.2183 $50,016.40 

 

 

Lykins Energy Solutions 

Description Sample OPIS 

Weekly Average 

Sample 

Qty (gal.) 

Bid 

Delivery 

Fee 

Bid 

Price 

Total 

Small Gas or Diesel Tanker: 100 – 4,000 gal. $1.75 4,000 $24.00 +0.26 $8,064.00 

Full Load 87 Gas Tanker:  8,000 – 8,500 gal. $1.75 8,000 $48.00 -0.0066 $13,995.20 

Full Load Diesel Tanker:  7,500 – 8,500 gal. $1.75 8,000 $48.00 -0.0104 $13,964.80 

Split Load (Gas):  7,500 – 8,500 gal. $1.75 4,000 $24.00 +0.006 $7,048.00 

Split Load (Diesel):  7,500 – 8,500 gal. $1.75 4,000 $24.00 +0.006 $7,048.00 

GRAND TOTAL +0.2550 $50,120.00 

 

  

166



 

Mansfield Oil Company of Gainesville, Inc. 

Description Sample OPIS 

Weekly Average 

Sample 

Qty (gal.) 

Bid 

Delivery 

Fee 

Bid 

Price 

Total 

Small Gas or Diesel Tanker: 100 – 4,000 gal. $1.75 4,000 $50.00 +0.8558 $10,473.20 

Full Load 87 Gas Tanker:  8,000 – 8,500 gal. $1.75 8,000 $50.00 -0.0084 $13,982.80 

Full Load Diesel Tanker:  7,500 – 8,500 gal. $1.75 8,000 $50.00 -0.0015 $14,038.00 

Split Load (Gas):  7,500 – 8,500 gal. $1.75 4,000 $50.00 -0.0084 $7,016.40 

Split Load (Diesel):  7,500 – 8,500 gal. $1.75 4,000 $50.00 -0.0015 $7,044.00 

GRAND TOTAL +0.8360 $52,554.40 

 

The gasoline and diesel fuel contract will be for a period of three (3) years, with the option of two (2) 

additional one year extensions, for a total contract period of five (5) years.  The purchase of gasoline and 

diesel fuel will be for City wide purchasing on an as needed basis. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the Gasoline and Diesel Fuel contract to Petroleum Traders Corporation. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

City Wide Departmental Budgets 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the award of the Gasoline and Diesel Fuel Contract to Petroleum Traders Corporation for a term 

of three (3) years, with the option of two (2) additional one year extensions. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

167



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 4, 2018 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Existing Use Map 
    Ordinance No. 2639 
    Ex A - Revelle Survey – Location 
    Ex B - Master Site Plan Sheet 
    Ex C - Landscape Plan Sheet 
    Ex D - Entire PUD Master Plan\PDP Plan 

  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2639 – CHANGE OF ZONING – THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES LLC 

(OAK POINTE SOUTH PUD); AND OAK POINTE PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT. 
    
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2639 – CHANGE OF ZONING FROM 

“COUNTY” A-1 TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) FOR THE REVELLE 
PARCEL; AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2584 TO INCORPORATE REVELLE PARCEL 
INTO THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION; TO INCREASE THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF 
TOWNHOMES TO 120. 
  

SUMMARY:  
 
OWNERS:    Jason C. Revelle, Thompson Hills Estates, LLC   
 
APPLICANT:    Evans Engineering, Inc.  
 
LOCATION:  East of Ocoee-Apopka Road, north of McCormick Road  
 
EXISTING USE: Single-family residence (Revelle Parcel\Jones Addition); and Existing Oak 

Pointe PUD Residential Community (vacant) 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS:  29-21-28-0000-00-037; 29-21-28-0000-00-011; 29-21-28-0000-00-016;  

29-21-28-0000-00-033; 29-21-28-0000-00-038; 32-21-28-0000-00-004;  
32-21-28-0000-00-030 

 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Residential Low (0–5 un/ac) (Revelle Parcel & existing Oak Pointe PUD) 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Orange County A-1, City of Apopka PUD  
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Add the 0.97 acre Revelle parcel to boundaries of the Oak Pointe PUD; and 

increase the number of townhomes in the Oak Pointe PUD from 106 to 120 
units; 118 single family homes and 120 townhome units (238 units total) 

 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD)  
 
TRACT SIZE:    Parcel to be rezoned -- 0.97 acres (+/-) 

Total PUD area -- 69.38 +/- acres  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 168



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:  On December 20, 2017 the City Council approved Ordinance 2584, 

which approved a PUD Master Plan for a 69.7 acre residential development known as Oak Pointe. The 

approved Oak Pointe PUD Master Plan consists of 118 single-family and 106 townhome units. Prior to the 

approval of Ordinance 2584, the property owner of the Oak Pointe PUD entered into an agreement to 

purchase a 0.96 acre parcel located at 1751 Irmalee Lane, which is currently owned by Jason C. Revelle.  

The Revelle Parcel (aka Jones Additon) is surrounded by and interior to the Oak Pointe PUD.   The legal 

description for Ordinance 2584, and the approved Oak Pointe PUD Master Plan did not include the legal 

description Mr. Revelle’s property. As a result, the applicant is requesting the following actions:  

 

1) Rezone Mr. Revelle’s property from Orange County A-1 to City of Apopka PUD (Planned Unit 

Development).  

 

2) Incorporate the legal description of Mr. Revelle’s property into the overall legal description of 

Ordinance 2584 (the Oak Pointe PUD).  

 

3) Amend the Oak Pointe PUD Master Plan to include six townhome units on Mr. Revelle’s property, 

and eight additional townhomes within the existing Oak Pointe PUD, adjacent to Tract L-3, for an 

increase in the amount of townhomes in the Oak Pointe PUD from 106 to 120. There will be no 

increase in the amount of single-family units located within the Oak Pointe PUD.  No other changes 

are proposed to the Oak Pointe PUD. 

 

4) The Revelle parcel, when incorporated into the Oak Pointe PUD, will be owned by Thompson Hill 

Estates LLC, and will be subject the terms and conditions sheet forth in the Oak Pointe PUD and its 

development agreement.   

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  The amended PUD Master Plan includes 120 townhomes and 118 single 
family homes within a gated community with private streets.  A single master homeowners association will 
serve both the single family homes and townhomes. The following development standards are proposed: 
 

 Single family lots typically have a minimum width of 70 feet and a minimum lot area of 8,400 sq. 
ft., a minimum house livable area of 1,500 sq. ft., and a minimum two-car enclosed garage.  A small 
percentage of single family lots (6.8% totaling 8 lots) have a minimum typical lot width of 65 feet 
and a minimum lot area of  7,800 sq. ft., also with a minimum house livable area of 1,500 sq. ft. and 
a minimum two-car enclosed garage. No three-car garages are allowed. 

 
 Townhomes will have a minimum lot width of 23 feet and a minimum lot area of 2,530 sq. ft. All 

townhome units offer a one-car enclosed garage. No two-car enclosed garages are proposed by the 
developer.  Seventy-five (75) units have a one-car driveway; 31 units have a two-car driveway.  On-
Street parking and a parking lot are provided for the townhomes and community park (Tract K-6). 

 
 Two parks are provided and will be accessible to all residents. Tract N-1 provides a community 

swimming pool and a cabana with a parking lot. A second community park provides outdoor 
recreation on 2.03 acres (Tract K-6) and includes a fenced-in dog park. 

 
 Access to the Oak Pointe Community will occur through a road connection to McCormick Road 

and a future road connection to Ocoee-Apopka Road.  A gate will be located at both the north and 
south entrances. An emergency gate will be located on the eastern boundary, connecting to Pelock 
Drive within the Apopka Woods community.   
 

169



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

 Perimeter buffers include:  a ten foot buffer with a six-foot high brick wall along the western 
property line adjacent to S.R. 429, a six-foot high vinyl fence within a ten foot buffer next to the 
Apopka Woods community and next to the County’s Northwest Reclamation facility. 

 
Existing Conditions:   The Oak Point PUD consists of 69.38 acres serviced by a gated private right-of-way 
noted on the Master Plan as Street “I”.  The site typically has a flat topography with no wetlands.  The 
property is located along the north side of McCormick Road. The City of Ocoee is situated along the south 
side of McCormick Road. The proposed residential PUD Master Plan abuts land zoned commercial located 
to the south. The commercial land is not part of the PUD and is located between McCormick Road and the 
single family residential area delineated on the Master Plan. Located to the east of the site is Apopka Woods 
a 76 lot, single family residential neighborhood. Typical lots within Apopka Woods have a minimum width 
of 70 feet and a minimum land area of 7,500 sq. ft. The Orange County Northwest Reclamation Water 
Facility is located on portions of the northern and northwest boundaries of the property. Directly to the south 
of Oak Pointe is a private gated residential community located in the City of Ocoee; McCormick Woods, 
with typical lot sizes of 70 x 125 (8,750 sq. ft.). 
 
Annexation History:  The subject properties were annexed into the City via Ordinance 1651 on December 
18, 2002.   
 
Amenities: The Master Plan includes two recreation tracts: 
 

1. Tract N-1 – 0.8 acres 

 
 Swimming Pool. 
 Pool area surrounded by a 36” viburnum hedge, crepe myrtles, magnolia trees, live oak trees, and 

approved ground cover. 
 Pool parking lot - 13 parking plus one handicap parking space. 
 Bike rack located adjacent to parking lot. 
 2,200 +/- SF Cabana located next to the pool surrounded by landscaping that blends with the pool 

landscaping. 
 The cabana will be partially open, with the open area surrounded by a four foot metal guardrail/ 

fence. 
 A paved sidewalk from the Cabana connects to the sidewalk along Street I. 
 An outdoor shower will be placed on both the east and west sides of the building. 
 The pool and cabana are appropriately located near the center of the development, easily accessible 

to both the single family residential units and the townhome. 
 

2. Tract K-6 – 2.05 acres 

 
 Two multi-purpose playing fields. 
 Mulched walking trail around the perimeter of the Tract. 
 Paved sidewalk will placed along the west side of the park, connecting Street I with the Tot Lot, 

Dog Park, and parking lot. 
 Paved sidewalk will connect the parking lot at Tract O-1 with the paved sidewalk along the west 

side of the park. 
 Three picnic tables. 
 Litter receptacle - 24” X 30” size. 
 Eight benches, each with armrests. 
 Tot Lot with playground equipment – slides, climbing equipment. 
 Dog park with five foot high vinyl coated chain link fence, screened with a viburnum hedge. 

170



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

 Dogipot aluminum pet station with pet waste receptacle. 
 Dog park will be handicap accessible. 
 Bike rack located in Tract K-5, between the parking lot and sidewalk along the west side of the park. 
 Pedestrian level lighting 
 Park area surrounded by a viburnum hedge, sabal palms, crepe myrtles, magnolia trees, live oak 

trees, and approved ground cover. 

 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS:  That the zoning classification for the Revelle Parcel is proposed to be 

PUD and the amendment to the Oak Point PUD incorporates the Revelle property into its boundaries.  A 

summary of the amendments are as follows: 

 

Amendment 
 

1. The Oak Pointe PUD is amended to include the Ravelle property. (Parcel identification number: 29-
21-28-0000-00-037) 
 

2. The Ravelle property shall be subject to all the development standards and conditions set forth in 
Ordinance 2584. 
 

3. The Ravelle property shall be subject to any Development Agreement approved by the City Council 
for the Oak Pointe PUD. 
 

4. The maximum number of townhome units for the Oak Pointe PUD is increased from 106 to 120.  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Residential Low Future Land Use designation and is consistent with the Land Development Code 

subject to the recommended DRC development conditions. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: The current capacity enhancement agreement must be amended with 

OCPS or a letter provided by OCPS prior to City approval of a final development. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, 

notification to Orange County is not required for a rezoning application as the subject parcel being 

incorporated into the PUD is not adjacent to unincorporated Orange County. As a courtesy, the City notified 

Orange County and the City of Ocoee on February 21, 2018.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

March 13, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

April 4, 2018 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

April 18, 2018 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

February 27, 2018 – Public Notice; Letter, Poster 

March 30, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

April 6, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

  

171



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and Land Development Code and recommends approval of the amended Oak Pointe Planned Unit 

Development Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan subject to the DRC Conditions of Approval. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on March 13, 2018, found the proposed amendments to be 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and unanimously recommended 

approval of the rezoning of the Revelle Parcel from Orange County “A-1” to City of Apopka PUD (Planned 

Unit Development); amend Ordinance 2584 to incorporate the Revelle Parcel into the legal description of 

Ordinance 2584 and the amended Oak Pointe PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan to increase 

the maximum number of townhomes to 120. 

 
The City Council, at its April 4, 2018 meeting, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance 2639 and Held it 
Over for Second Reading and Adoption on April 18, 2018 
 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2639. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

172



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Northwest Water Reclamation Facility 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-2 Apopka Woods subdivision 

South (City) Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) C-1 Vacant commercial\McCormick Rd 

West (City & 

County) 

“City” Mixed Use & “County” Rural 

(0-1 du/10 ac) 

Mixed-EC & 

A-1 

SR 429 ROW & Retention Pond 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property has access to a Major Arterial roadway (McCormick 

Road) and future access to Ocoee Apopka Road to the north.  A 
proposed internal spine road be a private gated road and provide 
connectivity to both Ocoee Apopka Road to the north and McCormick 
Road to the south for future residents of Oak Pointe. Future land use 
designations and zoning categories assigned to properties to the north, 
south, east, and west are predominantly residential and rural.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD zoning is compatible with policies set forth in the 

Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Single-family and townhome residential uses set forth within the 

Planned Unit Development Master Plan. 
  

173



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

Thompson Hills Estates LLC (Oak Pointe PUD) 
0.97  +/- Acres 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: Orange County A-1  

To: Planned Unit Development (New Master Site Plan) 
Parcel ID #: 29-21-28-0000-00-037  

 

VICINITY MAP 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

  

174



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

  

 

175



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 

OAK POINTE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 
 

176



ORDINANCE NO. 2639 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 
THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PUD)FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 
LOCATED NORTH OF MCCORMICK ROAD AND EAST OF STATE 
ROAD 429, SPECIFICALLY AT 1751 IRMALEE LANE, COMPRISING 
0.96 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JASON C. REVELLE; 
AND AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2584 TO INCORPORATE 
SAME CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY INTO THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
THEREIN AND INCREASE THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF 
TOWNHOMES THEREIN TO 120; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 
THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 
identified in Section II of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/) zoning has been found to 
be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
  

WHEREAS, the parcel owned by Jason C. Revelle shall be included as part of the 
boundaries for the Oak Pointe PUD Master Plan. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property (aka Revelle 
Parcel) be designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code, and is incorporated into the legal boundaries of the Oak Pointe Planned Unit 
Development Master Plan and shall be subject to the same Master Plan provisions, conditions, 
terms, and requirements set forth by Ordinance No. 2584.  
  

Section II.  The Legal Boundaries of the Revelle Parcel assigned the Planned Unit 
Development zoning category is: 

 
Legal Description:  
 
FROM THE SE COR OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE SE1/4 OF THE SW 1/4 SEC 
29-21-28; RUN N 89 DEG W 404.10 FT TO THE POB: RUN N 89 DEG W 183. 
FT; N 08 DEG E 255.56 FT S 89 DEG E 148.04 FT: THENCE SOUTH 00 DEG 
252.94 FT TO POB. 
Parcel No: 29-21-28-0000-00-037 
Acres: 0.96 +/- acres 
 
 

177



ORDINANCE NO. 2639 

PAGE 2 

 

Section III.  That the legal boundaries described within Exhibit “B” of Ordinance No. 2584 
are amended to include the Revelle Parcel and replaced with legal description is as follows: 

  
 Legal Description: Exhibit “A” of Ordinance 2639.  

 
Parcel ID Nos.: 29-21-28-0000-00-011; 29-21-28-0000-00-016; 29-21-28-0000-

00-033; and Portions of: 29-21-28-0000-00-038; 32-21-28-0000-00-004; 32-21-

28-0000-00- 030; 29-21-28-0000-00-037 
 
Combined Acreage: 97.7 +/- Acres 

 
 Section III.  The Oak Pointe PUD Master Plan, Exhibit “A” of Ordinance 2584, is 
amended and replaced by Exhibit “B” of Ordinance 2639.  Further, the maximum number of the 
of townhome residential units allowed within the Oak Pointe PUD Master Plan shall be 120 units. 
 
 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 
hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, to include said designation. 
 
 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 
to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 
force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.  
 
 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 
 
 

                     
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: February 23, 2018; March 30, 2018 
     
 
 
 
 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  April 4, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     April 18, 2018 

178



ORDINANCE NO. 2639 

PAGE 3 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

(as provided on cover sheet of the Master Site Plan-Exhibit “A”) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
TRACT 1: 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATE IN SECTIONS 29 AND 32, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 29, SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING ALSO BEING ON THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF IRMALEE LANE AS SHOWN ON OOCEA RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP, PROJECT NO. 75320-6460-604; THENCE RUN ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE AND THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 29, NORTH 00°00'34” 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 676.02 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 
1/4 OF SAID SECTION 29; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°36'10” EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 
OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 29, A DISTANCE OF 662.29 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF 
THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°07'19” WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF 
THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, A DISTANCE OF 679.97 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF 
THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°05'25” WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE 
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF AFORESAID SECTION 32, A DISTANCE OF 1299.53 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH 
A LINE LYING 30 FEET NORTH OF AN PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 
32, SAID LINE ALSO BEING THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WEST MCCORMICK ROAD AS LAID OUT AND IN USE; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
89°44'22” WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 659.62 FEET TO THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF AFORESAID 
IRMALEE LANE; THENCE RUN NORTH 00°02'30” EAST ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE WEST LINE OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE 
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 32, A DISTANCE OF 1301.88 FEET BACK TO THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING. 
 
THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 1307158 SQUARE FEET OR 30.008 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 
 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS DESCRIPTION ALL BEARINGS ARE REATIVE TO THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE SYSTEM, NATIONAL ADJUSTED 
DATUM OF 1983 (NAD83), EAST ZONE TRANSVERSE MERCATOR, ZONE FL83-EF. 
 
TRACT 2: 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATE IN SECTIONS 29 AND 32, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 29, SAID POINT ALSO BEING ON THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
IRMALEE LANE AS SHOWN ON OOCEA RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP, PROJECT NO. 75320-6460-604; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°58'41” WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 105.10 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID IRMALEE LANE AND THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING 
OF THE PARCEL INTENDED TO BE DESCRIBED;  
 
THENCE FROM SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING RUN ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE FOR THE FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES, 
FIRST SOUTH 00°00'34” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 131.79 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 03°46'11” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 300.95 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
00°02'30 WEST, A DISTANCE OF 870.05 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE LYING 30 FEET NORTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH 
THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 32, SAID LINE ALSO BEING THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF WEST MCCORMICK ROAD AS LAID OUT AND IN USE; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°46'26” WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, 
A DISTANCE OF 432.05 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 
429, AS SHOWN ON THE ORLANDO ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP, PROJECT NO. 75320-6460-604; 
THENCE ALONG THE SAID EASTERLY LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE FOR THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES, THE FIRST BEING 
FROM A POINT ON A CURVE NON-TANGENT TO THE PRECEEDING COURSE, CONCAVE TO THE WEST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 5071.07 FEET, 
A CHORD OF NORTH 06°38'25” WEST, 1230.71 FEET AND FROM WHICH A RADIAL LINE BEARS NORTH 89°49'25” WEST; THENCE 
NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, SUBTENDED BY A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13°56'23”, A DISTANCE OF 1233.75 FEET TO 
A POINT OF NON-TANGENCY; THENCE NORTH 00°13'36” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 81.23 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21°02'59” WEST, A DISTANCE 
OF 218.39 FEET; THENCE NORTH 22°49'25” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 108.56 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE BEING NON-TANGENT TO THE 
PRECEEDING COURSE, CONCAVE TO THE WEST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 5061.07 FEET, A CHORD OF NORTH 19°40'31” WEST, 265.41 FEET 
AND FROM WHICH A RADIAL LINE BEARS SOUTH 71°49'38” WEST; THENCE RUN NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, 
SUBTENDED BY A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 3°00'18”, A DISTANCE OF 265.44 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE AFORESAID RIGHT-
OF-WAY LINE OF IRMALEE LANE; THENCE DEPARTING FROM SAID EASTERLY LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, RUN ALONG THE 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF IRMALEE LANE FOR THE FOLLOWING FOUR (4) COURSES, FIRST NORTH 81°37'49” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 93.13 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°44'46” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 433.52 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE, CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHWEST, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 235.00 FEET AND A CHORD OF SOUTH 45°07'54” EAST, 333.05 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF 
SAID CURVE, SUBTENDED BY A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 90°14'40”, A DISTANCE OF 370.14 FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE RUN 
SOUTH 00°00'34” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 334.61 FEET BACK TO THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING. 
 
THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 990921 SQUARE FEET OR 22.748 ACRES MORE OR LESS.  
 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS DESCRIPTION ALL BEARINGS ARE REATIVE TO THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE SYSTEM, NATIONAL ADJUSTED 
DATUM OF 1983 (NAD83), EAST ZONE TRANSVERSE MERCATOR, ZONE FL83-EF 
 
TRACT 3: 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATE IN SECTION 29, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 

179



ORDINANCE NO. 2639 

PAGE 4 

 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 
29, SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING ALSO BEING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR IRMALEE LANE AS SHOWN ON THE 
OOCEA RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP, PROJECT NO. 75320-6460-604; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°44'46” WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT-WAY LINE AND THE 
SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 29, A DISTANCE OF 404.10 FEET 
TO A POINT AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THOSE LANDS DESCRIBED IN THAT CERTAIN WARANTY DEED RECORDED IN OFFICIAL 
RECORD BOOK 10023 AT PAGE 6676 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE TRAVERSE SAID LANDS FOR 
THE FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES, FIRST NORTH 00°05'38” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 252.94 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°44'46” WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 148.04 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 07°57'26” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 255.56 FEET BACK TO THE AFORESAID RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 
IRMALEE LANE; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°44'46” WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, A DISTANCE OF 330.19 FEET TO A POINT OF 
INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 429, AS SHOWN ON THE ORLANDO ORANGE 
COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP, PROJECT NO. 75320-6460-604, SAID POINT BEING A POINT ON A NON-TANGENT 
CURVE, CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHWEST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 5061.07 FEET, A CHORD OF NORTH 26°14'53” WEST, 640.22 FEET AND FROM 
WHICH A RADIAL LINE BEARS SOUTH 67°22'42” WEST; THENCE RUN NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, SUBTENDED BY 
A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 7°15'10”, A DISTANCE OF 640.65 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 
NORTH 29°36'57” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 237.79 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF 
THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 29; THENCE DEPARTING FROM SAID LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND ALONG THE EAST 
LINE OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 29, NORTH 00°04'09” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 37.87 FEET TO A 
POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE LYING 150 FEET NORTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 29; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°30'29” EAST ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE, A 
DISTANCE OF 658.90 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID WEST 1/2; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°01'48” WEST ALONG SAID EAST LINE, A DISTANCE 
OF 150.02 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 29; THENCE 
RUN NORTH 89°30'33” EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 659.01 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID EAST 1/2; 
THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°00'34” EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID EAST 1/2, A DISTANCE OF 676.01 FEET BACK TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 
 
THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 990921 SQUARE FEET OR 22.748 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 18, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: Development Agreement  Vicinity Map 

    Development Agreement 
   

SUBJECT:  DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR OAK POINTE – THOMPSON 
HILLS ESTATES, LLC 

   
REQUEST:  APPROVE THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR OAK POINTE – 

THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES, LLC 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

OWNERS:   Jason C. Revelle, Thompson Hills Estates, LLC   

 

APPLICANT:   Evans Engineering, Inc.  

 

LOCATION: East of S.R. 429, South of Ocoee-Apopka Road, north of  McCormick 

Road  

 

PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 29-21-28-0000-00-037; 29-21-28-0000-00-011; 29-21-28-0000-00-016;  

29-21-28-0000-00-033; 29-21-28-0000-00-038; 32-21-28-0000-00-004;  

32-21-28-0000-00-030; 29-21-28-0000-00-004 

 

PROPOSED  

DEVELOPMENT: 120 Townhome unit and 118 single family homes; 120 townhome units (238 

units total) 

 

PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD)  

 

TRACT SIZE:   Total PUD area -- 69.38 +/- acres  

 

FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

 

 

 

 

 
211



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 

OAK POINTE – DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:  The development agreement established obligations and commitments 

that must be met by the Developer. 
 
Development Agreement provisions address the following obligations placed on the Developer: 
 

i. To obtain from Developer the right-of-way generally extending from the northern boundary of 

Tract K-4 to Ocoee-Apopka Road as depicted in the sketch and description attached as Exhibit 

“B” of the Development Agreement; and  

 

ii. To obtain from Developer land for a stormwater pond associated with the Right-of-Way Parcel 

in the location generally depicted on the sketch of description attached s Exhibit “B” of the 

Development Agreement; and 

 

iii. To ensure that Developer or Homebuilder creates a single mandatory homeowners’ association 

to govern the Project and maintain the infrastructure needed to support the Project; and  

 

iv. To ensure that Developer constructs and completes Street “I” from W. McCormick Road to the 

northern boundary of Tract K-4 prior to City’s first issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for a 

residential unit within the Project; and 

 

v. To ensure that the portion of Street “I” extending from W. McCormick Road to the Project’s 

south entry gates, as depicted on the Final Development Plan, will be a private road maintained 

by the Homeowners’ Association with proportional contributions from the two parcels zoned 

Commercial that access that portion of Street “I” ; and 

 

vi. To ensure that Homebuilder commences and completes construction of all sidewalks serving 

residential lots; and 

 

vii. To ensure that Homebuilder commences and completes construction of the Tract N-1 pool house, 

parking lot, and landscaping depicted and described in Exhibit “C” of the Development 

Agreement; and  

 

viii. To ensure that Developer commences and completes:  (i) construction of streets, perimeter walls, 

fence, entrance gates, and associated landscaping in conjunction with the infrastructure for the 

Project; (ii) the Tract O-1 parking lot; and (iii) the Tract K-6 recreation improvements and 

landscaping as depicted and described in Exhibit “D” and Exhibit “E” of the Development 

Agreement; and 

 

ix. To ensure that Developer constructs a gate for emergency vehicle access to the Apopka Woods 

subdivision at the eastern terminus of Street “G” ; and 

 

x. To ensure that Developer provides private cross-access easements granting access to the parcels 

zoned Commercial located east and west of Street “I”. 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  The amended PUD Master Plan includes 120 townhomes and 118 single 
family homes within a gated community with private streets.  A single master homeowners association will 
serve both the single family homes and townhomes. The following development standards are proposed: 
 

212



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 

OAK POINTE – DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

PAGE 3 
 

 Single family lots typically have a minimum width of 70 feet and a minimum lot area of 8,400 sq. 
ft., a minimum house livable area of 1,500 sq. ft., and a minimum two-car enclosed garage.  A small 
percentage of single family lots (6.8% totaling 8 lots) have a minimum typical lot width of 65 feet 
and a minimum lot area of  7,800 sq. ft., also with a minimum house livable area of 1,500 sq. ft. and 
a minimum two-car enclosed garage. No three-car garages are allowed. 

 
 Townhomes will have a minimum lot width of 23 feet and a minimum lot area of 2,530 sq. ft. All 

townhome units offer a one-car enclosed garage. No two-car enclosed garages are proposed by the 
developer.  Seventy-five (75) units have a one-car driveway; 31 units have a two-car driveway.  On-
Street parking and a parking lot are provided for the townhomes and community park (Tract K-6). 

 
 Two parks are provided and will be accessible to all residents. Tract N-1 provides a community 

swimming pool and a cabana with a parking lot. A second community park provides outdoor 
recreation on 2.03 acres (Tract K-6) and includes a fenced-in dog park. 

 
 Access to the Oak Pointe Community will occur through a road connection to McCormick Road 

and a future road connection to Ocoee-Apopka Road.  A gate will be located at both the north and 
south entrances. An emergency gate will be located on the eastern boundary, connecting to Pelock 
Drive within the Apopka Woods community.   

 
 Perimeter buffers include:  a ten foot buffer with a six-foot high brick wall along the western 

property line adjacent to S.R. 429, a six-foot high vinyl fence within a ten foot buffer next to the 
Apopka Woods community and next to the County’s Northwest Reclamation facility. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  Orange County was notified as part of the DRC agenda 

distribution. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:   

April 18, 2018 – City Council – 7:00 p.m. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approved of the development agreement. 

 

City Council:  Approved the Oak Pointe Development Agreement and authorize the Mayor to execute the 

Agreement. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  

213



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 

OAK POINTE – DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

PAGE 4 
 

VICINITY MAP 
 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

214



 

 1 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

Prepared by and return to: 
Clifford B. Shepard 
2300 Maitland Center Parkway, Ste. 100 
Maitland, Florida 32751 
 

DRAFT 4/10/18 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

(Oak Pointe) 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into 
this _____ day of ____________, 2018, by and between the CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, a 
Florida municipal corporation (“City”), whose address is 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL 
32703, and, THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES, LLC, a Florida limited liability company 
(“Developer”), whose address is 207 Island Drive, Jupiter, FL 33477.  Developer and City are 
sometimes together referred to herein as the “Parties,” and separately as the “Party,” as the 
context requires. 

R E C I T A L S: 

WHEREAS, Developer is the owner of certain parcels of real property bearing Orange 
County Tax Parcel Identification Numbers 29-21-28-0000-00-004, 29-21-28-0000-00-011, 29-21-
28-0000-00-016, 29-21-28-0000-00-033, 29-21-28-0000-00-037, 29-21-28-0000-00-038, 32-21-
28-0000-00-004 and 32-21-28-0000-00-030 located in the City of Apopka, Orange County, 
Florida (collectively, the “Property”), which is approximately 100 total acres in size and is 
generally depicted on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference; and  

WHEREAS, Developer is processing certain land use and zoning approvals with City, 
including a PUD/Master Plan and Preliminary and Final Development Plans (collectively, the 
“Approvals”) with respect to three (3) of the parcels included in the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the Property also includes five (5) parcels that are depicted on the Final 
Development Plan and that will retain their existing zoning designations of Mixed Use EC or 
Commercial; and 

WHEREAS, the PUD portion of the Property is proposed for 118 single family residential 
units and, 120 townhome units (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, Developer intends to develop the Project infrastructure including streets, 
stormwmater management system, utilities, perimeter walls, entrance gates and entrance features 
as specified herein and assign to a homebuilder entity (the “Homebuilder”) the obligations under 
this Agreement that directly relate to constructing homes on the various residential lots and 
constructing driveways, sidewalks, community pools and clubhouses, and installing lot 
landscaping within the Project; and  

WHEREAS, Developer desires to obtain the Approvals and receive assurances from City, 
as set forth herein; and 

215



 

 2 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

WHEREAS, City desires that Developer and Homebuilder develop the Property in 
accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, its Land Development Code, and the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, City desires that Developer convey to City for a right-of-way connection 
from the northern Project boundary to Ocoee-Apopka Road to accommodate emergency response 
activities in the area and to allow residents of the Project to access Ocoee-Apopka Road and future 
businesses developed in Tracts A, B, and C depicted on the Final Development Plan; and  

WHEREAS, City desires that Developer convey to City land for a stormwater pond as 
specified in this Agreement to serve the conveyed right-of-way and to offset development impacts 
and needs generated by the Project; and 

WHEREAS, Developer, for and on behalf of itself and the successor Homebuilder, agrees 
to develop the Project upon the Property in accordance with and subject to the terms of this 
Agreement for the uses substantially as depicted in the Approvals (the “Project Uses”), all of 
which shall constitute the “Development Improvements” as defined and described below; and 

WHEREAS, City is authorized by home-rule powers to enter into agreements regarding 
the development and redevelopment of property; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved a PUD Master Plan for the Project through 
Ordinance No. 2584 on December 20, 2017, and amended said ordinance via Ordinance No. 2639 
on April 18, 2018; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council scheduled, advertised and held a public hearing on April 
18, 2018, to consider this Agreement, and heard all persons desiring to speak for or against this 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council duly considered the remarks and comments offered 
regarding the Agreement made at said public hearings; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement to provide the citizens of the 
City a quality development in the form of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, Developer hereby affirms and acknowledges that everything contracted for, 
negotiated, acknowledged and affirmed herein by Developer is done freely and voluntarily. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained 
herein, and other good and valuable considerations, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  Each and all of the foregoing Recitals are declared to be true 
and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference.   

2. References to Streets and Tracts.  All references to street names and tract numbers in this 
Agreement correlate with the street and tract names (Street “A” through Street “I”; Tracts A 
through O with numbering for further delineation of separate Tracts) as depicted on the Final 

216



 

 3 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

Development Plan.  A portion of Street “I” is an existing public road named “Irmalee Lane” that 
will be renamed by the Developer as Oak Pointe Road, or another name accepted by Orange 
County Emergency Management, on the plat for the Project.   

3. Objectives of Agreement.  The Parties’ objectives, each of which is deemed material to 
the Parties’ decision to enter into this Agreement, include but are not limited to the following: 

(a) City Objectives: 

(i) To ensure that the construction of the Development Improvements are 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement; and 

(ii) To obtain from Developer the right-of-way generally extending from the 
northern boundary of Tract K-4 to Ocoee-Apopka Road as depicted in the 
sketch and description attached hereto as Exhibit “B” (the “Right-of-Way 

Parcel”); and  

(iii) To obtain from Developer land for a stormwater pond associated with the 
Right-of-Way Parcel in the location generally depicted on the sketch of 
description attached hereto as Exhibit “B” (the “Stormwater Pond 

Parcel”); and  

(iv) To ensure that Developer or Homebuilder creates a single mandatory 
homeowners’ association (the “Homeowners’ Association”) in accordance 
with Chapter 720, Florida Statutes, to govern the Project and maintain the 
infrastructure needed to support the Project; and  

(v) To ensure that Developer constructs and completes Street “I” from W. 
McCormick Road to the northern boundary of Tract K-4 prior to City’s first 
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for a residential unit within the 
Project. 

(vi) To ensure that the portion of Street “I” extending from W. McCormick Road 
to the Project’s south entry gates, as depicted on the Final Development 
Plan, will be a private road maintained by the Homeowners’ Association 
with proportional contributions from the two parcels zoned Commercial 
that access that portion of Street “I.”  

(vii) To ensure that Homebuilder commences and completes construction of all 
sidewalks serving residential lots within the time frame specified in 
Subparagraph 7(a) of this Agreement. 

(viii) To ensure that Homebuilder commences and completes construction of the 
Tract N-1 pool house, parking lot, and landscaping (the “Track N-1 

Improvements”) depicted and described in Exhibit “C” attached hereto 
within the time frame specified in Subparagraph 7(b) of this Agreement.  

217



 

 4 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

(ix) To ensure that Developer commences and completes:  (i) construction of 
streets, perimeter walls, fence, entrance gates, and associated landscaping 
in conjunction with the infrastructure for the Project; (ii) the Tract O-1 
parking lot; and (iii) the Tract K-6 recreation improvements and landscaping 
as depicted and described in Exhibit “D” and Exhibit “E” attached hereto 
(the “Tract K-6 Improvements”) within the time frame specified in 
Subparagraph 7(c) of this Agreement.   

(x) To ensure that Developer constructs an gate for emergency vehicle access 
to the Apopka Woods subdivision at the eastern terminus of Street “G” in 
accordance with the provisions of Subparagraph 7(d) of this Agreement.   

(xi) To ensure that Developer provides private cross-access easements granting 
access to the parcels zoned Commercial located east and west of Street “I” 
as provided in Subparagraph 8(c) of this Agreement.   

(xii) To ensure that Homebuilder will not commence construction of any model 
home until authorized by City as provided in Paragraph 10 of this 
Agreement.   

(b) Developer’s Objectives: 

(i) To obtain from City timely reviews and approvals for the Project; 

(ii) To clarify Developer’s and the successor Homebuilder’s rights and 
obligations regarding the Project; and 

(iii) To develop the Project in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

4. Homeowners’ Association.  Prior to the issuance of the first residential building permit or 
issuance of a Certificate of Completion for any street or roadway within for the Project, Developer 
or Homebuilder shall form the Homeowners’ Association through the creation of Articles of 
Incorporation, Bylaws and a Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (the 
“Governing Documents”) in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 720, Florida Statutes.  
The Governing Documents shall be consistent with this Agreement and, to the extent of a conflict, 
this Agreement shall supersede the Governing Documents.  The Homeowners’ Association shall 
exclusively govern all residential development, common areas, amenities and the private streets 
within the Project.  Developer or Homebuilder shall not create any sub-association within the 
Project.   

5. Developer’s Conveyance to City of Right-of-Way and Land for Stormwater Pond. 

(a) Conveyance Right-of-Way.  Prior to the issuance of the first residential building 
permit within the Project, or alternatively, prior to closing of any sale of land within Tracts A, B 
or C that are zoned Mixed Use EC and depicted on the Final Development Plan, Developer, at no 
cost to City, shall convey to City marketable fee title to the Right-of-Way Parcel depicted on 
Exhibit “B” attached hereto.  Per the depiction on Exhibit “B” the Right-of-Way Parcel shall be 

218



 

 5 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

60 feet in width and extend from the Project’s northern entry gate northward to Ocoee-Apopka 
Road.  Developer, at its own expense, shall prepare the survey and legal documents needed to 
convey the entire Right-of-Way Parcel to City as a single conveyance.  The conveyance of the 
Right-of-Way Parcel shall be free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except for easements 
of record acceptable to City, if any.  Developer shall provide a title policy and pay all taxes and 
other costs associated with the conveyance.  The Parties have jointly determined that there is a 
reasonable connection between the conveyance of the Right-of-Way Parcel and offsetting 
transportation, utility, and other development impacts created by the Project, and that there is a 
reasonable connection between the conveyance of the Right-of-Way Parcel to City and the benefits 
accruing to the Property.   

(b) Road Construction within Right-of-Way Parcel.  Developer, at its sole cost and 
expense, shall design and engineer a two-lane road (the “Access Road”) to City engineering 
standards extending from Ocoee-Apopka Road to the northern terminus of Street “I” to provide 
access to Tracts A, B, and C, and access to the Project, as depicted on the Final Development Plan.  
Developer, at its sole cost and expense, shall also design and engineer turn lane improvements to 
City engineering standards where the Access Road intersects Ocoee-Apopka Road (the “Turn 

Lane Improvements”).  The Developer shall obtain permits for and construct the Access Road 
and Turn Lane Improvements in two (2) phases.  The first phase shall include the Turn Lane 
Improvements and 1,400 linear feet of the Access Road extending southwest from the Ocoee-
Apopka Road intersection.  The second phase of the Access Road construction shall extend from 
the terminus of the phase one road construction and provide a connection with the Project’s road 
network at the Project’s northern access gate.  The first phase of the Access Road and the Turn 
Lane Improvements shall be completed and conveyed to City prior to issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the first building located within Tract B or Tract C as depicted on the Final 
Development Plan.  The second phase of the Access Road shall be completed and conveyed to 
City prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the first building located within Tract A as 
depicted on the Final Development Plan.  If City desires to advance the timing of the phase two 
road construction, the City may give written notice to Developer and thereafter the Parties shall 
cooperate and determine the most efficient means of constructing phase two of the Access Road, 
and each party shall contribute one-half of the cost of constructing phase two road of the Access 
Road.   

(c) Maintenance Obligations for Right-of-Way Parcel, Access Road and Turn 

Lane Improvements.  Following conveyance of the Right-of-Way Parcel, the Access Road and/or 
the Turn Lane Improvements to City, City shall be responsible for the operation and maintenance 
of same.   

(d) Conveyance of Land for Stormwater Pond.  At the time the 60% design plans 
for the Access Road or the combined Access Road and Access Road Extension project are 
approved by the City Engineer, Developer shall convey to City, at no cost to City, marketable fee 
title to the Stormwater Pond Parcel sized appropriately to accommodate stormwater runoff from 
the Access Road and the Access Road Extension.  The final location for the Stormwater Pond 
Parcel shall be as determined by the City Engineer, or as identified pursuant to a preliminary 
stormwater analysis conducted by Developer and approved by the City Engineer.  The conveyance 
of the Stormwater Pond Parcel shall be free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except for 
easements of record acceptable to City, if any.  The Parties have jointly determined that there is a 

219



 

 6 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

reasonable connection between the conveyance of the Stormwater Pond Parcel to City and 
offsetting the additional need for stormwater retention and other development impacts created by 
the population growth generated by the Project, and that there is a reasonable connection between 
the conveyance of the Stormwater Pond Parcel to City and the benefits accruing to the Project. 

(e) Maintenance Obligations for the Stormwater Pond.  Following conveyance by 
Developer to City of the Stormwater Pond Parcel, City shall be responsible for the operation and 
maintenance of same. 

6. Tree Removal and Mitigation.  Developer has submitted a tree survey to City showing 
existing trees on the Property that are required to be surveyed prior to undertaking land clearing 
activities.  Developer shall obtain an Arbor Permit from City in accordance with Section 5.01.06 
of the Land Development Code.  Trees that were removed several years ago pursuant to 
authorization given by the City, and for which Developer paid a City-determined mitigation 
amount to City, shall not be addressed in any current or future calculation of tree mitigation 
requirements. 

7. Timing of Construction of Development Improvements. 

(a) Homebuilder shall be responsible for constructing all sidewalks within the Project 
serving residential lots after the home on the lot has been completed but before a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the particular home has been issued.  The purpose of this timing is to ensure that 
sidewalks are in place before a resident occupies a home but after all of the construction work on 
the lot has been completed so that the sidewalk is not damaged during construction of the home 
and landscaping of the yard.   

(b) Prior to issuance of the first (1st) residential building permit, Homebuilder shall (i) 
submit to City a building permit application for the Tract N-1 Improvements depicted and 
described on Exhibit “C” attached hereto.  Homebuilder shall commence construction of Tract N-
1 Improvements prior to issuance of the twenty-fifth (25th) residential building permit and shall 
complete same prior to City’s issuance of the fiftieth (50th) residential building permit.  If the Tract 
N-1 Improvements have not been completed prior to issuance of the 50th residential building 
permit, no further building permits will be issued.   

(c) Developer shall commence construction of:  (i) streets, perimeter walls, fence, 
entrance gates, and associated landscaping in conjunction with the infrastructure for the Project; 
(ii) the Tract O-1 parking lot; and (iii) the Tract K-6 recreation improvements and landscaping as 
depicted and described in Exhibit “D” and Exhibit “E” attached hereto (the “Tract K-6 

Improvements”) within a reasonable time following issuance of the site clearing and grading 
permit for the Project and complete same prior to recording the plat for the Project.  If these 
Development Improvements have not been completed before a plat is recorded, Developer shall 
post a performance bond or other financial assurance acceptable to City in an amount equal to 
110% of the estimated cost of construction for the particular Development Improvements that have 
not been completed.   

(d) Prior to City’s issuance of a Certificate of Completion for Street “G,” Developer at 
Developer’s expense shall construct an emergency access gate acceptable to the City Engineer and 

220



 

 7 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

Fire Chief at the eastern terminus of Street “G” where it connects to Pelock Drive in the Apopka 
Woods subdivision, as depicted on the Final Development Plan and shall provide, at no cost to 
City, an easement for emergency access purposes over all of the streets within the Project.  No 
pedestrian or bicycle traffic from the Apopka-Woods subdivision into the Project shall be allowed 
through the emergency access gate because Oak Pointe will be a private, gated community.   

8. Street “I”. 

(a) Developer shall undertake the design, engineering, permitting, and construction of 
Street “I” extending north from W. McCormick Road to the northern boundary of Tract K-4 and 
shall complete construction of Street “I” prior to City’s issuance of first (1st) residential Certificate 
of Occupancy within the Project.  Construction plans for the Street “I” must be approved by the 
City Engineer prior to commencing construction. 

(b) Following its completion, Street “I” will be privately owned and maintained by the 
Homeowners’ Association.   

(c) Prior to City’s issuance of a Certificate of Completion for Street “I,” Developer 
shall provide a private cross-access easement (the “Cross-Access Easement”) granting access to 
the two parcels with Commercial zoning located between the southern boundary of the Project and 
W. McCormick Road, east and west of Street “I.”  The Cross-Access Easement shall allocate to 
the owners of the commercially-zoned parcels proportionate share maintenance and repair 
responsibilities for the Cross-Access Easement and for the segment of Street “I” extending south 
from the Project’s southern entry gate to and including the intersection of Street “I” with W. 
McCormick Road.   

9. Internal Street Network.  All internal streets within the Project will be privately owned 
and maintained by the Homeowners’ Association. 

10. Orange County Utilities and Regional Multi-Use Trail.  Prior to platting of the Project, 
Developer shall provide to City evidence that Orange County will provide potable water to the 
Property and that Orange County has approved the Developer’s utility plan.  Orange County’s 
Regional Trail Plan includes a multi-use trail that follows the northern and northeastern boundaries 
of the Project and may follow the Right-of-Way Parcel.  The Developer shall not object to the 
location of the multi-use trail; provided that no portion of the Property other than the Right-of-
Way Parcel is proposed for use as a part of the multi-use trail.  Developer reserves the right to 
oppose any potential condemnation of a portion of the Property for the multi-use trail 

11. Issuance of Building Permit for Model Homes.  Under no circumstance will City issue 
a building permit for a model home until the City Engineer, Fire Chief, and Public Services 
Director have determined that sufficient road access and potable water are available to the lot or 
lots upon which Homebuilder proposes to construct a model home.   

12. Development Approvals.  This Agreement shall in no manner constitute a development 
approval regarding the Property or Project.  Developer and successor Homebuilder must comply 
with all applicable provisions of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Code, and Land Development 
Code regarding the development of the Property and the Project. 

221



 

 8 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

13. Development Review for Subject Property.  Developer shall provide all information on 
the Property necessary for the required development reviews.  City shall process the Developer’s 
Final Development Plan and any other applications, license, and permits so long as Developer has 
sufficiently complied with the application procedures for each process as set forth in the Code and 
adopted procedures. 

14. Development of Subject Property. 

(a) Developer Obligations as to the Project.  Except as otherwise set forth herein as 
the responsibility of City, Developer shall design, permit and construct, at its own cost and 
expense, all Development Improvements related to the Project. 

(i) The Development Improvements shall be constructed in accordance with 
the construction plans approved by City through its standard Final 
Development Plan review process.   

(ii) At the time of issuance of any building permits for the Project, Homebuilder 
shall pay to City all applicable City impact fees and provide to City proof 
that Homebuilder has paid all applicable County impact fees to Orange 
County in amounts which are in effect at the time of building permit 
issuance.   

15. Consistency with City’s Comprehensive Plan.  City hereby finds that this Agreement is 
consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and other City governing documents, and is a 
legislative act of the City Council.  City further finds that this Agreement promotes the public 
health, safety, and welfare, and is consistent with, and a proper exercise of, City’s powers under 
the Municipal Home Rule Powers Act, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Florida 
Constitution, Chapter 166.021, Florida Statutes, and City’s police powers. 

16. Minor (aka “Insubstantial”) Amendments and Adjustments. 

The Parties agree that a Project of this type requires ongoing day-to-day decisions that may 
result in minor or insignificant changes to the Project (in addition to Administrative Adjustments).  
Such “Minor Adjustments” are those which do not materially affect or modify the Project and 
are typical of developments of this type.  No such Minor Adjustment may modify or otherwise 
adversely impact the criteria outlined in the approved Preliminary Development Plan or approved 
Final Development Plan.  Developer is authorized to make such Minor Adjustments as are 
necessary in its professional discretion and in the ordinary course of business with approval of City 
or City Designee.  If Developer is in doubt as to whether a matter is a Minor Adjustment, Developer 
may from time to time request the concurrence of City Designee that a particular matter involves 
a Minor Adjustment, which request for concurrence shall be in writing, and which concurrence 
shall also be in writing, shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, and shall be 
binding upon City and Developer.   

17. Obligation to Adhere to Requirements of Law.  Developer and City agree that they and 
their respective successors and assigns will be bound by the provisions of this Agreement, as well 
as all applicable Federal, State and local laws, as the same may be amended or created from time 
to time.  No clause or provision of this Agreement shall be construed or excuse the observance of 

222



 

 9 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

any requirement of any law by Developer or City.  Failure of this Agreement to address a particular 
permit, condition, term, or restriction shall not relieve Developer or City of the necessity of 
complying with the law governing said permitting requirements, conditions, term, or restriction. 

18. Covenants and Terms. 

(a) The conditions and covenants set forth herein shall be construed as covenants 
running with the Property which shall survive any termination of this Agreement unless otherwise 
specifically stated herein, and shall be binding upon Developer, City and their assigns and 
successors in interest, and shall inure to the benefit of Developer, City and their assigns and 
successors in interest, but shall not be deemed to extend private rights to any person or entity other 
than the Parties hereto and their successors and assigns.  City enters this Agreement based, in part, 
upon Developer’s experience, reputation and expertise.  This Agreement shall not be assignable 
by Developer, or any assignee of Developer, without City’s prior written approval, which City may 
provide or withhold in its sole discretion.  City hereby agrees that this Agreement may be assigned 
to D.R. Horton, Inc., the contract purchaser for the Project, the intended Homebuilder as that term 
is defined herein.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that a project mortgagee (or its 
nominee) shall acquire title to the Property through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure, such 
affiliate of Developer or project mortgagee (or its nominee) shall be deemed a permitted assignee 
under this Agreement, provided such assignee gives City prompt notice of the acquisition thereby 
of the Property, and such assignee agrees to assume and timely perform all of the covenants and 
obligations of Developer under this Agreement accruing from and after the date of such acquisition 
of title.  This Agreement shall be effective from the Effective Date (as hereinafter defined) until 
such time as the PUD Master Plan is no longer effective unless sooner terminated by Developer or 
City pursuant to a specific right of termination set forth in this Agreement.  If construction of the 
Project has not commenced within three (3) years following the Effective Date, then this 
Agreement shall expire and be of no further force or effect.  Once the Development Improvements 
have been completed and all obligations herein satisfied, this Agreement shall be deemed 
terminated except as expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Within fifteen (15) days following the 
written request of Developer, City shall execute an instrument in recordable form acknowledging 
that the any and all obligations under and pursuant to this Agreement have been fully satisfied and 
performed, and that this Agreement has terminated, or if termination has not then occurred, 
specifying which, if any, obligations under this Agreement remain unsatisfied or unperformed, and 
Developer may record any such instrument in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 

19. Cooperation.  Developer and City shall reasonably cooperate and act in good faith with 
each other to achieve the terms, conditions, and intentions of this Agreement, particularly with 
regard to specific dates set forth herein.  In connection with Developer’s applications for City 
development licenses, permits and approvals necessary to construct the Project and Development 
Improvements in accordance with the final site plan, City agrees to process and review any and all 
applications associated with Developer’s licenses, permits (including building permits) and 
approvals in good faith and in a prompt and diligent manner.  However, Developer recognizes and 
concedes that, in the exercise of its regulatory police power, City must review and act upon 
Developer’s permit applications in substantially the same manner as in the case of applications for 
all other property owners, and City’s decision-making in the course of exercising its police power 
cannot be waived, divested, or otherwise diminished by contract.  City further agrees to formally 

223



 

 10 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

designate the City Administrator or his designee to facilitate approvals, expedite permits and to act 
as liaison between City and Developer. 

20. Amendments.  This Agreement may not be amended, unless evidenced in writing and 
executed by both Parties hereto. 

21. Indemnification.  Developer shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless City from and 
against any and all suits, claims, damages, losses, liabilities, reasonable costs and expenses 
whatsoever (including attorneys’ fees), which City may incur (or which may be claimed against 
City by any party whomsoever) by reasons of or in connection with the design, construction or 
maintenance of the Development Improvements and public infrastructure.  Nothing herein shall 
require Developer to indemnify City or its agents for their own negligence.  This paragraph shall 
survive expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

22. Default.  Failure by either Party to perform any of its obligations hereunder, including the 
failure of Developer to diligently prosecute or perform its obligations hereunder, shall constitute a 
default, entitling any non-defaulting Party to pursue such remedies as may be available to it under 
Florida law or equity, including, without limitation, an action for specific performance and/or 
injunctive relief or termination hereof.  Prior to termination of this Agreement or either Party filing 
an action as a result of a default under this Agreement, the non-defaulting Party shall first provide 
the defaulting Party with written notice of said default.  Upon receipt of said notice, the defaulting 
Party shall be provided a thirty (30) day opportunity in which to cure the default, except where 
otherwise provided herein. 

23. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of default, the prevailing Party shall have the right to recover 
all reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs incurred as a result thereof, in addition to all other 
remedies provided herein. 

24. Bankruptcy.  In the event (a) an order or decree is entered appointing a receiver for 
Developer or its assets or (b) a petition is filed by Developer for relief under federal bankruptcy 
laws or any other similar law or statute of the United States, which action is not dismissed, vacated 
or discharged within sixty (60) days after the filing thereof, then City shall have the right to 
terminate immediately this Agreement and accelerate, making immediately due and payable, all 
sums levied against the Property at the time of the occurrence of an event described in (a) or (b) 
above.  The occurrence of an event described in (a) or (b) above shall not afford any person the 
right to refuse, discontinue or defer payment of said sums or to challenge their validity. 

25. No Liability or Monetary Remedy.  Developer hereby acknowledges and agrees that it is 
sophisticated and prudent in business transactions and proceeds at its own risk under advice of its 
own counsel and advisors and without reliance on City, and that City bears no liability for direct, 
indirect or consequential damages.  The only remedy available to Developer for any breach by 
City is one of mandamus to require City’s specific performance under the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement. 

26. Force Majeure.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, no Party shall 
be liable for any breach of this Agreement for any delay or failure of performance resulting from 
any cause beyond such Party’s reasonable control, including but not limited to the weather, strikes 

224



 

 11 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

or labor disputes, adverse rulings in third-party lawsuits, casualty, war, terrorist acts, riots or civil 
disturbances, acts of civil or military authorities, or acts of God (individually, a “force majeure”) 
provided the Party affected takes all reasonably necessary steps to resume full performance; 
provided however, that if any such force majeure shall continue for three hundred sixty-five (365) 
consecutive days, any Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without incurring any 
penalty. 

27. Gender, Number and Subtitles.  As used in this Agreement, the plural includes the 
singular, and the singular includes the plural.  Use of one gender includes all genders.  Subtitles of 
sections or paragraphs used in this Agreement are for convenient reference only and shall not limit, 
define or otherwise affect the substance or construction of provisions of this Agreement. 

28. Notice.  Any notice required or allowed to be delivered hereunder shall be in writing and 
shall be: (a) hand delivered to the official hereinafter designated, effective upon such delivery; (b) 
deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered mail, return receipt 
requested, effective upon receipt of such notice; (c) deposited with a nationally recognized 
overnight courier service (e.g., Federal Express, United Parcel Service, Purolator, Airborne, 
Express Mail, etc.), effective one (1) business day after such deposit; or (d) delivered by  facsimile 
(fax) transmission, effective upon confirmed transmission; addressed to a Party at the address 
specified below, or such other address as from time to time may be provided by written notice: 

City: Glenn Irby, City Administrator 
120 East Main Street 
Apopka, FL 32703 
Telephone:  (407) 703-1712 
 

Copy to: Cliff Shepard, Esq. 
Shepard, Smith, Kohlmyer & Hand, P.A. 
2300 Maitland Center Parkway, Suite 100 
Maitland, FL 32751 
Telephone:  (407) 622-1772 
 

Developer: Thompson Hills Estates, LLC 
Attn: Malcolm F. Jones 
207 Island Drive 
Jupiter, FL 33477 
Telephone:  (561) 248-3505 

 
  

225



 

 12 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

Copy to: Eavenson, Fraser, Lunsford & Ivan, PLLC 
Attn:  Bradley Eavenson, Esq. 
2000 PGA Boulevard, Suite 3200A 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33408 
Telephone:  (561) 626-3706 

  
Copy to: Lowndes, Drosdick, Doster, Kantor & Reed, P.A. 

Attn:  Miranda F. Fitzgerald, Esq. 
215 N. Eola Drive 
Orlando, FL 32801 
Telephone:  (407) 843-4600 
 

29. Severability.  Invalidation of any word, clause, sentence, or section contained herein due 
to illegality, unconstitutionality, or for any other reason and as determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction shall not act to cause this entire Agreement to be found to be invalid, illegal or 
unconstitutional, and said documents shall be read without such invalid, illegal or unconstitutional 
word, clause, sentence or section. 

30. Recording in Public Records.  A memorandum of this Agreement, executed by both 
Parties shall be recorded in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida (“Effective Date”).  The 
City Clerk shall insure the proper recording is accomplished within fourteen (14) days after the 
execution of this Agreement by both Parties.   

31. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 
which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall together 
constitute on and the same instrument. 

32. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties 
with respect to the specific matters contained herein and supersedes all previous discussions, 
understandings, and agreements.  Amendment to or waivers of the provisions herein shall be made 
by the Parties in writing. 

33. Negotiation.  Each Party hereto hereby acknowledges that he was properly represented in 
the negotiation of this Agreement and this Agreement shall not be more strictly construed against 
one Party or the other as a result of such Party’s participation in the drafting of this Agreement. 

34. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  The Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Parties 
signing hereto and their successors and assigns, and no right, nor any cause of action, shall accrue 
to or for the benefit of any third party. 

35. Relationship of the Parties.  This Agreement does not evidence the creation of, nor shall 
it be construed as creating, a partnership or joint venture between City and Developer.  Developer 
cannot create any obligation or responsibility on behalf of City or bind City in any manner.  Each 
Party is acting for its own account, and it has made its own independent decisions to enter into this 
Agreement and as to whether the same is appropriate or proper for it based upon its own judgment 
and upon advice from such advisers as it has deemed necessary.  Each Party acknowledges that the 
other Party hereto is not acting as a fiduciary for or an adviser to it in respect of this Agreement or 

226



 

 13 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

any responsibility or obligation contemplated herein.  Developer further represents and 
acknowledges that no one was paid a fee, commission, gift or other consideration by Developer as 
an inducement to entering into this Agreement. 

36. Controlling Law.  This Agreement and the provisions contained herein shall be construed, 
controlled, and interpreted according to the laws of the State of Florida, and all duly adopted 
ordinances, regulations and policies of City now in effect and those hereinafter adopted. 

37. Venue.  The location for settlement of any and all claims, controversies, or disputes, arising 
out of or relating to any part of this Agreement, or any breach hereof, shall be Orange County, 
Florida. 

38. Personal Liability.  No provision of this Agreement is intended, nor shall any be 
construed, as a covenant of any official (either elected or appointed), director, employee or agent 
of City in an individual capacity and neither shall any such individuals be subject to personal 
liability by reason of any covenant or obligation of City hereunder. 

39. No General Obligation.  In no event shall any obligation of City under this Agreement be 
or constitute a general obligation or indebtedness of City or a pledge of the ad valorem taxing 
power of City, within the meaning of the Constitution of the State of Florida or any other applicable 
laws, but shall be payable solely from legally available revenues and funds.  Neither Developer 
nor any other party under or beneficiary of this Agreement shall ever have the right to compel the 
exercise of the ad valorem taxing power of City or any other governmental entity or taxation in 
any form on any real or personal property to pay City’s obligations or undertakings hereunder. 

40. Agency.  Developer and City, and their agents, contractors or subcontractors, shall perform 
all activities described in this Agreement as independent entities and not as agents of each other. 

41. Sovereign Immunity.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver 
of City’s right to sovereign immunity for tort claims under and subject to §768.28, Florida Statutes. 

42. City’s Police Power and Regulatory Powers.  City hereby reserves all police and 
regulatory powers granted to City by law.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, 
nothing herein shall be construed as City’s bargaining away, surrendering, or in any way 
diminishing its police or regulatory powers. 

43. Interpretation.  The Parties hereby acknowledge and agree that each has participated 
equally in the drafting of this Agreement, and neither Party shall be favored or disfavored regarding 
the interpretation of this Agreement in the event of a dispute between the Parties. 

44. Compliance with Public Records Law.  Pursuant to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, 

when Developer provides services to City by constructing public infrastructure or improving City 
property under the terms of the Agreement, Developer shall comply with the public records laws 
set forth in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and any successor statute.  Specifically, the Developer 
shall: 

(a) Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required 
by City in order to perform the service provided to City; 

227



 

 14 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

(b) Provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions 
that City would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 
119, Florida Statutes, or otherwise provided by law; 

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 
records disclosure requirements are not disclosed, except as authorized by law; 

(d) Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no costs to City, 
all public records in possession of Developer upon completion, inspection, and issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy for the completed services on City property, and destroy any duplicate 
public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements.  All records stored electronically must be provided to City in a format that is 
compatible with the information technology systems of City. 

(e) Upon request of City, Developer shall promptly provide City with copies of public 
records which pertain to this Agreement. 

(f) In the event that Developer receives a request from any person or entity other than 
City for a document, computerized information, audio or videotape, CD, DVD, or any other record 
in Developer’s possession pursuant to this Agreement, Developer shall notify City immediately 
and submit the request to City for direction on how to comply with Florida’s Public Records Law.  
Developer shall allow City to inspect the requested record to advise Developer if any material 
therein is exempt or confidential and therefore subject to redaction. 

45. Condemnation.  If, prior to obtaining all necessary permits and approvals to construct the 
public infrastructure and/or Development Improvements, all or any part of the Property is 
subjected to a bona fide threat of condemnation by a body having the power of eminent domain or 
is taken by eminent domain or condemnation (or sale in lieu thereof), or if City and/or Developer 
has received written notice that any condemnation action or proceeding with respect to the Property 
is contemplated by a body having the power of eminent domain, each shall give the other 
immediate written notice of such threatened or contemplated condemnation or of such taking or 
sale, and each may, by written notice to the other, given within thirty (30) days after the receipt of 
such notice, elect to cancel this Agreement as it relates to the portion of the Property affected by 
such condemnation.  Further, City agrees not to use its powers of eminent domain in any way 
which would modify or alter the Preliminary Development Plan or Final Development Plan, 
provided that this paragraph shall not abrogate City’s police powers. 

46. Effective Date.  The “Effective Date” of this Agreement is the date when the 
memorandum of this Agreement is duly recorded in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 

 

 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

  

228



 

 15 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have set their hands and seals onto this Agreement 

prior to the Effective Date. 

Signed, sealed and delivered 
in the presence of: 
 
  
Print Name:   
 
  
Print Name:   
 
 
 
Attest    
  , City Clerk 
 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

 
 
By:   
   
 
Date:   
 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this _____ day of 
____________, 2018, by ___________, __________of the City of Apopka, on behalf of the CITY 
OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation, who is __ personally known to me or 
has produced _________________ as identification. 

   
Notary Public 
 
Print Name:   

 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  

229



 

 16 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

 
 
 
 
  
Print name:   
 
 
  
Print Name:   
 

THOMPSON HILLS ESTATES, LLC, a 
Florida limited liability company 
 
 
By:   
Name:   
Title:   
 
 
Date:   

  

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this _____ day of 
____________, 2018, by ________________, as _________________________ of Thompson 

Hills Estates, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, on behalf of the company, who is __ 
personally known to me or has produced _________________ as identification. 

   
Notary Public 
 
Print Name:   

 

230



 

 17 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

GRAPHIC SHOWING LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY 

 

 

  

231



232



 

 19 
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY PARCEL AND GENERALIZED 

LOCATION OF STORMWATER POND PARCEL 

 

 

  

233



234



235



236



 

      
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

EXHIBIT “C” 

 

TRACT N-1 IMPROVEMENTS 

 

 

 

  

237



Exhibit C

TRACT

B

TRACT C

TRACT A

A

C

C

E

S

S

 

R

O

A

D

A

C

C

E

S

S

 

R

O

A

D

238



 

 25
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

EXHIBIT “D” 

 

TRACT K-6 IMPROVEMENTS  

 

 

239



DRAWN BY: KB

L-12
DRAWN BY: KB

TOWNHOME, LIFT STATION & PARK
LANDSCAPE & AMENITIES PLAN

LANDSCAPE & IRRIGATION DESIGN

I CERTIFY THAT THE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION DESIGN FOR THIS PROJECT IS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF APOPKA'S ORDINANCE 2069 ADOPTED MAY 21,
2008 WHICH ESTABLISHES WATERWISE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION STANDARDS.

______________________________________ _______________ _________________
SIGNATURE REG. NO. DATE

TOWNHOME, LIFT STATION & PARK

PARK & AMENITY PLAN NOTES:

1. STREET LIGHTING & PEDESTRIAN LEVEL LIGHTING TO BE PROVIDED BY OTHERS.

2. SIDEWALK RUNNING ALONG WESTERN SIDE OF PARK SHALL BE
PAVED/STABILIZED SURFACE FROM STREET "I" NORTHWARD TO THE PARKING LOT &
DOG PARK TO ACCOMMODATE HANDICAP ACCESSIBILITY.

15
27

 W
. M

C
C

O
RM

IC
K 

RO
A

D
 -

 C
ITY

 O
F 

A
PO

PK
A

, F
L 

32
70

3
O

A
K 

PO
IN

TE
 - 

SO
UT

H

4/06/18

240



 

 27
0099998\010901\5800349v6 

EXHIBIT “E” 

 

TRACT K-6 IMPROVEMENTS 

241



TUFFCLAD SERIES HEAVY DUTY PICNIC TABLE
Model 28014, by Gametime

A ARLINGTON SERIES BENCH WITH ARMREST
Model UF9106, by Gametime

B ARLINGTON SERIES LITTER RECEPTACLE
Model UL9310 - 24" x 30", by Gametime

CANYON CABIN PLAYGROUND
Model PS16010, by PowerScape

D

C

LOOP BICYCLE RACK
Model 7700, by Gametime

E

242



  

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 18, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2640 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 

   

REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2640 – SECOND READING – ANNEXATION -- 

JANINE ROCHELLE EDMONDSON AND RICHARD DONALD 

EDMONDSON 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:  Janine Rochelle Edmondson and Richard Donald Edmondson 

 

LOCATION:  3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road 

 

LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

TRACT SIZE:  1.00 +/- acre 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Abutting current boundaries of the City of Apopka, the subject site is 
consistent with Florida Statutes addressing annexation of unincorporated lands into a municipality. The 
proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  
Assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, and through action 
by the City Council.   
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on March 12, 
2018. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
March 16, 2018 (Apopka Chief) 
April 6, 2018 (Apopka Chief) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
April 4, 2018 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
April 18, 2018 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

243



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 
2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
PAGE 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for property owned by 
Janine Rochelle Edmondson and Richard Donald Edmondson. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on April 4, 2018, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2640, and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on April 18, 2018. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2640. 
 
 
 

244



ORDINANCE NO. 2640 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY JANINE ROCHELLE EDMONDSON AND RICHARD 
DONALD EDMONDSON. AND LOCATED AT 3904 PLYMOUTH 
SORRENTO ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Janine Rochelle Edmondson and Richard Donald Edmondson., owner 
thereof, has petitioned the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property 
located at 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 
municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 
owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 
redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 
Statute 171.044. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 
Florida, totaling 1.00 +/- acre, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby 
annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 
Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 
 

Property Description: 
 
N 105.67 FT OF S 255.67 FT OF S1/2 OF N1/2 OF E 1/3 OF NE1/4 OF NE1/4 SEC 24-20-27 
(LESS E 30 FT FOR R/W)  
(Parcel ID 24-20-27-0000-00-085, 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road) Containing 1.00 +/- 
acres. 
 

 SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 
hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.
 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 
category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 
 
 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 
described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 
ordinances and regulations of the City. 
 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 
proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

245



ORDINANCE NO. 2640 
PAGE 2  
 
validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 
ordinance. 
 
 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 
the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 
for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 
of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  March 16, 2018 and April 6, 2018 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: April 4, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     April 18, 2018 
 
 
  
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

246



ORDINANCE NO. 2640 
PAGE 2  
 

  
ANNEXATION 

Janine Rochelle Edmondson and Richard Donald Edmondson 
3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road 

Exhibit “A”      
Parcel ID No.:  24-20-27-0000-00-085 

              Total Acres: 1.00 +/-      
 

 VICINITY MAP 
            

  

 

247



  

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 18, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2641 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 

   

REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2641 – SECOND READING – ANNEXATION -- LYNN 

R. FONTAINE 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Lynn R. Fontaine 

 

LOCATION:  4353 Mcdonald Gley Road 

 

LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

TRACT SIZE:  5.2 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Abutting current boundaries of the City of Apopka, the subject site is 
consistent with Florida Statutes addressing annexation of unincorporated lands into a municipality. The 
proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  
Assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, and through action 
by the City Council.   
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on March 12, 
2018. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
March 16, 2018 (Apopka Chief) 
April 6, 2018 (Apopka Chief) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
April 4, 2018 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
April 18, 2018 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

248



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 
2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
PAGE 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for property owned by 
Lynn R. Fontaine. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on April 4, 2018, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2641, and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on April 18, 2018. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2641. 
 

249



ORDINANCE NO. 2641 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY LYNN R. FONTAINE. AND LOCATED AT 4353 MCDONALD 
GLEY ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Lynn R. Fontaine, owner thereof, has petitioned the City Council of the City 
of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property located at 4353 Mcdonald Gley Road; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 
municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 
owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 
redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 
Statute 171.044. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 
Florida, totaling 5.2 +/- acre, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby 
annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 
Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 
 

Property Description: 
 
E1/2 OF SW1/4 OF NE1/4 OF NE1/4 (LESS W 150 FT) & W 165 FT OF SE1/4 OF NE1/4 
OF NE1/4 OF SEC 35-30-37  
(Parcel ID 35-20-27-0000-00-037, 4353 Mcdonald Gley Road) Containing 5.2 +/- acres. 
 

 SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 
hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.
 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 
category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 
 
 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 
described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 
ordinances and regulations of the City. 
 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 
proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 
validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 
ordinance. 
 

250



ORDINANCE NO. 2641 
PAGE 2  
 
 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 
the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 
for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 
of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  March 16, 2018 and April 6, 2018 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: April 4, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     April 18, 2018 
 
 
  
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

251



ORDINANCE NO. 2641 
PAGE 2  
 

  
ANNEXATION 

Lynn R. Fontaine 
4353 Mcdonald Gley Road 

Exhibit “A”      
Parcel ID No.:  35-20-27-0000-00-037 

              Total Acres: 5.2 +/-      
 

 VICINITY MAP 
            

  

252



  

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 18, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” – Summary 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Ordinance No. 2642 

    Vicinity Map 
  
SUBJECT:  2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 

   

REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2642 – SECOND READING – SUNTRUST BANK—

ANNEXATION.   
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Suntrust Bank 

 

LOCATION:  920 East Semoran Boulevard 

 

LAND USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

EXISTING USE: Refer to Exhibit “A” 

 

TRACT SIZE:  0.37 +/- acre 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Abutting current boundaries of the City of Apopka, the subject site is 
consistent with Florida Statutes addressing annexation of unincorporated lands into a municipality. The 
proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning Designations.  
Assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, and through action 
by the City Council.   
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on March 12, 
2018. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
March 16, 2018 (Apopka Chief) 
April 6, 2018 (Apopka Chief) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
April 4, 2018 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
April 18, 2018 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

253



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 
2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
PAGE 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for property owned by 
Suntrust Bank. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on April 4, 2018, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2642, and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on April 18, 2018. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2642. 
 

254



ORDINANCE NO. 2642 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY SUNTRUST BANK. AND LOCATED AT 920 EAST 
SEMORAN BOULEVARD, PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 
CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Suntrust Bank, owner thereof, has petitioned the City Council of the City of 
Apopka, Florida, to annex the property located at 920 East Semoran Boulevard; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a 
municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the 
owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 
redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 
Statute 171.044. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, 
Florida, totaling 0.37 +/- acre, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby 
annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 
Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 
 

Property Description: 
 
BLUE BIRD PARK X/58 LOT 5 (LESS N 82 FT RD R/W)  
(Parcel ID 11-21-28-0750-00-050, 920 East Semoran Boulevard) Containing 0.37 +/- 
acres. 
 

 SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are 
hereby redefined to include said land herein described and annexed.
 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 
category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 
 
 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein 
described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 
ordinances and regulations of the City. 
 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 
proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 
validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 
ordinance. 

255



ORDINANCE NO. 2641 
PAGE 2  
 
 
 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter 
the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and 
for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State 
of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  March 16, 2018 and April 6, 2018 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: April 4, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     April 18, 2018 
 
 
  
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

256



ORDINANCE NO. 2641 
PAGE 2  
 

  
ANNEXATION 
Suntrust Bank 

920 East Semoran Boulevard 
Exhibit “A”      

Parcel ID No.:  11-21-28-0750-00-050 
              Total Acres: 0.37 +/-      

 
 VICINITY MAP 
            

  

257



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: April 18, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Annexation Cases 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Ordinance No. 2643 
  
SUBJECT:  2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 ROADWAY ANNEXATIONS 

   

REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2643 - SECOND READING AND ADOPTION – 

ANNEXATION - KING STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY, PETERSON ROAD 

(EAST OF SR 429), AND PETERSON ROAD (WEST OF SR 429) 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:  Orange County Board of County Commissioners 

 

APPLICANT;  City of Apopka Community Development Department 

 

LOCATION:  King Street Right-of-Way located east of SR 429 and south of West Orange Avenue; 

Peterson Street Right-of-Way located east of SR 429; and Peterson Street Right-of-

Way located west of SR 429 

 

EXISTING USE: Public Road 

 

TRACT SIZE:  King Street: 1.859 +/- acres; Peterson Road (east of SR 429): 2.773 +/- acres; 

Peterson Road (west of SR 429): 0.674 +/- acre; Total 5.603 +/- acres/ 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation will result in a change of ownership for a portion 
of King Street Right-of-Way, Peterson Road east of SR 429 and Peterson Road west of SR 429 from the 
Orange County Board of County Commissioners to the City of Apopka. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to 
the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on March 12, 
2018. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
March 16, 2018 
April 6, 2018 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
April 4, 2018 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
April 18, 2018 (7:00 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 258



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 
2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
PAGE 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the annexation for King Street Right-of-
Way, Peterson Road east of SR 429 and Peterson Road west of SR 429.  
 
The City Council, at its meeting on April 4, 2018 accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2643 and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on April 18, 2018. 
  
Adopt Ordinance No. 2643 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

259



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 
2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
PAGE 3 

 
ANNEXATION CASES 
Proposed Annexations: 

 

 TOTAL ACRES:  5.603 +/- 

 
VICINITY MAP 

King Street Public Right-of-Way; Peterson Street Right-of-Way located east of SR 429; and 
Peterson Street Right-of-Way located west of SR 429 

 
 

 

(THIS MAP IS FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT TO SCALE) 

 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S 

NAME 
LOCATION 

PARCEL 

NUMBER 

ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE 

LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2643 

A 
Orange 

County 
King Street N/A 1.859 

Public 

Road 

Public 

Road 

B 
Orange 

County 

Peterson Road 

(East of SR 429) 
N/A 2.773  

Public 

Road 

Public 

Road 

C 
Orange 

County 

Peterson Road 

(West of SR 429) 
N/A 0.674 

Public 

Road 

Public 

Road 

260



CITY COUNCIL – APRIL 18, 2018 
2018 ANNEXATION – CYCLE NO. 2 
PAGE 4 

 
 

261



ORDINANCE NO. 2643 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 

TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO 

FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED PUBLIC 

RIGHTS-OF-WAY KNOWN AS KING STREET,  PETERSON ROAD (EAST), 

AND PETERSON ROAD (WEST), SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA, LOCATED GENERALLY SOUTH OF WEST ORANGE 

AVENUE AND EAST AND WEST OF SR 429, AND COMPRISED OF 

APPROXIMATELY 5.306 ACRES; OWNED BY ORANGE COUNTY BOARD OF 

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 

CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

WHEREAS,  the Orange County Board of County Commissioners has requested that the City of 

Apopka, Florida, annex King Street Right-of-Way located east of SR 429 and south of West Orange 

Avenue and two portions of Peterson Road Right-of-Way located east and west of SR 429; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide that a municipal 

corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the owners, by passing 

and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of annexing and 

redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 

171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 

follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated in Orange County, Florida, 

totaling 5.306 +/- acre, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, Exhibit “B”, and Exhibit 

“C” are hereby annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions 

of Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Descriptions:  King Street: 1.859 +/- acres; Peterson Road (east of SR 429): 2.773 +/- 

acres; Peterson Road (west of SR 429): 0.674 +/- acre; more specifically described within 

Exhibit “A”, Exhibit “B”, and Exhibit “C”. 

 

 SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, are hereby 

redefined to include said land herein described and annexed. 

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use classification and zoning 

category of these annexed lands in accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the land herein described 

shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, ordinances and 

regulations of the City. 

262



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2643 

PAGE 2  

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force, 

or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and adoption, thereafter the 

City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange 

County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State of the State of 

Florida.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: March 16, 2018, April 6, 2018 

 
 

 

READ FIRST TIME: April 4, 2018 

 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED:     April 18, 2018 

 

 

  

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

263


	Top
	1. 04-18-18 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES - 3-21-18
	03-21-18 Draft.docx

	1. 04-19-18 - CC - Presentations - Demings Congressional Record to Dean
	2. 04-18-18 - CC - Presentation - Moore Stephens Lovelace CPA&apos;s
	Apoka 2017 CAFR-Signed Adobe 4.16.18.pdf

	1. 04-18-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Ratify Runoff Election Results
	Linda - Run-off Certification 2018.docx
	Run-off election official results.pdf

	2. 04-18-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - CA - Surplus
	Glenn - Surplus Disposal 04.18.18.docx
	Capital Form - Public Services - 04.18.18.pdf

	1. 04-18-18 - CC - Business - PS Fuel Bid Award
	PS - Gasoline and Diesel Fuel Contract Staff Report.docx

	1. 04-18-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2639 - 2nd Rd - PUD Master Plan - Oak Pointe
	1 Oak Pointe PUD Amend  PUD -2nd Rd -CC 04 18 18.pdf
	2 Ord  2639 - Oak Pointe PUD Amendment.pdf
	3 Exh B Ord 2639 Oak Pointe PUD Amended Master Plan.pdf
	4 Oak Pointe Master Site Plan -Revelle Parcel Addition.pdf

	2. 04-18-18 - CC - Ordinancces - Development Agreement (After Ord. 2639) Oak Pointe - Thompson Hills Estates LLC
	1 Oak Pointe Dev Agrmt CC 04 18 18.pdf
	2 Oak Pointe Development Agreement with Exhibits.pdf

	3. 04-18-18 - CC - Ordinancces - Ord. #2640 - 2nd Rd - Annexation - Edmondson
	1 Edmondson - Annexation Staff Report 2nd Reading CC 04 18 18.pdf
	2 Ord 2640 - Edmondson.pdf

	4. 04-18-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2641 - 2nd Rd - Annexation - Fontaine
	1 Fontaine- Annexation Staff Report 2nd Reading CC 04 18 18.pdf
	2 Ord 2641 - Fontaine.pdf

	5. 04-18-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2642 - 2nd Rd - Annexation - SunTrust Bank
	1 Suntrust - Annexation Staff Report 2nd Reading CC 04 18 18.pdf
	2 Ord 2642 - Suntrust.pdf

	6. 04-18-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2643 - 2nd Rd - Annexation - ROW King Street/Peterson Road
	1 King St Peterson Rd E Peterson Rd W  ROW Annexation Staff Report 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ordinance No 2643 E  and W Peterson Road andKing Street Roadway ROW Annexation 4-4-18.pdf

	Bottom

